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FOREWORD

6_7 the noble men and women,

‘ Who by their sacrifices, courage and loyalty,

Qur ancestors, brave and true,

In both times of peace and war,

Our good old

“Town of Tewksbury”

Was established and preserved . . .

We render all honor and gratitude.
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The QLD TOYWNE HALL

Built on the site of the The first Town House
first Town House was huilt in 1825
in 1875
Destroyved by fire Oct, 13, 1918
The PRESENT TOWN: HALL
b1 *

Dedicated in 1820

Fage Four
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Two Hundredth Anniversary Committees

_ -

GENERAL COMMITTEE

HAROLD I. PATTEN,
Rt nan

MARK ROPER JOHN J. SULLIVAN

*
: CHILDREN’S COMMITTEE

MRS. MAY L. LARRABER, Chairman

Mus, CLARENCE ANDERSON Mus. MiLpreEd 8, FARWELL

Miss Mansen W, BATCHELDER Miss RurH , KeLLgy

Mrs., Sapam L. Seave
Miss Mary A, COLLINS ARAH 8 It

Mrs. CriTHEROE 8. TRICKEY
Mes, Grace W, Dawsox
Mis, RExa Banpwiy TRULL
Mgz, Carprra E. FarMER

Mrs., Linriax (3. WEESTER

Mus, May L. LARRABEE

Page Five
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Mur, Grorar A, MARSHALL

Louvts 0. BERUBE

Puirie M. Barries

Puge Sir

CHURCH COMMITTEE

MRE. GEORGE A, MARSHALL, Chairatan

Rev., CHARLES F. BARRY Rev, GorpoN KENESON
Rev, JoHN A, CUMMINGS Mr. Bexdamin MoviTz

o Me, Narpaxien TRULL

DECORATION COMMITTEE

LOUIS 0. BERUBE, Chairmoan

Hagrry F. BETTS Lovis K. Magiox
ALFXANDER F. BRABANT Wirniay 3. PACIFICO
ALngrT 3. BRIGGS HunrpegT A. PAGE
Lovis J. CoTkE HuerBERT W. PILLSBEURY
ArTHUR J. FAIRGRIEVE Harry PRIESTLEY
Arpiox L. FELKER Danikn H., SCARLETT
Guy B. Gray Ricnary TREADWELL
Frawk A. Haines Anrpur TREMBLAY

*

GENERAL EXHIBITS COMMITTEE

PHILIP M. BATTLES, Chairmahn

CLARENCE ANDERSON RoBERT E. Gay
DuncAN J. CAMERON ILORGE 1. GrAY
Ropert F. CaARSON KarL HEIDENREICH
FFrank 1. CARTER NiLs A, JOHNSON
WiLLiaxM B. CARTER JEREMIAH KEOGIIANE
Lagxix T. CHANDLER Jaanes H. Lorp
JAMES CROSBY FEuvwin OsTERMAN
Warrnace L. FARWELL Joux P. PETERSON
JUusTIN F. FITZGERALD Cuester M. RoreEr
AveTin F. FRENCH THoMAS P, SAWYER
J. HArRPER GALE THorNDIKE Tru.
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HISTORICAL COMMITTEE

FRANKLIN F. SPAULDING, {'hairman

Miss JosErHinNg S, BATTLES Miss BErTHA H. LoNa
WINTHROP 8. BEAN Jamps O MARSHALL
Mgrs, Mavp Forisrann, BILLINGS Miss M. RsTHER MARSHALL

Mns. BErRTHA CHANDLER CALKINS
Freperiox M. Canrrn

Migs JenNiE CLAKK

Miss HaTe FoLSoM

Mis. Mariox K. Frexen
Mes. Eruen Fostier Hanverr Mrs., MILprED KITTRERGE RYDSTROM

Mrs. Susax M. MarriN
Mes, Evrra I, Norkgis
Mgs., Magon M., PILLBEURY

MELVIN G. RoGgErs

Miss HARRIETTE (. LEE Grorce W, TrRULL

INVITATIONS COMMITTEE

IRVING F. FRENCH, Chairman

Mgs., MinNIE Bricos DUPER Gonrrey 1L Goss

ALBERT 8. FESSENDEN GEORGE K. GrAY

Mus. Grace Brown Foss Mrs, Mavne G. GRIFFIN

ManTER E. GARLAND Mra. ETHEL Fatrarieve JACcKsow
DAvID GARSIDE Joux TruULL

LIGHTING COMMITTEE

EDWARD J. WALSH, Chairman

Wittiam I, BAILEY DaNiEL McKILLOp

e &
JAMES CALLAHAN WiLiiay H, RICE

PATRICK CANAVAN

JavmEs 8. Scort
Winruror 8. JoNEs
o T Maniey Aveustus M, SHEDD
STaNLEY W. MOCAUSLAND Hamry W. THOMPSON

Wirnrayn McGoocaw EuceENE C. WINTERS

FrankLIN F. BPAULDING

Irving F, FRENCH

Epwarn J, WALSII

Page Seven
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MUSIC COMMITTEE

GEORGE A. PIERCE, Chairman

H. Lotts FARMER WrIrriay H. MrrcieLr,

*

PAGEANT COMMITTEE

MRS. MARY . MAHONEY, Chairman

GrorarE A, PIERCE

Mgrs. Mary E. Mamosey

Herperr L. TRULL

Page Fight

Miss Crana E. Batney

Mrs, Mary J, BERUER

Mras Appie M. BrLATSprLL
Miss Donis T, BLAKE

Mgs. Masie H. Bockes
MMes, GerreUDE M. CAMERDN
Miss Dororny OHAMBERS
Mrs, ITopa 8. CLARK

Mus, WINNIE Gray CoLraT
Mgrs, Many B, DInworTic
Mrs, MaMIE Liary Ducau
Mrs. Mary C. FrLyns

Mus. MarTHA B, IPRENCTT
Migs Rorn FrENcE

Mrs, Avxa M. Gamraxp
Munr., SaMUEL G, Haas

Mrs. LENA HEaLp

Muies, Eorri C, TSBESTER
Mis. Grace FParMER JonNsox
Mues, FLorENer I JoRDAY

Mer. Eopwarn Larovr

Mrs, Awxie B, Lyvoxs

Mrs, Briz, Fowrer MoCAaUsnaxn
Mrs. HereEx Riney MoCoy

Mr. Ravaoxn T, MeCov

Miss Pavirse MeLoy

Mnes. LiLLiaxy MiLLEr Mookk
Mes. Lovise Durry Morgis

Mr. Hagry P. Nasu

Miss Frorescs NEsSMITIC

Murs, EuveEr OLsox

Mers. Josermixe MiLLerr PaTTeN
MM, FarRrY W, PATTERSON

Mrs., FLORENCE L. ROGERS

Mis, Armen BURTT SAWYER
Muns, IKnya Smann

Miss CATHERINE L. SULLIVAN
Mes, Mancarer WARNER

Me. Bowisn Warrs

Mrs, Aray WILsox

PARADE COMMITTEE

HERBERT L. TRULL, Chairman

Joux J. BELTOw
Nerzox J. Browx
Harny . DAwson
JoHN T. GALE
ALDEN 8. HAINES
Ronerr J. Magrix

Mus. Axxie Kenny McDoxaLn

IFrepertck P, MELOY
Aporrn B, Moorg

Dr. Joun H. Nicmons
Epwarp R. PExxey

Dr. CoanLes L. TRICEREY

IIagry M. WricnT
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PUBLICITY COMMITTEE

MARK J. McCANN, Chairman

Mr. D. Epwagrn BEx~ETT Miss Mavp B, O'CoXNELL
ME. ALRERT BoNUGLI Mus. NeLLie MEars OFCoxNELL

Mrs. ELLex F. BrIoos 3

Mr. Trmomas F. RiLEy
Me. DaniEL F. DILLWORTIT

Mur, Winttaw L, RoperrTsox
Miss EpitH A, IPoRISTALL

Georer K. JAMES Mus. Dorerny Scmamr

HueH ManoNey Mr, WILLTAM SPEKE

Mark J. McCaxw

SPEAKERS COMMITTEE

MELVIN E., ROGERS, hairman

Grorsr 1. BExNNmT D, HERBERT M, LARRAREE

* MeLviz E, Rocers

SPORTS COMMITTEE

MARTIN FLAHERTY, Chairnan

Mg, Harris M. Brigas Mes. Axya K. McPHILLTPS
Me. THoMAs F. FLyxy Me., WinLtam R, MILLETT
MR. Fren D, Garn Mr. Encan Sarrm

Mr, AxTuoxy G, KELLEY Mr. Hexry SPARKS

Hn. WILLIanr MoGowax Mur., Trowmas F. SULLIVAN

MagTiy FLAHERTY
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Evererr H, King

WiLLtaMm H. BENNETT

Page Ten

POLICE COMMITTEE

EVERETT H. KING, Chairman

RALPIT A, AXDERSON
Cryin, L. BARKER

Brzzern King

DanNIEL A, Mace
Jomrx McoCoy

HENRY MORRTS

RECORDS COMMITTEE

WILLIAM H. BENNETT, Chairnuen

Mers, HELEN LITTLEFIELD BEAN
Mgz, Svusie CALDWELL BRADFORD
Mes. Ernexy FrLier CurTir

ME, RANDOLPIT FITSGERATD

Me. Joux L. FLEMING

Me, ExocH W. FosTEr

Mur, Grorce W. FosrTer

Mnus, NeLne FosTER

Mg, JesseE FRENCH

Mers., MARGUERTTE LEE GOODWIN

Mers, THERERA SMALL GULLILAND

Mrs. Arwe Twriss Harpy
Mgs, Hengy H. HinTox

Miss . May KITTREDGE

Mi. SAMUEL PIKE

Mnrs, Erra MarsmaLL SmIric
Mrs., MIRTAM W. SPAULDING
Mps, KniTin AMES STEVENS
Mnr. ALBERT A. TAYLOR

Muis, Lizzie R, TixaLey

Mgrs. Harrier M. TruLL
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—— EXHIBITS——=

N the first floor of the Foster School, there will be splendid exhibits, of
historical and educational interest.

In the vestry of the Congregational Church, an attractive floral exhibi-
tion may be witnessed, staged by the Garden Club.

We urge everyone to visit these exhibitions, for it is almost certain that
never again can such a collection be gathered together, particularly in the his-
torical groups.  School children will have a clearer and more definite under-
standing, not only of town history, but of state and national.

HISTORICAL

HIS EXHIBIT includes pieces of historical interest loaned by the towns-
people and former residents and arranged under various groups, such as
and TTome Life, Articles date
from times when Tewksbury was a camp ground and hunting region of the
Indians, to the period of the Town's Incorporation up to about 1900,

Religious— Educational —Civie—Industrial

Among those pieces of unusual interest, may he seen a photostatic copy
of the original deed of the Town of Tewksbury, also several ancient town re-
ports, a register from one of the old Taverns, Indian relics dug up from farms
in the town, religious books, sermons and articles and a splendid oil painting
of General Adelbert Ames, of Civil War fame.

GENERAL EXHIBITS

ILL include one of great interest from the New Fngland ower Associa-

tion, and an extensive display by the Massachusetts State Infirmary. The
groups of the Market Gardeners, Dairy men, Poultry men, Fruit growers and
Florists will be interesting and educational. There will also be included an
exhibit showing what has been accomplished in wellare work.

TEWKSBURY GARDEN CLUB

N the Congregational Church will be found an interesting and educational
exhibit by members of the Tewksbury Garden Club. These will be eight
classes calling for arrangement of flowers in various types of containers.
The hours that these exhibits are to be opened to the public, will be listed
in the Official Program on pages 12, 19 and 21,

Page Eleven
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.................... Official Program ———

SATURDAY; AUGEST 25,1934

1000 -11.00 a4, m.
CONCERT. ... The Wentworth Company
EXHIBITS
Historical and General FExhibits
Foster School—9.00 - 11.00 a. m. and 5.00-9.00 p. m.

Tewkshury Garden Club
Congregational Church—12.00 - 2.00 and 5.00 - 9.00 p. m.

CONGREGATION B'NAILI SHOLOM
10,00 a. m.

The services will be conducted by Rabbi Bick of Malden, Mass,

The Sabbath Services will be conducted in both Hebrew and FEnglish,
Detween the services, Rabbi Bick will preach in English, the ceremony per-
teining to the 200th Anniversary of the Incorporation of the Town of Tewlks-
huiry.

The public are cordially invited to attend this service.

1.00 - 2,00 p. m.

Flight over the Town of Tewksbury by the 101st Observation Squadron,

M. N. G,

PARADE
2.00 poom.

Formation on the State Infirmary Ball Grounds.
Route of the Parade — East to Chandler Street to Main Street to Dewey
Street. Parade will be dismissed in rear of the Town Hall.

Formation of Parade

Spirit of 76 Minute Men Unele Sam
Chiefl Marshal and Staff

*

FIRST DIVISION ... National Guard and Veteran Organizations
Marshal and Aides
Reading Post Band 62, American Legion
Co. DD, Machine Gun Company, 182 Infantry, M. N. G.
Post 185, G. A. R.

Gen. Adelbert Ames Camp 19, U, 5 W, V.
Hector Jackson Post 239, American Legion
Lowell Post 87, American Legion
Billerica Post 116, American Legion
Harold W. Estey Post 268, American Legion
lidith Prescott Walcott Auxiliary 3, U. S. W, V.
Hector Jackson Post 259, Auxiliary American Legion
Adeslaide FitzGerald Cadets, American Legion Post 87
Lowell Post 87, Auxiliary American Legion
Billerica Post 116, Auxiliary American Legion

Page Tiwelve
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SECONBEDINVIGION. Sa i ol s s o  CivicE @rganizations
Marshal and Staff
Lowell Post 87 Corps Police Department
Girl Scouts, Troop 1 Boy Scouts, Troop 1
School Children Tewkshury Athletic Club
“Wamesit Hand Pump”
Fire Department Highway Department
*
THIRD DIVISION.........................Massachusetts State Infirmary

Marshal and Stall
Lawrence Legion, Fife, Drum and Bugle Corps
National and State Colors
State Car with Officials Assistant Superintendent
Medical Staff Steward Office Assistants
Principal of Training School
Assistants and Supervizors

Head Nurses Pupil Nurses Attendant Nurses
Head Supervisor
Male Supervisors Orderlies and Attendants
Matron
Assistant Matrons Oceupational Therapists
Teachers
Diietitians and Assistants Laundryman and Assistants
Engineer and Assistants Repair Men Head Farmer and Assistants
Ambulance
*
FOURTH DIVISION ..., i i e L e e LRl OALS

Marshal and Stalf
St Rita’s Band and Drum Corps

Ladies” Aid Society — Congregational Church
Ladies’ Aid Society — Baptist Church
Massachusetts State Infirmary So. Tewksbury Betterment Association
Market Gardeners
Dairymen Indians Ox Carts

EXHIBITION DRILL
Immediately following the parade, will be an Exhibition Drill by

Lowell Post 87 Corps
Lawrence Legion, Fife, Drum and Bugle Corps

Return of the “Wamesit Hand Pump”
—hy—

HONORABLE JAMES J. BRUIN,
Mayor of the City of Lowell
Acceptance by
IRVING F. FRENCH
Chairman, Board of Selectmen

PAGEANT

Page

1934
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——=———PAGEANT =

E HAVE TRIED to depict in these episodes, the records of the town and church, as de-
rived from tradition and the history of the town as written by Rev. Edward W. Pride,
of this town.

ROGERS FAMILY—
Mr. and Mrs. Melvin . Rogers
Vietor N. Cluff (driver)
FARMER FAMILY—
! H. Loniz Farmer
Mrs, Grace Johnson
Miss Harriet Lee
Miss Betty Goodwin
BROWN, JAQUES, and FOS8 FAMILIES
Mrs, Wilbur Foss

EPISODE 1.

Indian life in Wamesit Village in the days of
Passaconaway and Wannalanset..

Thomas Sawyer
Frank Sullivan
Lounis Berube
Alee Brabant
Arthur Countn

Mrs. Anna McPhillips
Mrs. Emily Burris
Mrs, Margaret Sterling
Mrs, Sophie Coutn
Mrs., Mary Carroll

Mrs. Laura Callahan
Miss Rose Callahan

Mrs.
Mrs.

Mra. Martin Flaherty

Rev.

Danial Dilworth

Henry Jewell
Sydney Barnes
Frederick Gath
Maynard 3. Malonson
Ira CGoldihwaite
Walter PFillsbhury
Nathanisl Trull

Mary K. Dilworth
Roland Robinson

Gordon Kenison

EPISODE 2.

Th~ Settling and Incorporation of the Town

of Tewksbury.

BILLERICA SELECTMEN—
Dr. Maurice A. Buck
D, A, Warren Stearns
Frank A. Kelley

Mrs, Mildred MeCausland
Wilbur Kenneth Foss Jr.

KITTREDGE and CLARK FAMILIES—
Myp, and Mrs. Herbert Rydstrom
Miss I8, May Kittredge
Mr. and Mrs, Harry C. Kittredge and
children Sandra, Harry Jr. John G.
and Jane.
Miss M. Mande Morton
CHANDLER TFAMILY
Mr, and Mrs, Larkin Chandler
Phvlliz Chandler

EPISODE 3.

Founding of the first church under Rev.
Sampson Spaulding. !

George 3. Gracie
Arthur K. Hallenborg
TEWEKSBURY SELECTMEN—
Irving F. French
Herhert L. Trull
E. Howard King
TRULL FAMILY—
George W, Trull
Mr. and Mrs. Herbert L. Trull
Mr. and Mrs. Carter H. Hoyt
Carter Hoyt Jr.
Barbara Hoyt
FRENCH FAMILY
My, and Mrs, Irving F. IFrench
My, and Mrs, Jesse J. French
Gilbert French
Dionald French
Alvin French
Frances French
Mr, and Mrs. Asahel H. Jewell
JAQUES FAMILY—
Mr, and Mrsg. Phillip M. Battles
Francizs Battles
Ralph Battles
Juanitz Battles
BRIDGES FAMILY—

Mr. and Mrs. Winthrope 3. Bean
Ruth H. Bean

Lucy Twiss
Mrs., Hdna Small
Mrs, Reta Small

- Mr. & Mre. Ira Goldthwaite
Winthrope Fitzgerald My 1 Mrs. Walter Pill
Clara Railey Mr. and Mrs. Walter Pills-
Robert Staverly bury
Mrs, Herbert Trull Mr. and Mrs. Geo, Garland
Mrs. Martha Bailey Mr, and Mrs, Patrick Nash .

Franklin Spaulding
Eugenia Farwell
Eleanore Fitzgerald
Dorothy Fuller

EPISODE 4.

Feunding of the schools with Steven Osgood
and Lucy Needham as the first teachers.

Abbie Blaizdell, Teacher Walter Lavell, Teacher
Violet Beckshaw George Wilson
Betty Farrell John Calby
Julia Dillofano el sl
iz 2o porge Manly
Blonents ‘Dlllofd,no Bernard Marion
Bertha D11I10fano Vernon Darby
Norma Haines Frank Heidenreich
Barbara McCann Charles Doucette
Marjorie Flynn Francis Cummings
Queena Millett James Dillofano
Beatrice James James Farrell

Page Fowrteen
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EPISODE 5.

Group of Arcadian Exiles who found refuge
in Tewksbury.

Jeanette Aubut
Roboert Aubut
Joseph Aubut

Mrs. Alma Tremblay
Rita Tremhlay
Martha Tremhblay
Margaret Tremblay
Louis Tremblay

Panl Tremblay

Mrs, Agnes Aubnt
Lorraine Aubut

Mra. Rose Plourde
George Plourde
Mrs. Angela Gillison

Miss Mary Gillisen

EPISODE 6.

Tewksbury took her part in the Founding of

the Republic.

SPIRIT OF ‘76
Alger Johnson
Herhert M. Larrabee Jr
John . Patten

PAUL REVERE MESSENGER
Phaida J. Roux

MINUTE MEN

Wesley Barron
Kobert Farmer
Ralph Dodge
Chester Wright
Wilbur K, Fo=sa
Walter Hobinson

Harris M. Briggs
Elmer Olsen

Harrizs M, Briggs Jr.
William E. Briggs
Russell Gourley
George 3. Flint

GARDEN PARTY
Hosless:
Mrs, Harold J. Patten

Tloat:
Thomas P, Sawyer

CHILDREEN
Flora Avis Gay
Emmett R, Millett

Richard A. Patten
Frederick R, Millett

BUTLER
seorge Al Gale

GUESTS
Miss Queena M, Millett
Miss Florence Nesmith
Mrs. Irene Coombs

Mrs. Robert Gay
Herbert W. Rydstrom
Mrs. Lillian H. Moore

MINUET
Alden V., Doucette
Robert 8. Mansfield
Anstin M, MceCormack
John G. Rydstrom

Dorothy B, Chambers
Ruth E. FPrench
Mildred E. Bolton
Natalie M. Patten

ORCHRESTRA
Robert Staveley, Bass Vicol
Stanley E. Gonyea, Violin

Mary M. Geary, Violin

EPISODE 7.

Singing School giving

a glimpse of the Early

Social Life of the Town.

HARRY PRIESTLY, Singing Master

Harrielte Lees
Beatrice James
Donald Bolton
Mildred Bolton
Dorothy Pike

Mrs, William Dewing
Katherine Bolton
Dorothy Bolton

Mrs. Howard Dewing
Justin IMtzgerald

Mrs. Mildred Farwell
Ealph Battles
Caroline Blanchard
Francis Battles

Mrs. Justin Fitzgerald
Mra, William Bennett
William Bennett
Anna Younge

Maude E. O'Connell

EPISODE 8.

Opening of the State Infirmary Showing the
Original Staff.

Dr. Eugene Allen
Dr. Charles Trickey
Dr. Ralph Heifetz
Hobert Gay
Herbert Fairbrother
Willlam Rynne
Mary F. Dunn, R.N.
Jean Calder, RN,
Mary Sabre, R.N.
Eilhel Brunelle, RN,

Lillian Smith, K.N.
Mrs. Eveline Colhy
Mra., H. H. Havden
Mary Stewart Angus
Louise O'Connell, R.N,
Charles Flanagan,

meale nurse
Katherine Durgin, R.N.
Margaret Holmstead, R.N.

EPISODE 9.

Nineteenth Century Social Life just prior to
ihe declaration of the Civil War,

Mrs. Reta Small

Mrs, L. E. Small

Mra, Allen Wilson

Ruth Kelley

Lounize Kelley

John Mahoney

Harry Patterson

Marion Brunean

Jean Pike

Ruth Bean

Mr. and Mrs, George
Garland

Constance Peridolotis

EFPISO

Mras, Thomas MeCausland

Walter Lawvell

Honor Kelley

Nancy Goodwin

Marion Wiley

Rita Sullivan

Marion Rogers

Edna Bockes

Mr. & Mrs. Ira Goldthwaite

Mr. and Mrs. Walier Fills-
hury

Beatrice James

Gloria Roux

Mr. and Mrs., Patrick Nash

DE 10.

Founding of the Order of Mary Immaculate

Novi

A GROUP OF

tiate.

STUDENTS.

Page Fiffeen
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EPISODE 11.

World War.
Hector Jackson Post 239 American Legion and
the following m mbers of Hector Jackson
Post 259 Auxiliary Am. legion.

SALVATION ARMY
Mamie Dugan
Lucy E. Millett
Elizabeth McCausland
Marie Burke

NURSES
Mildred S. Millett
Carrie Vivier
Margaret Millett
Dielia Canavan
Dorothy Pendleton

KNITTERS
Nellie Mahoney
Mildred Pallerson
Clara Stevenson
Katherine Sheehan
Josephine N. Patten

FARMERETTES
Ella Manley
Lillian Farrell
Frances Beck
Glennis G. Fuller

EPISODE 12.

The Tewksbury of Today and Tomorrow.
Local organizations and an inter-
national group.

PARENT-TEACHER ASSOCIATION
Virginia Broe Barbara MeCann
Barbara Broe Richard MceCann
Thomas Brewer Edwin McCann
Marie Brewer Nancy Trickey

GARDEN CLUB

Mrs. Austin French
Mrs., Winifred Colbath
Patrick Nash

Mra. George Garland
Mra., William Smith
Mrs. Lillian Moore

BOY SCOUTS

Chester Heald
Elias McCormack

Phillip DBurgess
Ernest Broadbent

GIRL sCouUTs

Helen Carter
Louise McCann

Natalie Patten
Marion Rogers
Marion Brunean

INTERNATIONAL GROUP

Christine Liakos
Salvadore Lipomi
Mary Ogston

Dorothy Ballas
Dorothy Bolos
Nicholas Bubanas
Julia DiPalma
Frank DiPalma
Aura Genieres
Sophie Liakos
Helen Liakos

Theresa Pagquette
Doris Sanville
Anastasia Siopisz
Athena Siopis

M%Mi

Page Sirteen
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SUNDAY, AUGUST 26, 1934

FIRST CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH
10050 a. 1m.

Order of Service

Organ Prelude ... Miss Harriette G, Lee, Organist
Call to Worship.. Rev. Sarah AL Dixon
Doxology

Prayer for Country—In Unison

“Almighty God, who hast given us this good land for our heritage; we
humbly beseech Thee that we may always prove ourselves a people mindful of
Thy favour and glad to do Thy will. Bless our land with honorable industry,
sound learning, and pure manners. Save us from violence, discord, and con-
fusgion; from pride and arrogance, and from every evil way, Defend our liber-
ties, and fashion into one united people the multitudes brought thither out of
many kKindreds and many tongues. Endue with the spirit of wisdom thosze to
whom in Thy name we entrust the authority of government, that there may
be justice and peace at home, and that through obedience to law, we may
show forth thy praize through all the earth. In the time of prosperity fill our
hearts with thankfulness, and in the day of trouble suffer not our trust in Thee
to fail; all of which we ask through Jesus Christ our Lord.  Amen,

Responsive Reading—No. 62 ... Leader, Rev. James Alexander
Duet. oo Mrs, Samuel Crown and Miss Arlene Crown
Seripture Reading Rev, Sarah AL Dixon

Hymn 549, “0O God Beneath Thy Guiding Hand”

Prayer. i i a i o e T et Rev, James Alewander
Ofiering

Offertory Prayer

Remarks by Visiting Former Pastors ... Rev, Sarah Dixon, ’h. D,
Anthem by Choir

Remarks by Visiting Pastors..........................l Kev. James Alexander
Hymnn 543, Gower's Recessional

Anniversary Sermon “Coats Off to the Future; Iats Off to the Past”
Rev. John Cummings

Hymn 539, “America”

Benedletion. | sl Coil e i e e e e e e W | Al SN [eaniien

Page Seventeen
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FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH
Tewksbury Anniversary Sunday

10.30 a. m.
Prelude

Doxology
Imvocation and Lord’s Praver
Hymn 479, “Faith of Our Fathers™
Responsive Reading “The Great Mission”
Gloria
Scripture
SolO e A e E T e M ps W 2 m L Behnett
Prayer
Response
Announcements
Offering
Offertory Prayer
Hymn 556 “The Church’s One Foundation”
s [o P b e e L s BRI T P Mrs. William H. Bennett
Sermon  “The anhangmg Christ Through the Changing Years”
Rev. Harvey H. Bishop
Hymn 589 “Christ for the World We Sing”
Benediction
Organist, Mrs. Harry C. Dawson
Preacher, Rev. H. H. Bishop, former pastor
Dist, Sec. for Western Maine, of the United Baptist Convention of Maine,

*

IMMACULATE HEART OF MARY NOVITIATE
Services at the Novitiate Chapel in conjunction with the Bi-Centennial
celebration of the Town
HIGH MASS at 10.30

Celebrant, Rev. Charles F. Barry, O.M.I., Superior
Music of the Mass will be supplied by the Students’ Choir

Processional Cross and the Flag...............................Cardinal O'Connell
BEVTIR i i i L T A e e R e vereeeen. Montani
HEIOTIA sl i isais e b T s o A S TR Hlxl.l Mutlc XI Century
Eredo ..aivaliceiian Bineastahadn Mo e S s e el de Angelis
Offertory: Prayer for a Perfect Life................. Bes Cardinal O'Connell
Sanctus oo, B S NI T e de Angelis
Arnus Ded o onh b e kT s S SO de Angelis

Recessional : Hymn to the Hu]', Name. ..o Cardinal O'Connell

The sermon will be preached by the Rev. Charles F. Barry, O.M.1.
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SOUTH TEWKSBURY METHODIST EPISCOPAIL CHURCH

South St., South Tewksbury

Program For Morning Worship

Tewksbury Anniversary Sunday

11.00 a, m.
Prelude

Call to Worship: "0 come, let us sing unto the Lord:
Let us make a joyiul noise unto the Rock of our Salvation!”

Hymn 415  “Faith of Our Fathers!”

Collect for Purity:

“Almighty God, unto whom all hearts are open, all desires known, and from
whom no secrets are hid, cleanse the thoughts of our hearts by the inspiration
of thy Holy Spiril, that we may perfectly love thee, and worthily magnify Thy
holy name, through Jesug Christ, our Lord, Amen.”

Silent Praver

The Lord's Prayer

Anthem

Responsive Reading: 5th Special Reading I'. 81
Gloria Patri

Apostles’ Creed

PPastoral Prayer

Presentation of Offerings

Response and Prayer

Anthem

Hymn 377, “O God, Our Help in Ages Past”

Sermon: “Yesterday—Today—Tomorrow”. ... Rey. Gordon 5. Kenison
Hymn 704, *“God of Our Fathers, Whose Almighty Hand”

Benediction

Doxology

EXHIBITS

Congregational Church, 12.30-2.00 p. m. — 4.00 - .00 p. m.
Tewksbury Garden Club

Puge Nineteen
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ANNIVERSARY EXERCISES

1.0 p.om.

ORGAN RECITAL oooooooeeeveiviieiveieiieiinieene. Miss Harriette G. Lee
By Microphone from the First Congregational Church

2.00 p.om.
OPENING PRAYER. .o Reve John Cummings

Pastor of the First Congregational Church

INTRODUCTORY REMARKS

Harold J. Patten,
Chairman of Committes on Arrangemenls

Melvin G. Rogers, (Presiding Officer )
FAMERLICA™ oo The - Sehool Children

GREETINGS From the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
ITon. Charles 1D, Howard

“COLUMEBIA, THE GEM OF THE OCEAN"............The School Children

CONGRATULATIONS from the Mother Town of Billerica
Dr. A Warren Stearns,
Selectman of Billerica

SAMERICA, THE BEAUTIFUL” . ........The School Children

THE MESSAGE OF THE CITY OF LOWELL, A DESCENDANT OF
TEWEKSBURY
Hon, James J. Bruin,
Mayor of the City of Lowell

“BATTLE HYMN OF THE REPUBLICY. ... The School Children
ADDRESS: “How Did They Ever Do It ........Prof. Albert Bushnell Hart

Emeritug Professor of American History at IHarvard University

STAR-SPANGLED BANNER. ... School Children and the Audience

All are reguested to remain standing

PENEDRICETIEN . ok et Rev tCharles I, Barry; {O.M.I.

Superior of the Oblate Novitiate

Trumpeters:
Herbert M, Larrabee Jr., Harold L. Keene

8.00 - 10.00 p. m.
BANDEECENCERT &l esi i o a s s e deiiGiblintst Whilitary Band

Poge Twenly
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MONDAY, AUGUST 27, 1934

Historical Exhibits.................................. Foster School, 9-11 a. m.—1-5 p. m.
General Exhibits..........................Foster School, 9-11 a, m.—1-5 p. m.

The exhibits will close Monday at 5 o'clock

10.00 - 11.00 a. m.

Eoncert i e e e R e B eV en ko sEhS Gom pany

2.00 p. m.
SPORTS

On the Ball Grounds of the Massachusetts State Infirmary.
Contestants must be at hand to report when the several events are announced.

Contestants must be at hand to report when the several events are announced.

SrcheryiGonmbest. r o Sl e e Borelairl s sunder A 8y eans
ATcheryiGontest om0 o S LR B o e el e men
¥ihrcetlespedtiRiaee sin Doiilenas T il S St ma For Girls under 18 vears
fihree-leared Reca il g Do Db BB i, For Boys under 17 vears
pU-NardiDagheie - e mrpmda veal i e e e N e Bl shund el dl8 vears
Ris¥ardcDach S ciah T S i e s o B oyseunder Ay ears
0= Veards Bashin et mmm i e o e L s e Men

4.00 p. m.
BASEBALL

Tewksbury Athletic Club vs Massachusetts State Inlirmary

Sullivan, ¢
Whittle, 2b

E. Gath, ss
Smith, cf
Gray, rf
Dobson, If
Kelleher, 1b
O’ Neill, 3b
Dowery, p
Dodge, utility
Whitehouse, utility

Cassells, ¢
Hawkes, 2b
Bernier, ss
McCoy, If
McVey, cf
Solo, ri
Hazelton, 1b
Flynn, 3b
Urban, p
Gerrish, utility
Holmstead, utility

Umpires
George A, Marshall — Frank Hickey

3.00-4.00 p. m.
CGoncert from-the: Town Halli o loiis cne i The Wentworth Company

7.00-9.00 p. m.
Concerti R e R e R e e R A @ Ee e s B
John P. Broderick, Conductor
.00 pirm.
Town Hall Grounds

A B oy oAU e it e i s e s
Amateur Boxing

S T A B s N ST

9.30 p. m.

FIREWORKS
On the site of the New High School on Pleasant Street
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The Mother Town—DBillerica

HE TERRITORY now comprising Billerica was originally granted to Cambridge. It was

not settled until about 1653, The town was then called Shawshin. On May 23, 1655, the

towns of Billerica, Chelmsford and Groton were incorporated and soon after the name of
Billerica was voted. The town at that time included all of what is now Tewksbury, a small part
dof Wilmington, about half of Bedford and about one third of Carlisle.

Hl

In 1638, there were twenty-five families present and they hired Mr, Samuel Whiting as the
first minister. The population increased, although at the time of King Philip’s War in 1675, sev-|
eral families left. In 1692 and again in 1695 there were Indian massacres. FFor a period of some
sixty years almost every able bodied man saw service in the various French and Indian wars.

The following towns were incorporated from part of old Billerica: 1729, Bedford ; 1733, Wil-
mington; 1734, Tewksbury; and 1804, Carlisle,

For the first hundrzd and fifty years the town was almost entirely agricultural, but each man |
often had a trade which he worked in his own home. With the advent of the Middlesex Canal in |
1794, the Turnpike in 18035, and then the railroad in 1833, the town gradually became more and |
more an industrial community.  With the growth of the mills in North Billerica and later the car
shops, a smaller percentage of the population worked on farms from year to vear.

In 1852, Dr. Zadok Howe left a fund of money for an academy and for many years this sup-|
plied Billerica and the surrounding towns as a high school.

The town records are in existence from the earliest meeting and form a very interesting his-
tory of the development of town government. The presint population of Billerica is 5880,

Page Tiwenty-two
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ANNO Regni Regis GEORGII Secundi Octavo

N ACT dividing the Town of Billerica & erecting the
Northerly and Northeasterly part of said town into a
distinct Township by the Name of TEWRKSBURY,

WHEREAS the Inhabitants of the Northerly &
Northeasterly part of the Town of Billerica in the
County of Middlesex are so situated in their habitations as
to live very remote from the Place of Publick Worship & on  that
account as well as divers others have laboured under great difficulties and
hardships & for relief therin have petitioned this Court the said Lands being
already settled with a competent number of inhabitants to form a township.

BE IT ENACTED by HMis Excellency the Governor, Council & Repre-
sentatives in General Court assembled & by authority of the same that the
Northearly & Northeasterly part of the Town of Billerica with the inhab-
itants theron be & hereby are set off from the said Town of Billerica & erected
into a seperate & distinet Township by the name of Tewlksbury, the line or
houndary of said Town to take in two thirds of the land from Andover line
to Billerica Meeting House by a parallel line with Andover line extending
from Concord River to Wilmington line; and that the inhabitants of the said
Lands, Be & hereby are accordingly vested & endowed with all powers,
privileges, imminities & advantages which the inhabitants of any other Town
in this Provinee do or by Law ought to have, hold or enjov; & the inhabitants
of the said Town of Tewlksbury are hereby enjoyved & required within the
space of Two Years from the Publication of this Act to build & finish a suit-
able Meeting House for the Publick Worship of God, & that they procure &
seftle a learned orthodox Minister of good conversation & make provision for
his comfortable & honorable support provided nevertheless that the inhab-
itants of the said Town of Tewkshury be & hereby are obliged to pay their
respective proportion of all Provinee Taxes that are already assessed upon
the Tnhabitants of the aforesaid Town of Billerica hitherto arisen within the
saime,

December 17, 175 This Bill having been read throo several times, in
the House Representatives passed to be enacted.
1. QUINCY, Sp'kr.
December, 1734, This Bill having been read throo several times in
Couneil paszed to be enacted.
THADDEUS MASON, Dep. Sec'y.

December 23, 1734. By his Excellency, the Govner 1 consent to the
enacting of this bill.
Jn. BELCHER.
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Town and Church History

1734 — 1934

FIRST CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH

REVIOUS to incorporation Tewksbury was a part of Billerica, a large township which con-
P tained 25,000 acres extending east of the Concord and south of the Merrimack rivers to the

Andover line. It contained one church founded in 1663, situated near the center of the town,
The inconveniences of attending church to those living in this section of the town were many and
great. Roads were but cart or bridal paths,

In 1733 the inhabitants of the north and east part of Billerica asked that a meeting house
be erected for their accommodation or “that they may be set off” so “that they may maintain
preaching among themselves. January 17, 1734, the request “that they be set off” was reluctant
Iy granted.

December 23rd of the same vear, (1734) Tewksbury was incorporated, receiving 9.000 acres
of land and about 50 families,

Tewksbury's first town meeting
was held January 14, 1734, At a second
meeting held one month later, it was
voted that they build a meeting house
and a committee was chosen for that
purpose.  Unwilling, apparently, to
wait for the completion of a church, it
was  voted six months later “That
they have preaching in ve towne and
that they meet at ve house of John
French Jr. upon ye Sabbath Day and
worship God”. It is of interest to note,
that the John French house was situ-
ated in the eastern part of the town
near the late residence of Deacon
George Pillshury on Livingston Street,
A part of the building was subsequent-
Iy moved to the adjacent Bridges Farm
and formed the ell of the dwelling
house then standing there,

It was during this vear, 1733,
that the original church covenant was
adopted. It was signed by thirty-four
men and were as follows—

THE BRIDGES HOMESTEAD

Built in 1745 — Destroved by fire in 1916, — The Ell, maved
from Livingston Street was part of the John French House
where in 1734 the Town voled to meet to worship God.

DANIEL KITTREDGE STEPHEN 0SG00D THOMAS MARSHALL
JOHN BAILEY THOMAS KITTREDGE JOSKPH FROST
NATHAN SHED EPHRAIM KIDDER, Jr JOSEPH KIDDER
JOSEPH KITTREDGE ZECHARIAH HARDY JACOB KITTREDGE
SAMUEL HAZELTINE g JOHN SHED

JOHN KITTREDGE g st oA JOSEPH GRIMES
JAMES KITTREDGE JOHN PATTEN JOHN CHAPMAN
JACOB CORBY AMOS FOSTER ANDREW RICHARDSON
EDMUND FROST JACOB WINN DANIEL SHED
WILLIAM KITTREDGE THOMAS CLARK NATHAN HALL
KENDAL PATTEN TSAAC KITTREDGE JOHN TWISS

The election of a pastor for the new town and church was an event of great importance. We
are told in the records that a day was set apart by the town for fasting and praver that the
people might be guided in the choice of a minister. Scon after, Rev. Samson Spaulding of
Chelmsford, a young man 27 years of age, a graduate of Harvard College, was unanimously
chosen. He was ordained and installed November 23, 1737,
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The sermon was preached by Rev. Samuel Ruggles of Billerica from 2 Cr. XII; 14, “For I
seek not yours but you”. The hand of fellowship was given by Rev. Samson Stoddard of Chelms-
ford.

Mr. Spaulding served as active pastor of this church for ncarly fifty-five years. When eighty-
three years old a paralytic shock so impaired his health that he was unable to preach. He con-
tinued to hold the office until his death—December 13, 1796—a month and two days short of sixty
years, Judging from the records his pastorate was one of unbroken harmony. When too en-
feebled to preach, the town manifested its respect and affection by voting an allowance for his
support, settling with him as colleague Rey, Titus Theodore Barton, a graduate of Dartmouth
College.

In these early days the whole town was interested in all that pertained to the church. Al-
most the first business of the town meeting, was to vote what the mimisters’ salary should be for
the coming year, and all voters were taxed according to their means for the support of the
Church. This union of Church and State was dissolved about the yvear 1834 when Rev. Mr. Cog-
- gin received his last payvment direct from the Town.

During Mr. Spaulding’s ministry, we find as we look over the records many interesting items,
among them that in the long list of 700 names of children, who have been brought to the church
for “Baptism”, have always, unless the mother was a widow, been brought by the father and
the mother's name not mentioned. Capt. Peter Hunt—3 children, Tamar, Hannah and Timothy
July 20, 1740 and Dr. Jacob Kittredge, twins—Mary and Ruth were among them.

Church meetings were called when a member had given the church “just occasion of of-
fense”. The discouragement of gossip and the humility of the offending brother are noted.

It was voted that each member should contribute a certain amount to provide for the Sacra-
ment and each one with his name on the money given.

In the Record of Marriages, the amount is given that was paid for each service, varying from

“§1.00 up. The “Town” evidently receiving the fee rather than the minister.

Mr. Barton, Mr. Spaulding’s colleague was ordained here Oct. 22, 1792 and remained until
 May 19, 1803. Rev. Jacob Coggin of Woburn, a graduate of Harvard College was ordained
S Oct. 22, 1806.

The church edifice, that was burned in 1919, was : ; Ry
built during his pastorate in the year 1824, At its dedi- | : -
cation, Mr. Coggin preached from Hag. 11:9. “The
glory of this latter house shall be greater than the
former”. The ancient church which had stood for near-
Cly a century was situated several yards in front of the
newer church and was removed. “There were galleries
- on both sides and one end. The singers occupied the
- gallery at the rear. A single and double bass viol, two
~ wviolins, a clarionet and bassocon were used to accom-
| pany the singers. The clock in front of the gallery,
was presented by Mr. Jessz Trull of North Tewksbury.

In 1824 a bell was placed in the tower and the next

. year it was exchanged for a larger one.
It was during the year of 1842 that the Baptist
- Church at North Tewksbury was formed, sixty-eight
- persons going there from this church. Six years later
several families from the Northwest part of the town
withdrew to unit: with the High Street Church in
Lowell.

In 1843, because of ill health, Mr. Coggin gave up
the pulpit to Rev. Samuel Lamson who occupied it as
“stated supply” for two and a half years, giving gen-
~ eral satisfaction.

In 1847, Rev. Moses Kimball was settled as col-

FIRST CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH
g 4 : b Dedicated in 1824,
league with Mr. Coggin. He was dismissed two years pp. frst Meeting House was built in 1736.

later. Rev. Mr. Lamson again supplied until 1851,

During 1850-51 alterations were madz in the church building, the side galleries being re-
moved and the walls frescoed

In 1832, Rev. Richard Tolman, a native of Dorchester, Massachusetts was installed as a
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second colleague with Mr. Coggin. December 12, 1854, Mr. Coggin’s death occurred. He was a
genial, tactful man, much beloved and sincerely mourned by his people. Rev. Richard Tolman
continued with the church until July, 1870. He resigned on account of ill health. At a meeting
held by the church to take action on his resignation, several resolutions were passed that ex-
pressed much affection and esteem for him during the seventeen years of his laithful pastoral
labors among them.

The Parsonage was built in 1852 and occupied by Rev. Mr. Tolman and his family upon their
removal here. The home of Rev. Jacob Coggin was directly across the common from the church,
the house now owned and occupied by Mrs. Henry M. Billings.

The well-known Spaulding house was built and occupied by our first pastor, Rev. Sampson
Spaulding. It has sheltered six generations of that family.

The ministry of Rev. S. F. French began Nov. 1, 1871 and continued for eleven years. Mr.
French is remembered as a faithful and devoted pastor and preacher and it was with much regret
that his resignation was accepted. In 1871, the building in the rear of the audience room, con-
taining vestry and hall, was built at a cost of nearly six thousand dollars.

Mr. French was followed by Rev. Frank II. Kasson of Boston. Mr. Kasson was hired for one
vear and afterward installed, Oct. 16, 1884, Besides his duties here, Mr. Kasson edited the “Gold-
en Rule”, a religious paper published in Boston. The double work proving too great a burden,
he resigned [rom his work here June 23, 1886,

Oct. 17, 1886, Mrs. Betsey Lang of South Boston presented to the church one of the E.
Howard Watch and Clock Co.’s Church Tower Clocks.

In 1889, the church received a legacy of $35000 from the estate of Mrs. Lang. A legacy of
three thousand dollars was at the same time left to the High School with the condition that
should the High School be abolished the $3000 revert to the Church.

In 1904, the High School was given up and this amount was by Mr. Enoch Foster, trustee,
paid over to the Church.

In 1899, a legacy of $500 was received from the estate of Mr. Chas. Littlefield of Lowell, a
former resident of this town and a highly esteemed member of this church.

A few years later a legacy of $1000 was paid us from the estate of Mr. Luther Twiss.  Mr.
Twiss resided in North Tewksbury but was a member and regular attendant of this church.

Smaller legacies, various sums of money and gifts for the furnishing or adornment of the
church and vestry have at various times been reccived and are gratefully remembered. Many of
these gifts have been from non-residents, who in early life were associated with this church and
have since had a heartfelt interest in its welfare. The first gift of which we have mention is a
Christening Bowl, from Josiah Brown in 1825,

In 1886, Rev. James Alexander, a graduate of Bangor and of Andover Seminaries was hired
to minister to the Church for one year. At its close he was by unanimous vote, asked to remain
as settled pastor. He accepted the call and was installed Feb. 28, 1888, During this year the So-
ciety of Christian Workers was formed and had an average attendance of between forty and
fifty members. This Society afterward adopted the Constitution and By-Laws of the Y.P.C.E.5.

Tt was during Mr. Alexander's pas-
torate and largely through his instru-
mentality and under his supervision
that our church took on its attractive ap-
pearance. Something over three thou-
sand dollars was raised and the memo-
rial windows, platform and tablet most
generously presented by their respective
donors,

Soon after the church was called on
to take action on Mr., Alexander’s resig-
nation and he was dismissed May 10,
1896,

Mr. Alexander’s strong personality,
his interest in all matters pertaining to
the Church and the town are grateiully
remembered. In the records of the
council called to advise on his dismissal,
we read “In approving the disselution of

the pastorate of the Rev. James Alex- FIRST CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH
ander over the Congregational Church Re-dedicated 1896, Destroved by five Oct. 13, 1918
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in Tewksbury, the Council very gladly bears witness to his faithfulness, scholarship and Christian
spirit and rejoices in the success of his pastorate of almost ten years, as testified by this people
and seen in the growth of the church in membership, financial strength and spiritual life. His
ministry has been one of attractive and effectual preaching and of consecrated labor and has re-
sulted in bringing this church to a condition of unusual prosperity.”

Oct. 27, 1896, Rev. Elbridge Whiting of Auburndale was hired to serve as pastor and re-
mained until April 12, 1899. Mr. Whiting was a pleasant, genial man and by his pastoral work
brought families who seldom attended church to become regular attendants. e took special in-
terest in the C. L. Society. New By-Laws for the church were adopted about this time.

Our next pastor was Rev. J. Herbert Yeoman who commenced his work here Aug, 1, 1899,
‘After laboring here for two and a half years, he rsigned to become pastor of the I'ree Evangelical
Congregational Church of Providence, R. I.

Oct. 1, 1903, Rev. Wm. J. Minchin became our pastor and labored faithfully for two and a
half years. In 1904 through the influence and under the direction of Mrs. Minchin, our pastor’s
‘wife, The Woman's Missionary Society was formed. It has become a successful branch of our
church work, Mr. Minchin was especially interested in work among young men. Receiving a
call which would bring him in touch with several hundred young people each vear, he accepted
it to become pastor of the Congregational Church of Ames, Towa.

Communion was held the last Sabbath Mr. Minchin was with us and our individual Com-
munion service was, through him, presented to this church in memory of Mrs, Mary J. Foster
by her sister, Miss Frances Munroe.

Rev. Thomas G. Langdale was chosen as our next pastor and commenced his labors Nov, 1,
1906, serving nearly two years. During his ministry the Y.P.S.C. Endeavor, which had been
given up for several years, was reorganized with Junior Intermediate and Senior Departments.

In 1908, by unanimous vote, Rev. Sarah A. Dixon was asked to become our pastor and was
hired for one year. Her interest in and enthusiasm for her work has been felt in every depart-
ment of our church. As we look back over the years we marvel that so much has been accom-
plished. At a largely attended business meeting of the church held in August, 1909, it was voted
to invite Miss Dixon to become the permanent pastor of the church.

As nearly as can be ascertained,
the Sunday School was established
something over one hundred vears ago.

The dedication of the present
church was held on June 8, 1923, with
hefitting exercises,

Amaong the list of Superintendents
we find the names of Deacon Oliver
Clark, Deacon James Bailey, Mr. Jacob
Coggin (son of Rev. Jacob Coggin),
John F. Spaulding (grandson of our
first minister), Dr. Wm. Lathrop, Mr.
George Trull, Deacon Enoch Foster,
*Mr. Henry Learned, Mr. Irving M.
Locke, Deacon H. A. Page, and many
others who have served us acceptably.

Since the formation of the church
twenty-four good and honorable men
have served us as deacons. Among the
. names are Isaac I{jttredgc, John PRESENT CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH
Spaulding, Oliver Clark, John Jaques, Dedicated June 8, 1923
James Bailey, Abel Marshall, Zepha-
niah P. Foster, John F. Spaulding, Porter Mears, N. F. Frost, George Pillsbury, Enoch Foster.

We read in Rev. Mr. Tolman's Historical Discourse of Jan. 9, 1859—“As a kind of Appendiz
to this Historical Account of the church—for more than a century the only church in town, and
so spreading its benign and salutary influence over its whole length and breadth—it is worthy of
- remark that, while we have imposed no burden upon the government in the way of generating
criminals to be cenvicted and punished—no one of the inhabitants ever having been charged with
a capital erime, or been a tenant of the state prison—we have contributed, from our limited popu-
lation, no mean share to the general weal in the supply of the learned professions; having
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furnished the public with five clergymen, three lawyers, and, as to physicians, they seem to have
been indigencus to our soil, springing up in this region of the salubrious pines, as willows by the
water-courses. There have originated here no less than thirteen doctors of the name of Kittredge,
three of the name of Brown, besides Doctors Stickney, Whittemore, Shedd and Frost,—a most
iuxuriant crop of professors of the healing art, for so small a field.”

TAKEN FROM CHURCH RECORDS

DECEMBER 17, 1810, Rev., Sarah A, Dixon was
installed as Pastor of the Tewksbury Congregational
Church.

APRIL 29, 1917. At the morning service, Rev.
Sarah A. Dixon resigned as pastor of this church.
Her pastorate was one of devoted service to the
chureh and community,

JUNE 10, 1817. The Committee on Resolutions
in their report state:

“That we sincerely regret her resignation and as
a church our prayvers and love will alwayvs follow her,

“That during her pastorate here she has built
up the Sunday School to double its original mem-
bership, adding 30 or 33 per cent to the church mem-
bership, and has brought the communily as a whole
to a higher standard and has in several cases in-
creased the personal obligations of her people.

“She has been reaponsible for many improvements
in the church and its property in reorganizing its
committess and in the promotion of its fellowship.”

DECEMBER 16, 1917. At a special meeting of
the church it was voted to extend a call to Rev.
Henry B, Mason to become pastor of this church.

OCTORER 13, 1918, We find — “Between the
hours of two and three this morning, fire was dis-
coverad in the kitchen of the Congregational Church
which completely destroyed the building. Contents
were a total losgs.”

Although nearly sixteen yvears ago, to many of us
this calamity ig only too vivid. The awful conflaga-
tion destroyed our splendid old Church with its
beautiful memorial windows and other wvaluables
that never could be replaced, the Town Hall also,
and threatened the destruction of the surrounding
buildings.

We would, if space permitted, like to copy here
four beautiful poems that were written at this time,
that typified the feelings of the townspeople and
many others who loved the old Church.
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Two of these poems were written by Miss Hannah
J. Chandler—"Thoughts on the Passing of the 0ld
Chureh™ and “The Memorial Windows in the Old
Chureh at Tewksbury”., The third written by Ger-
trude Louise Small—* The 0ld Town Cloek”, The
fourth written by Miss Helen A, Oszgood “The Old
Churceh™.

We remember how our people rallied, led by their
pastor, Rev. Henry B, Mason and by the records we
note a service was held in Pickering Hall, Oect, 20,
1918, and they went bravely on choosing a building
committes to plan for a new church.

On the chureh records, May 10, 1923, “Ground
was broken March 15th, 1922, and on May 13th the
corner stone was laid by the Grand Lodge of Masons
in Massachusetts under the escort of Wamesit Lodge
A B & A M. of Tewhksbury,

NOVEMEBER 20, 1326, At the morning service,
Rev, Henry B. Mason resigned as pastor of this
church.

MARCH 31, 1927, “It was voted to call Rev. John
Cummings of Hamptlon, N. H., to fill our vacant pas-
torate. Mr. Cummings accepted this call, his duties
as Pastor to begin the 15th of May 1827."

MARCH 31, 1928, “Tt was voted that the Stand-
ing Committee be aunthorized to have a suitable plate
placed on the organ in recognition of the gift of Mrs.
Annie D, Fhelps and all others who contributed to-
wards our new organ.”

Throughout the long history of the chureh, the
contribution and efforts of the Ladies’ Aid Society,
Mizsionary Society, and other church organizations
have been one of unstinted serviece and devotion.

MARCH 1§, 1928, A beautiful service was held
this afternoon (Sunday) in the church, to appro-
priately dedicate the new organ. “A Gift of those
who love the Lord. For the greater glory of His
house and service.”
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COMPLIMENTS
OF
A FRIEND

NOTHING FRETENTIOUS— ‘ VOGUE BEAUTY SHOP
Just the Best in Home-UCooked Food served in onr ‘ MRS. D. M. WENDEN, Prop.
Restaurant and sold at our Food Exchange. |
| We Specialize in
Lowell Women’s Exchange SCALP TREATMENTS - MANICURIST
AEBARRYTN Y ) et
All Forms of Beauty Culture
Rendezvous Restaurant | Except Permanent Waving
24 Middle Street Lowell
Room 304 Sun Building

MARGARET . WARNER, Owner - o .
: phe P9\
North Tewksbury, Mass. f EI{;} one 6769-W

Compliments of

Derby Electric Motors Co.

ELECTRICAL CONSTRUCTION - T.ONVELL FURNACE CO.

AND SUPPLIES DANIEL A, MacFAGEN

40 Middlz St. Lowell, Mass.

paE . 2 Queen Street
3C96—TELS.—3097

Lowell Massachus >tts
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“Nash and Lafayette

CARS ARE BUILT Compliments of
TO STAY BUILT”

Lowell Five Cent
Savings Bank

Oy

NASH
Middlesex Corporation

31 John Streect

1688 Matket Strees Lowell - - - - - Massachusctts

Lowell - - - - - Massachusetts

Compliments of

THINK OF US AS

» = i | gh k b FO b b Y d
City Institution o tewksburysLutnberiicar

for Savings RUSSELL
LUMBER CO.

200 Central Street

Lowellis = -t Massachuselils We Handle REX ROOfiﬂg




purchased land and built a one and one-half story par-
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FIRST [ BAPTIST : CHUREH

REVIOUS to 1842 there were three families of Baptistic views residing in the northern part
P of the town, by the name of Farmer, Wood, and Puffer, who had been praying lor the es-

tablishment of a Baptist Church there. In the above year the First Baptist church in Low-
ell held revival services under Elder Knapp and one of those instructed was Mrs. Mehitable
Twiss who persuaded her neighbors to attend the meetings, among them being Jesse Trull and
his sons, Jesse L., Herbert, Larkin and Nathaniel. The latter was then in the midst of his spring
sawing, five hundred logs were waiting, and the
spring water was running to saw them. DBut like
an irregistible avalanche the religious power overcame
all excuses and he yielded to the urgent request of his
brother Jesse.”

These and several others joined the Lowell
church, but continued to attend the church at the
Centre for a time, but later withdrew to the Town
Hall. The following vear, 1843, they organized the
First Baptist Church in Tewksbury with sixty-eight
members and erected their building on land donated
by Jefferson Farmer. Less than three yvears later they

sonage of stone,

Their first pastor was Rev. Joseph Graves, and
first deacons were Nathaniel Trull and Abijah Upham,
who served forty and fourteen years respectively,

In 1836 a reed organ was installed and soon a
baptistry put in. The church was, in 1867, moved a
little northwestward onto land given by Jesse L. Trull
and the house displaced became the residence of Jahn
L. Moore. Lxtensive repairs and improvements to
church and parsonage were made in 1884 and later an
organ and ladies’ parlor were given by Sarah Celeste
Wood of Philadelphia.

From
time to  FIRST BAPTIST CHURCHDedicated 1845
time gen-
erous amounts have bezn spent on the property until
now each new pastor comes to a well appointed church
and his family to a cozy home.

The church has always been an enthusiastic sup-
porter of missions and youth is always well represent-
ed 1 its membership,

[ts longest pastorate was that of Rev. E. W.
Pride—nearly thirteen years—and its peak of mem-
bership (145) was attained under Pastor Raymond,

Among the names on its roll of honor, who “do rest
from their labors” are:—Twiss, Fiske, Hardy, Bout-
well, Kendall, Flint, French, Livingston, Morey, and
many others beloved. One of its deacons, John L.
Moore, lived ninety-nine years and one month.

LIST OF PASTORS—Joseph M. Graves, David Burroughs,
Lorenzo Tandy, John E. Wood, Clifton Fletcher, Albert H. IF.
Palmer, Eugene H. Thomas, George T. Raymond, Ed. W.
Pride, L. W. Frink, A. E. Reynolds, Chas. L. Pierce, Harvey
H. Bishop, John G. Grace, G. I. Camp, C. L. Frederick, Elmer
E. Loux.

LIST OF DEACONS-—Nathaniel Trull, Abijah Upham,
Lewis Fiske, Thos, Bridge, Peter C. Shedd, Jesse W. Trull,
A. Monroe Kendall, Albert J, Trull, John L. Moore, Frank B.
PRESENT BAPTIST CHURCH Trull, James 3. Fiint, John Trull, Fred L. Hardy, G. Thorndike

Re-dedicated 1882 Trull, Everett 8. Boutwell, Nathaniel W. Trull.
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THE OBLATE NOVITIATE

HE FOUNDATION of the novitiate of the Immaculate Heart of DMary at Tewksbury,
Tthough still within living memory, enjoys, none the less, the prestige of a 1ong and honorable

history. The year 1883 saw the opening of the first novitiate house, with the Reverend J. k.
Emery, O. M. 1., Master of Novicez. Religious communities can generally look in retrospect to
days of humble beginnings, and that tenth of November, fifty-one vears ago, viewed in the light
of subsequent events, has borne witnzss to the truth of the evangelical parable of the steady
growth of the mustard seed, which in course of time became a mighty tree of strength and lofty

stature.

The first novitiate property consisted of a house, a barn, and a large tract of land, which
had comprised the Kittredge estate,
previous to its purchase by the Oblates
for religions purposes. The first scho-
lastic novice received his habit on Nov-
ember 22, 1883—the hrst of a long
series of similar receptions in aiter
years.,

In the following February, Arch-
bishop Williams of Boston assigned
the Catholic parish of St. Andrew’s in
North Billerica to the charge of the
Oblate Fathers of the Tewksbury no-
vitiate—a work to which the Fathers
devoted themselves with characteristic
zeal for a period of almost twenty
Vears.

A memorable year was 1888.—0On
September third a Juniorate was estab-

lished by the Oblates in Tewksbury, in THE OBLATE NOVITIATE
order to provide a course of classical Dedieated Nov, 12, 1886, — The First Novitiate House occupied
studies for thase who. though aspiring in 1883 was destroyed by fire Feb. 7, 1895

to entrance into their community had
not vet received sufficient preparatory training. On October twenty-eighth, the earnest desire
of the several Irish families of Tewksbury, for the privilege of attending religious services in
the novitiate chapel, was actually realized, when the Reverend Father Emery, O. M. 1., celebrated
the first Mass in the presence of a congregation which filled the little oratory to capacity.

On February 7, 1895, fire completely destroyed the house and barn. The Town of Tewks-
bury was then without means of averting the disaster, while the nearby lake, frozen over at that
season of the vear, might otherwise have been used to save at least a portion of the ruined prop-
erty. On the farther side of Chandler Street, however, stood a large farmhouse, which was owned
by the novitiatz, and which was immediately made to serve as a temporary house. Thus eighteen
students were spared the possible necessity of returning to their homes, while the people were
permitted to hear Mass in the small chapel until the Spring of 1896.

The present novitiate, begun twenty days after the destruction of the old house and barn,
was formally opened November 12, 1896, when the Reverend Father Campeau, O. M. I, the
newly appointed master of novices, offered a solemn high Mass of thanksgiving to commemorate
the second life, so to speak, of the ever-increasing Oblate community. 1898 marks the celebration
of another Mass in the chapel fitted up at the Massachusetts State Infirmary, which, since then,
has been regularly attended by the priests of the novitiate. The untold good resulting trom their
spiritual ministrations among the unfortunate inmates and patients of this immense establish-
ment, is a glowing page in the history of Tewksbury, which can never go unremembered,

Page Thirty
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Phone 6140

Ann Marie Beauty Shoppe
REALISTIC PERMANENT WAVING

Beauty Culture in all its Branches

Bradley Building
147 Central Street Lowell, Mass.

Compliments of

Lowell Soda & Spring
Water Co.
BECHARD BROS., Props.
HIGH GRADE BEVERAGES

605 Merrimack St Lowwell, Mass,

Tel, 980

Weinbeck Funeral Home
Est, 1891

Licenzed in Mass. and N, H.

192 Wentworth Ave.

Tel. 515

T.owell, Mass.

John J]. Sullivan

TAILOR and IMPORTER

High Grade Custom Clothes

At Reasonable Prices

Bradley Blde.
147 Central St
Lowell, Mass.

Textile Bldg.
99 Chauncy St.

Boston, Mass,

Compliments of

Harry Prescott Graves

Lowell, Mass.

CONGRATULATIONS
to the
TOWN of TEWKSBURY

on their 200th Anniversary

Lowell Buick Co.

Only Authorized Dealers
— for —
EUICK — PONTIAC
and G.M.C. Trucks
SALES and SERVICE

G1-69 E. Merrimack St
Tel. 3137

ILowell, Mass.

s
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T

Telephone 109 Established 1893

ARCHAMBAULT
Funeral Home

COMPLETE FUNERAL SERVICE

Ambulance Servic:

205 Pawtucket St. Lowell, Mass,

Joseph Mullin
COAL — COKE

9533 Gorham Street
44 Merrimack St., Hildreth Bldg., Lobby

Lowell, Mass,

Congratulations to the residents of
Tewksbury on the town's

200th Anniversary,

Sullivan Bros.

Printers Since Wilson's Time

238 Central St. Lowell

Telephone 7500

Compliments of

Richardson & Shugrue

TIRE and SERVICE STATION

251 Church St Lowell, Mass.

Telephone 220

FAMOUS

Nan Cabot Candies
bc to 50c pzr box

Daollar Value for 33c per box

O sale in Lowell at
108 MERRIMACK STREET

CONGRATULATIONS, TEWKSBURY !
Gagnon’s
The Department Store

Where FFamily Dollars Buy More

Compliments of

Purity Spring Water

B. F. CUTTER, Prop.

71 Canton St.
Tel. Conn.

Lowell, Mass.
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Again the month of November—this time in 1904—was outstanding in novitiate life. In that
ear the Scholasticate was opened at Tewksbury, whereby it became possible for those whose year
of novitiate had passed, to continue here their studies for the priesthood. The Juniorate, mean-
while, had been transferred to Buffalo, New York. The first ordination to the priesthood in the
present chapel was conducted by the then Coadjutor Archbishop O'Connell of Boston, in Feb-
ruary, 1907. A new scholasticate was opened in Washington, D. C., on November 8, 1916, leav-
mg the house in Tewksbury simply a novitiate; in this capacity, it has functioned to the present
day. The pzople mncluded within the parochial limits of the Tewksbury parish, which comprises,
roughly, the territory bounded by Wamesit, Silver Lake, East Billerica and North Tewksbury,
are now adequately accommodated, threc Masses being celebrated each Sunday morning at the
novitiate chapel, namely, at 5:45, 8:30, and 10:30 A. M.

Of recent memory is the pastoral charge of the Reverend
Robert J. McCoy, O. M. 1., whose death in 1926 was lamented by
all who ever came to know the excellent qualities of this truly
admirable priest.

The Oblate novitiate of today is a splendid memorial to the
seli-sacrificing labors of those who struggled to establish it as a
permanent and vital force in the community of Tewksbury, with
which it joins in this, the second centennial of its civic incorpora-
tion. The celebration of this event is not restricted to the sur-
rounding portion of Massachusetts alone. Every Oblate who has
ever gone from the novitiate holds Tewksbury dear to his heart.
It recalls to him the scenes of many of the happiest days of his
long period of preparation for the priestly goal of hiz ambitions.

Under the present Superior, the Reverend Charles IY. Barry,
. M. I., the condition of the novitiate house had been greatly im-
proved, both interiorly and exteriorly, while the grounds have
been heautified to present a very pleasing appearance both to the
visitor and to the resident of Tewksbury,

REV. ROBERT J. McCOY, O.M.L On this occasion of anniversary festivity, the Oblate novitiate

Born Nov. 28, 1880. expresses its heartiest appreciation of the fine spirit which has

Ordained June 13, 1912. Pastor  always existed between it and the Town of Tewksbury, and joins

from 1915 until his death. the people of the community in welcoming into being this 200th

Died Nov, 14, 1926. yvear of the existence of the town of which they are so justly proud

to be called c¢itizens. The Oblates will never forget to honor the

town which harbors the novitiate of their province ; indeed, they seize this opportunity of declar-

ing their sincerest hopes and best wishes for the increased and continued advance of prosperity,

lovalty, and mutual good will, which are precisely the characteristic marks of civie progress and
of assured suecess in every municipal undertaking,

Page Thirty-one



1734 e Ye Towne Book 1931_1

METEIOBIST “EFISCORAL T CHEREL

URING the latter part of 1910 the residents of South Tewksbury decided that a place of
worghip was needed nearer than Tewksbury Centre or Wilmington. After several attempts
to secure a minister, Dr. Raymond Withey of the Wilmington M. E. Church came and held

services on Sunday afternoons in the homes of the people, and in the summer time held meet-
ings in the open air. Our next minister was Rev. Van Dyke, and on July 5, 1911 a local organiza-
tion was formed, land was purchased on the State Road below Foster's Corner on the curve near
State Street, and open air meetings were held on the property.

The guestion soon arose as to what denomination the future church should be. There were
several denominations represented in the organization, but since it was a Methodist minister that
came to our aid when we needed a re-
ligious leader, it was decided that we
should have a Methodist Episcopal
Church, On Nov, 5, 1911, a local Me-
thodist Episcopal board was  formed
with Dr. Arthur P. Sharp of the Lynn
District presiding. During the summer
our first Sunday School was conducted.

Our next pastor was Dr. Hager-
man, who came to us in June 19104, In
two wecks he had a building committ.e
working, and arrangements to build a
church as soon as possible were made,
Since the land then held was not con-
sidered to be in a suitable lacation for
the new church, it was sold, and more
land was purchased at the corner of
South and Brown Streets. The church
building was started in September, METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH
1914, and in November of the same Dedicated May 7, 1316
vear the first services were held in the
building although it was far from finished. The planks which were used in the open air services
were used for seats. In March, 1915, a Ladies’ Aid Society was formed, and the ladies worked
hard to raise the funds needed to complete the building. The church was dedicated on May 7,
1816 with Dr. Webster H. Powell of the Lynn Dlstrict presiding.

Rev. George Phillips was pastor from 1918 to 1922, and during this time a floor was laid,
the sides of the building were sheathed. a platform was built, and other improvements were made.
In April, 1922 the Rev. William F. Preston became the pastor and soon electiric lights were in-
stalled. Through his efforts more land was purchased, a basement was put in, and the church
was moved from the point where it was facing on Brown Street to its present position facing on
South Street. The church was then plastered, painted and re-dedicated in December 1925,

Im April, 1926 the Rev. Stead Thornton was appointed pastor. He was the last of the Wil-
mington pastors to serve our church, for the following year we bocame a student charge, and
sinee that time we have had our own pastors,

The first of the student pastors was Rev, Roger 12, Garland, and while he was with us many
more voung people joined the church.  In 1028 “with Rev. Malcolm Garland as pastor, we had a
furnace installed and a number of stained glass windows were given in memory of the deceased
members of church families.

From 1928-1931 Rev. W. Henry Shillington was the pastor, and the work in the church and
with the young people continued to grow. From 1931-1932 the pastor was Rev. Harland S. Evans
who was a fine worker with the boys and voung men. Since 1932 the pastor has been Rev.
Gordon S. Kenison, under whose leadership the grounds in {ront of the church have been cleared
and graded, sidewalks laid out and a lawn planted.

We are looking forward to vears of increasing service and effectiveness.
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CONGRATULATIONS
TO THIE
TOWN OF TEWKSBURY

an your
200th Anniversary

by
LOWELL
COMMERCIAL COLLEGE

on our Tath Anniversary

Fall Term begins on September 4

226 Central St. Phone 43

BEST WISHES
—T0O—
TOWN of TEWKSBURY

Middlesex Machine Co.

Lee Street—TLowell, Mass,

E. I. STILLINGS
COMPLETE LAUNDRY
SERVICE

B. & L. Laundry
Billerica 874-—TELS—Lowell 363

Goods Called For and Delivered

“Dayton Thorobred Tires”

Myers Auto Supply Co.

SIDNEY T. HEATHCOCK, Treas.

GASOLINE, OILS and GREASES

A0-70 Church Street Lowell

Phone 900

Fairburn’s Markets
FOR FOODS

LOWELL and LAWRENCE, MASS,

Tel, 2650

Candyland Confectionery, Inc.

The Home of Quality

HOME-MADE CANDIES, ICE CREAM
AND LUNCHEOQONS

Stores in
——LOWELL, MASS.
173 Central St., 190 Merrimack St.,
—and—

WOBURN, MASS,
438B Main St.

FITCHEBURG, MASS.
430 Main St.

MANCHESTER, N. H.
956 Elm St

Visit our new Dutch Tea Room

124 Merrimack St. Lowell, Mass.
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CONGRATULATIONS
TO

TOWN OF TEWKSBURY

Dr. Samuel A. Dibbons

Bissonnette Motor Sales

CHRYSLER — PLYMOUTH

230 Central St. Lowell

Telephone 4142

COMPLIMENTS OF A FRIEND

— TO

TOWN OF TEWKSBURY

BEST WISHES

TOWN OF TEWKSBURY

Lydon Catering Co.
150 Appleton Street Lowell
Telephone 4934

Greetings. . .

To Tewksbury Friends

BYAM BROS. LOWELL, MASS.

Barlow’s Market
Iistablished 1905

Dealers in

MEAT, GROCERIES AND
PROVISIONS

25 John Street Lowell, Mass.

4240—Tels.—4241

John A. McEvoy

LOWELL'S OPTICIAN
Eyes Examined
Glasses Made and Repaired

68 Merrimack St. Lowell
Telephone 1798

Charles F. Young
ARTISTIC DECORATORS
For Fairs, Festivals, Balls and Public

Celebrations
Personal Supervision of All Work

625 Central St. Lowell, Mass.
Telephonz 1548
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CONGREGATION BNAI SHOLOM

'CON-GRRGATION B'nai Sholom

and Community Center is located

in South Tewksbury, in Shaw-
sheen River Park. For the past twen-
ty-three years, a large colony of Jew-
- ish people have made their homes in
this section.

In August of 1932 some of the
older residents, realizing the neceszity
of providing a place of worship and a
community center for their people, met
to discuss thiz problem. They [ound
that their people were anxious to have
a local place of worship and that en-
thusiazsm was high.

Land was purchased on the cor-
ner of Oalk and Heath Streets and in
July, 1933 construction commenced on
a building twenty-cight by filty feet, CONGREGATION B'NAT STTOLOM

In July 1934 the building was com- Dedicated July 8, 1934
pleted and furnished. July 8th the

building was dedicated with appropriate ceremonies and with a large attendance, including offi-
cials of the town.

The Sisterhood of the Congregation B'nai Sholom consist of thirty-five active workers. The
- Junior Group consist of sixty-eight boys and girls above fifteen years of age, who conduct their
social affairs,
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Extracts from Official Records

T a General Town Meeting January ye 14th
@4 173476 Lt. Daniel Kittredge—2Moderalor.
{Lt. Daniel Kittredg
(Mr. Joseph Hunt junr
(Mr. Joseph Kittredg
(Mr. John FPrench
{Mr. Nathall Pattin
Town Clerk—Nathaniel Pattin
Town Treasurer—Nathan Shed
Constable—REdmond Frost

The persons above named that was Chosen to any
office of which ve Law Requires an oath were sworn
accordingly.

At a General Town Meeting January ye 31—1734/5

Lt. Daniel Kittredg—Moderator

Then Cose a Com-
mittee to Treat with Billerica Committee Concerning
Settling ve Line between Billerica and Tewksbury.

Committee men Lt. Daniel Kittredg—Mr., Samuel
Hunt junr—Mr, John French.

Voted a rate of thirty pound to Defray ve Towns
Charges to be made by ye last assesement in Bi}le-
rica.—then Chose a Committes to view old meeting
Honse frame and ordered ad committee to make
Report to ve Town at ve adjournment of sald meet-
ing.

lE_:Th.c-_n Adjourned the meeting to ve tenth of Feb-
ruary next—I1734,/4.

FERBRUARY 13, 1734 —Voted ye committee (last
chose) Should be fully empowred to act in ye behalf
of Tewksbury in settling ve line hetween Billerica
and Tewksbury according to ye Corts Act.

Voted that they would Build a new meeting house.

MARCH 31, 1735, Voled that they would not act
on ye first article in the Warrant at this time which
was to agree of what bigness their meeting House
should be. Adjourned to April 7, 1735

Vole that ve Selectmen be empowred to squadron
out its Highways to each Surveyor and propotion
their sum of money or work when they set to make
ve Highway rate.

Vote that Mr. Enggah should be ye artis to find
off Center of their Town,

Voted that there should be so much of that rate
{which hath already been grnated to Deiray sd
Towns Charges) taken as shall be necessary to pro-
cure two Books for records.

Voted that would Sing that way that is now called
ve new way then choze Joseph Bailey & Abraham
Stickney to tune and read yve pslamas.

JUNE 30, 1735 adjourned to July %, 1735, Voted
that they would build a Meeting House foriy eight
feet long & thirty six feet wide and twetithree feet
high hetween joynls.

SEPTEMBER 28, 1735, Voted that they would
hire preaching in town.

Voted that they would meet at ye house of John
French junr npon ye Sabbath Day to worship God.

NOVEMBER 7, 1735. Voted that ye stated time
to begin ve public worship on ye Sabbath Daws shall
be ten a clock in ye morning.

Voted that ye time of intermission between exer-
cises should be one hour and a half.

MARCH 30, 1736. Voted that their Meeting House
shall stand upon ye land of Nathanial Richardson
nere a small pine tree marked with R then chose a
Committee to let out their Meeting House to be
framed and finished.
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JUNE 10, 1736. Voted that they would raise
their Meeting House by a Teacle,

Voted a town rate for building the Meeting House
of two hundred pounds.

SEPTEMBER 13, 1736. Voted that the town ap-
point a fast on the twentieth day of November in
order for calling a DMinister.

Voted to chose a committee to reckon with the
Town Treasurer.

NOVEMBER 22, 1736, Voted that Mr. Sampson
Spaulding of Chelmsford should be our Minister
upon his excepting of our choice.

Voted for salary of Mr. Sampson Spaulding yearly
120 pounds according to the valuation of grain as it
gos now reve among us: Indian corn at six shillings
the bushell, Ric at eight shillings the bushell and
wheat at ten shillings the bushell.

Voted for his settlement 300 pounds.,

QCTOBER 6, 1737. Voted that Mr. Sampson
Spaulding of Chelmsford whom yve have made choice
on for their minister should be ordained on the six-
teenth day of November next.

Voted that the house of BSergt John Frenchs
should be the place of Entertainment for ministers
and messengers al said ordination.

DECEMBER 22, 1737, Voted to seat their Meet-
ing House and to have respect both to money and
age in seating the Meeting IHouse to age all above
six.

Voted to seat the Meecting House by one head,
Real and Personal going back to the first assesment
that was made in Tewksbury.

FEBRUARY 16, 1738, Voted against providing
any money for entertainment of visiting ministers
and schollars at the ordination.

MAY 16, 1738 Voted to have the outside of the
Meeting House finighed.

MAY 23, 1738 Voled not to pay Mr. James Kit-
treg jr and Mr. Samuel Hunt jr for their services at
the Great and General Court. (later allowed one hun-
dred pounds),

MARCH 10, 1740, Voted and excepted of the
highway where it is now trod between the lands of
Sergt James Kittredges and John Pattens tne both
being present at said meeting and gave their con-
sent, (the Town voted and accepted Bridal way one
pole wide that would run through land owned by in-
dividuals, in addition to the Town highways).

DECEMBER 10, 1740, Voted that Stephen Osgood
of Tewksbury should serve the Town of Tewksbhury
for a school master ye remainder of this year. (Mr.
Osgood thus becoming the first school teacher).

MARCH 2, 1740. (After electing the principal
officers) adjourned one hour (after elected other of-
ficerg) adjourned to the house of Lt. William Kit-
tredge and (finished the remainder of the Town
business).

MARCH 2, 1741. Voted to give Lt. Wm Kittredge
160 pounds to finish the Meeting House in 1742,
(Noted that in accepting highways the articles would
read “from ——— house to the Meeting Honse).

MARCH 7, 1742, Voted to allow to Wm Brown
Town Treasurer one pound lawful money for his
gervices in said office the year past.

DECEMEBER 6, 1743, Voted to have a Writing
and Reading School in the Town.

MARCH 5, 1743, Voted to see that the fish have
free passing up and down those streams where they
usually pass to spawn.
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Voted to allow Mr. —— one pound five ghil-
lings old tenor for his trouble in getting the 20
pounds the Town promised for hringing up
& poor child to the age of eighteen vears.

MARCH 4, 1744, (Noted “& the persons were
chosen into office by ve persons then and there as-
gembled by ye majority of written wvotes™).

(This ia the first mention in the records as to
the method of electing town officials).

Voted a consideration of ten pounds old tenor to
ye Westwardly part of said Town for their not hav-
ing any benefit of ye town school master.

(On page 57 of ihe first town book appear names
of persons and amounts asseased for Ministers' Rate
and Town Rate).

SEPTEMBER 23, 1745, Voted to erect a bridge
~across Shawshin river at the npper end of Mr. Daniel
Kittredges meadow.

MARCH 2, 1746, Voted that ve stock of ammuni-
tion shall be kept in ¥e Meeting House in 8d town.

MARCH 6, 1748, Voted liberty to Mr. John Need-
ham to hange iwo good gates across his land on
Same Meadow road.

Voted to accepl several open highways, two poles
wide “provided sufficient bonds be given sd Town
to secure Town from damages’,

MARCH 4, 1750. Voted that would not maintain
the fourth part of the bridge over Concord river to
Mr. Nicholas Sprakes MMill.

MARCH 4, 1754, Voted ye Committee 8 shillings
for erecting steps at the MMeeting House door.

In January 16, 1755 page 339 appears testement
by John Kittredge freeing his negro man servant
Reuben after his decease. Entered by the Town
Clerk November 16, 1756,

1760. The Town Warrants in this period called
upon “Freeholders and other inhabitants duly quali-
fied to vote™.

MARCH 10, 1760, Voted and chose John Hardey
and Samuel Trull to take care that the Irish have
free passage (this is noted frequently for several
years following).

MARCH 10, 1760, Voied that a man shall have
020 pr day a yoak of oxen 0.1.4 and a cart 0.0.4 till
the last of August and from that time to the last of
October 0.1.4 pr day for a man 0.1.0 for a pair of
oxen and .04 pence for a cart for work at the
Highways.

MAY 16, 1760, The qguestion being put whether
the Town will chuse some person Lo gerve and rep-
regent them in the Great and General Assembly the
present vear and it pased in the negative.

June 9, 1760, Paid Mr. Davis Chapman for
warning Thomas Haggits Family and John Gould to
depart out of town 4 s.

OCTOBRER G, 1761. The question being put
whether the Town would chose a commiitee to pro-
vide a school master and it passed in the negative.

(At town meetings of this period it was voted to
elect certain officials by vote of Stand. In voting to
accept certain highways as laid out by the Selectmen
it iz noted that owners of land must give same to
the town).

OCTOBER 19, 1761. Tt was voted to chose a com-
mittee to provide a school master,

(The Town record book of 1760 to 1791 was pur-

chased by Wm. Hunt for 12 shillings, containing 470

pages).

NOVEMEBER 16, 1763 om page 350 appears the
following: Straid a large red mare with a large white
face and shod belore and about ten yvears old, by sd
Eben Whittemore.

During this early period of the Town, with the
exception of special votes that have been noted, the
main business transacted appears to be taking care

of the poor and unfortunate, warning undesirable
persons out of town and those that came from other
towns without apparent means of support, collacting
and working out taxes, etc.

MARCH 9, 1770. Voted fo alow a man three
shillings pr day for work on the highways and a voak
of oxen one shilling and six. pence and- a cart and
plow as the Surveyors think proper to alow them.

MARCH 1, 1771. Paid an order to Thomas Kit-
tredge for entertaining the vear past asesors (0.17.6.
(Payments are noted also where the selectmen were
entertained, this is somewhat misleading as the se-
lectmen were also the assessors).

FEBRUARY 20, 1770.  Article to see if the Town
will accept of o Rode that was laid out by the former
Select Men from the Rode from Daniel Griffing down
to Andover line as it was formly laid out if that
Andover or the County will meet it with a Rode.

Article to see if the town will discontinue the
?I}en Rode across Duttons farm and put it to a bridal
tade.

MARCH 4, 1771, Voted not open the rode from
Ezra Kindells house to the Meeting House—then
voted to reconsider and continue until next town
meeting.

We the subscribers being chosen commity to
squadron out the Town of Tewksbury for the con-
venancy of schooling and according to our hest
judgements we have don it in the manner following
(viz) to the First Division begining at Billerica line
taking in Joshua Clark Kindal Patton (?) Samuell
Kittredge Joseph Kittredge jun Andrew Richardson
jun from thence to Andover line: and all the familys
in Tewksbury southeast of said line: To the Second
Division begining at Billerica line taking in John
Sanders Silas Marshall from thence to Abraham
Stickney jun and Se Kindall to Andover line and all
the familys between said line and the First Division.
The Third Ddvision Begining and taking in Samuel
Marshall from thence to Johnson Brook so called so
on to Merrimack, To the Fourth Division begining
at Johnsong Brook from thence {o Rogers Mears
Rohert Nicholas to Concord River, Dated at Tewks-
bury August ye 3ith

Ehenr Temple
David DBailey
Aaron B (7)
Nathl Clark jur
Solomon French
Entered pr
JOHN NEEDHAM, Town Clerk.

MARCIH 2, 1772. Voted that each squadron draw
their equal guota of the money voted for schooling

Article—to hear the report of the committee that
was chosen to treat with the Rewd Spaulding con-
cerning his sallery and yote him some certain sum
for his Sallery annually "s'r& long as he shall supply
the Minigtree in the Meeting House in this Town and
for him to give a recepl in full (when paid) or to act
in some other way or meatheard that the Town shall
think proper at the Town meeting.

FEBRUARY 15, 1773. Article—to choose person
or persons Tor Lo Let the Psalm on Sabbath Day and
other time of publick worship,  March 1, 1775, Voted
and chose

Committees

Abr'm Bailey |
Peter Hardey { For to late the Psalm

MARCH -1, 1773. Voted to give the Rev'd Mr.
Sampson Spaulding 66:13:% pounds for his sallery
this year,

({Throughout this book of records there appear at
different times entries of money paid lo perzons for
cost of warning certain persons out of town, also
for removing them to other towns and for carrying

*some out of town),
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OCTOBER 18, 1773, Voted to repair the Meeting
Housze windowers with Diamond Glace and what was
necdful at present. At this same meeting it was
voted against a new addition to the Meeting House,
also azainst new clabourds and new ghingles for the
Meeting House, also voted against the Select Men
aeting as a committee for to repair the Meeting
Houze.

EXTRACTS—CALLEY THREE

Entries paying certain persons for mending
clothes, making shirts, britches, stockings. (This is
presumed to be for the poor) February 15, 1775 paid
Tenj Durtt for four pairs of gloves for the funeral
of And'w Richardsons wife 0-7-5-3.

FERBRUARY 1, 1775. Article—to see if the Town
will accept of an open Highway two poles wide (ete).

SEPTEMRBER 7, 1774. Article—to see 1T the
Tawn will provide zome fire armes and more animis-
tion and to chuse a commitee for to provide the same.

Article—to appoint one or more delegates to at-
tend a Provencil Meeting to be holden at Concord
on the second day of Qctober next.

SEPTEMBER 21, 1774, Voted to buy more pow-
der for a Town Stock. Voted to buy two barrils of
powder in addition to the Town Stock. Voted to
leave it with the committee to provide bulets and
flints as they shall think proper. Voted and chose

Elead Worcester
Jonathan Brown
Aaron Beard

Voted and chose Mr. Jonathan Brown delegale
for the said Provineil Meeting.

NOVEMBER 23, 1774 Voled to repair all the
windows in the gallery of the Meeting House that
the owners of the puesd are not obliged to repair and
down below that are not against the pues.

JANUARY 23, 1775, Voted and chose Jonathan
Brown a delegate for the Provineial Congress Meet-
ing at Cambridge on the first day of Feb'y next.

FEBRUARY 20, 1775. Paid Samuel Brown for
perembulating the lines of Billerica and Wilmington
4 shillings.

MARCH 6, 1775. Voted to allow Jonathan Brown
4 5 & pr day going as a delegate to the Congress,

MAY 23, 1775, Voled and chose Ezra Kindell to
he a member of the Provineial Comgress at Water-
town on the 3lst day of May.

AUGUST 2, 1775, Voted that the Selectmen shall
make a return of what coats the Town doth make
for the soldiers on the provinee service. (This is the
first official mention of town soldiers Dbeing on
provinee service in the Town Book). ;

JUNE 24, 1776. Voted that the Selectmen shall
provide aminition and shovels spaids peik axes etc
according to their descretion. Voted that the Town
shall provide bayonetts for the training band in the
Town., Voted that the Selectmen shall provide fire
armes for thoge persons that they shall think proper
and other necesgary Accutrements.

QCTORER 14, 1778, Voted to chose a committes
to make a draught for government. Voted and ac-
cepted the committee report and plan of government.

On March 4, 1776 Elenor Putnam was paid for
sweeping the Meeling House 16 shillings. (She had
gserved several years prior to this date). Inm 177% she
was paid & pounds for sweeping and taking care of
the Meeting House.

MARCH 17, 1777. Voted to let those persons that
are twenty one years of age to vote in this meeting.
Voted to chose a committee to estimate and see what
men have alredy don in towards raising the Army,
time past, and to see what will be wanted to precure
the men that are now wanting to form the Conti-
nental Army. Voted that the committee do make
their report about raising money to raise men with
and what hath been paid alredy at the adjournment

Commitiee

Page Thirty-siz

ek Iowne Book

1934

of this meeting, Then met according to adjournment
P M the meecting being opened, past the following
votes (viz)

Voted % dollers pr man for 45 men going to Cam-
bridge the first time. Voted to allow 4 dollers pr
man for 13 men going to Roxbury 6 weeks, Voted
to allow 40 dellers pr man for 22 men going to Ty-
conderoga last summer. Voted to allow 4 dollers pr
man for 14 men going to Cambridge two months.
Voted to allow 10 dollers per man for 4 men going
to Dorchester. Voted to allow 44 dollers pr man for
12 men going to New York and the Jersseys. Voted
to allow Enoeh Merril 2 dollers. Voted to allow to
others what appears to be due.

MAY 22, 1777. Voted to chose a commitiee to
settle with Rowley about the maintainance of the
wid Mary Hunt.

SEPTEMBER &, 1777. Voted that the Town
Treasurer be empoured to hire money to hire the
men thatl are now being raised.

SEPTEMBER 29, 1777. Voted to raise 200 pounds
to what was voted to be raised last town meeting,
in raizsing men for publick service. Paid David Bailey
jun for making fifty bayonels for the militia 20
pounds.

MARCH 1, 1779. Voted and chose Mr. Ezra Kin-
dell as ageni lo take care of the Tory larmers in
Tewlsbury.

MAY 21, 1779, Voted to have a new Constitution
of form of government made. Voters in the affirma-
tive 20, the voters in the negative 2. Voled and chose
Major Jonathan Brown and Mr. Ezra Kindell to in-
quire into and Prosecute Roger Dution and John
Stearns for not going into the Continental Service for
the Town of Tewksbury for nine months according
to their promige. Voted to aceept of the proceedings
of the Convention that met at Concord to regulate
prices. Voted and chose Mr. Wm. Brown Delegate
to ro Lo Cambridge the first day of September next
iy meet in Convention in order to frame a new Con-
stitution. (Throughout the period of the war are
many entries showing payments for the making of
shirts, stockings and shoes for the soldiers, also for
salt pork and Indian corn. ¥ peunds for one hlanket
and six pounds and six shiilings for one pair of shoes
and one pound ten shillings for a tomehawk for Nath
Hunt for engaging in the Colonial Army during the
war. This was paid by Baldwin and refunded
by the Tewn in Qctober 26, 1779 In June 1779, an
order to Wm. Hill it being for a pair of shoes at 24
dollare. On Feb. 11, 1780, appear payment to dif-
ferent persons for paying soldiers and supplying sol-
diers' families).

MAY 22, 1780. On the call for the Town meeting
it “warns all frecholders and other inhabitants quali-
fied by law to vote in town affairs and also all that
are free and one and twenty years to vote.” Article
for the Town to hear the report of the committee
that was chose to consult upon the form of govern-
ment and aceept the same if the Town thinks proper
and/pazs any olher votes upon the said form of gov-
ernment which shall be proper. Article—to see if
the Town will allow Mr. Thomas Kittredge Jun for
the fifty dollar bill which he received when he was
constable which proved to be conterfit.

MAY 20, 1780, Voted to go through the form of
government article by artiele.

Voled to adjourn accordingly to next Monday.
{The records show it was customary to elect certain
officers then to adjourn and act upon the articles at
a later meeting).

JUNE &, 1780. The following votes (viz) Voted
to accept the form of government all but six articles.
Number for the form 37, against it 2. Voted to ac-
cept the third article in the Declaration of Rights;
for it 18, against it 2. Voted to aceept the second
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article in the General Courts Power; for it 18 against
it 2. The guestion being put whether the Seventh
Article in the Governors Power should stand as it
was and it past in the negative. Voted that the Gov-
ernor and General Court shall not march the Militia
for more than six monihs at any one time without
their own voluntary consent; for it 12 against it 1.
Vaoted that the general and field officers shall have
a seat in the house, 13 to 4. Voted that the Governor
chuze the Justes of the Pease 11 to 1. Voted that the
Constitution stand but ten years before a new con-
vention be called. Voted the Governor shall declare
himself to be of the Christian Prodenstant Religion
for it 20. Voted that the Hon Convention set the time
that the Constitution or form of government takes
place. Voted to accept the Constitution or form of
government with the above amendments to be made
29 for it against it 2.

JUNE 15, 1780, Adjourned to June 21, 1780, Voted
to give the men that shall engage in the Continental
Army for six months twenty two bushills of Indian
corn pr man pr month sole leathers or stock or Con-
tinental money equivelant thereto and allowing them
pay for twenty miles per day for ont and in and the
men to give the Town an order for the whole of their
wages. Vvoted to raise 1200 pounds for & Town rate
in part to pay the soldiers.

SEPTEMBER 4, 1780, Voites for John Hancock
Esq for Governor 26; voles for James Bowdion Esq 5.

DECEMBER 27, 1780. Voted to chuse a commit-
tee to assist the Militia officers in proeuring the
men that are called {o engage in the army for three
vears or during the war (six were chosen).

JANUARY 1, 1781, Veted to give the soldier
that shall engage in the army for three years 95 hard
dollars per vear Tor the three years or in the same
proportion as long as they are in the service under
the said three vears. (in 1781 appear many accounts
and payments to individuals for loans to the town).
Ttem July 16, 1781 an order to Thomas Kittredge for
money which he let the town have to pay for beef
in the old Continental money to be pald in seventy
five Dollars Tor one of Silver 600 pounds.

MAY 14, 1781, 30,000 pounds of Continental
meney was voled to defray the charges of the Town,
but it was voted to raise 66:13:4 in harde money or
the General Exchange to pay the Rev, Mr. Spaulding
sallary the present year.

JUNE 24, 1781, Article: Whereas the Town at a
town meeting in May 14th voted thirty thousand
pounds in the old Continental Currency for a town
rate to defray the charges of said Town and it ap-
pears that it will not answer the end it was voted for
and we now lay it before the Town to see if the
Town wont reduce that sum into silver money or the
General Exchange or to act in any other way the
Town shall think proper at said meeting respecting
gaid rate. {July 2, 1781 the rate was founded on
gilver money, seventy five dollars of old Continental
money for one silver dollar and for the assessors to
make the rate at that rate and be paid in the new
moneyl.

MARCH 4, 17582, Voted a third part of the front
gallery for the use of singers. An order to W
Brown the sum of one pound five shillings and six
pence for assessing the year past and four shillings
for numbering the people and sixteen shillings for
taking the valuation and nine shillings for fixing the
valuation and sending down to -the Court. 2:14:6
{There were other assessors).

JUNE 2, 1785. (Appears an account of whom the
pews were struck off to, the bids were in dollars,
two items—Lt. Tim'y Rogers pew No one Bast End
struck off 51.—Lt. Thomas Clark pew No one West
End struck off 51).

DECEMBER 19, 1785. Seven pews were struck off,
the highest bringing 40 dollars—the lowest 25 dollars.
This in accord with Article in meeting November 21,
1785 to see if the town will sell the new pews that
are to be built upon the walls in the Meeting House
at publick vendue to the highest bidder.

FEBRUARY 24, 1786. Appear five pages of names
and moneys paid individuals for work on repairing
the Meeting House including bourds and oak Joice,
carting of planks and shingles, paying for hinges
made for pew doors and hanging the doors, also for
lime and motar. Pew that are now sold the first
time amount to 123 pounds, pews sold second time
61:10:0; on old pews 39:16:4:2; two new pews sold
in gallery 9:6:0. (Notice that currency is mentioned
in pounds, instead of dollars).

MARCH 6, 1786, Voted to chose a committes Lo
join with the committees from other towns cercern-
ing building a bridge over Merrimack river.

APRIL 11, 1786. Voted to Vendue to the lowest
bidder the price of collecting the taxes. Voted and
chose Jonathan Brown Vendue Master. Voled that
the collectors give sufficient bonds to the town for
their performance. The price upon the pound was
struck off to Mr. Timothy Brown at three pence half
penny per pound.

SEPTEMEBER 4, 1786. Voted that there be a post
zet up south of the Meeting House for the constables
to put their papers on to warn the town meetings.
Voted that the negros have the seat next to the long
pews for their seat to sit in. (In November the same
vear mention is made that pews are still being sold).

MAY 16, 1787. Voted to allow those men that was
drafted and went into the service themselves or paid
money to hire a man Highteen shillings per man.

OCTOBER 1, 1787, Voled to Thomas Kittredge
what appear to be hiz due for keeping Esther Rich-
ardson, and if the Selectmen and he cant agree then
to submit it to men.

DECEMEBER 24, 1787. Voted and elected Newman
Searlett a delegate to meet in convention at Boston
at the State House on the Second Wednesday of Jan-
nary next to take under consideration the constitu-
tion of the United States.

MARCH 1, 1790. Voted to carry on that part of
publick Worship called Singing without reading in
the afternoon upon the Sabbath Days and other days
of publick Worship. Voted to allow Lt. Thomas
Wood something as gratis for meeting with the sing-
era to instruet them to ging. Voted to put over what
they would allow Li. Wood to April meeting.

MAY 12, 1790, Voted (o move stock of ammuni-
tion into Meeting House when said house is made
secure. Voted to give Li. Wood 2:8:0: for his ser-
vice in instructing the singers.

{Among payments made in 1779 and 1780 appear
a list of persons from whom the town treasurer bor-
rowed money for the use of the Town. There were
thirty five such persons, amounts loaned from 30
pounds to 1300 pounds, the two largest loans were
from Nathan Carlton 1200 pounds and Timothy
Rogers 600 pounds, the two smallest were from
Thomas French and Asa Livistion 30 pounds each).

On pages 420 to 424 inclusive is written the Dec-
laration of Independence, following is this order:
Ordered that the Declaration of Independence be
printed and a copy sent to the ministers of each
parish of every denomination within this State and
that they severally be reguired to read the same to
their respective congregations as soon as devine
service is ended in the afternoon or the first lords
day after they shall have received it and after such
publication there to deliver the said Declaration to
the clerks of there several towns or districts who
are hereby required to record the same in their re-
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spective town or district books there to remain as
a perpetual memorial thereof in the Name and by
Order of the Council.
R. DERBY Jun President
JOHN AVERY Dep Secy
A true Copy: Attest
Entered pr John Needham, Town Clerk.

{Records of Intentions of Marriage and dates of
Marriage appear throughout this old Book of Records,
especially in the later part of the book).

On page 448 appear certain marks of individuals
for their sheep. The [ollowing iz the description on
one Benjamin Temples mark for his gheep, a Swal-
Jows tail in the off ear and a slit in the underside of
the same ear and a crop of the end of the near ear—
Entered June 9, 1770, The oldest mark recorded in
this book is David Chapman's August 1764].

Record Book for years 1781-1841 purchaged in
1792 price 1% shillings.

MAY 12, 1791, Voted that the Selecimen Vendue
the poor that are supported by the Lown to the low-
est hidder.

SEPTEMBER 21, 1791, Voted that the commit-
tee paint the Meeting House between the months of
April and July nexi. Voted that the commities in-
guire of the paintor which coller is the most durable
to paint the Mecting House and make report to
March meeting.

MARCH &, 1792. Voted that the committee that
was chose to git the Meeting House painted proceed
to do it in the best manner and to the best advantage
to the Town, the coller to be stone coller.

MAY 7, 1792 Voted that Cambridge should re-
main the Shirtown of this County. Voted to have a
dav of fasting and prayer in concurance with the
vole of the church. Voted and concurred with the
vote of the church respecting the Rev gentlemen to
be senl for to attend the fast. Voted to have the
day of fasting and prayer the Seventeeth Day of this
instant May. Voted that the Selectmen should see
that there he entertainment for the Rev gentlemen
that shall come to attend the fast. (This is the first
mention of the word Chureh in the Town Book).

JUNE 5, 1792. (Rev. Sampson Spaulding having
sarved the Town for many years and with failing
health it was)

Voted to eoncur with the Church in giving Mr.
Titug Theadore Barton a call for their Minister.
Voted to give Mr. Titus Theadore Barton one hundred
and fifty pounds as his settlement. Voted that one
half of Mr. Titus Theadore Bartons setilement be
paid him in nine months after he is ordained and the
other half in fifteen months as above said. Voted to
give Mr. Titus Theadore Barton eighty pounds per
vear during the Rev, Mr. Spaunldings natural life and
after his decise ninety pounds per year and twenty
cords of wood yearly as long as he shall supply the
desk. Voted and reconsidered the last vote. Voted
to give Mr. Titus Theadore Barton eighty pounds per
year and twenty cords of wood vearly during the
Rev. Mr. Spauldings natural life. Voted and Te-
considered the last vote. Voted to give Mr. Titus
Theadore Barton ninety pounds yearly and itwenty
cords of good wood at his door for his sallary as long
as he supplies the desk. Voted to chuse a committee
to wate on Mr. Titus Theadore Barton with the pro-
ceedings of the town., Voted and chose Deec. Kindell
Esq. Brown Mr. Bordman. On July 26, 1792 (a town
vote to strike out certain words in the previous vote
on Mr. Barton's salary and inserted “so long as he
shall remain our minister.”

AUGUST 23, 1792, Voted and chose a committee
to prop up the galleriez in the Meeting House and
make it secure against the day of ordination. (Other
vates to see that order be maintained and to provide
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other ministers, candidates and scholars that shall
come to the ordination).

MARCH 4, 1793. Voted that all that are sixty
vears of age shall be taken out of the jury boxes.

JANUARY 4, 1794, Voted that the Selectmen
purchase a tull or funeral cloth which is deecent for
the town.

ATUGUST 18, 1794. Voted to make the pay of the
men that are ealled for from this town to complete
their proportion of the eighty thousand men which
Congress Recommend to be raised the sum of eight
dollars pr month.

MARCH 7, 1798. Voted and reconsidered the vote
of having five Selectmen the present vear. Voted
not to have but three Selectmen the present year.

APRIL 4, 1796, Voted to chuse a committee to
ingpect the schools. Voted that the School Commit-
tee consist of five.

MARCH 6, 1797. Voted that the two Commanys
of Militia in this town be brought into one Commany
at the request of the officers of said commanys and
the desire of the greater part of the soldiers, Voted
to accept the report of the Selectmen as laid before
the town the alterations in the Rode from the new
bridge over Coneord river by the Meeting House to
Wilmington line. Voted to chuse a committee to in-
quire into and see if there be any money in the
Justices hands taken for fish fines.

SEPTEMBER 18, 1797. Voted to bnild a new
pound 34 feet by 34 and 5 leet high witheut the cap-
pies and three sides to be stone and the other wood
with a good gate. Voted to furnish the soldiers
with 210 pounds of beef and 210 pounds of bread
and half a pound of powder pr man (io each man)
that shall march to Concord to the muster. Voted
and chose Capt. Peter Hunt to provide the beef and
Capt. (Aaron?) Beard to procure the flower to make
the bread.

MAY 17, 1798. Voted to introduce the Bass Viol
into the Meeting House on the Sabbath Day and
other days of publick Worship.

JUNE b, 1798, Voted to chuse a commititee to put
out subscription paper to see what any person will
give towards fencing the buring ground.

DECEMBER 24, 1798. Voted that those persons
that are taxed for dogs draw an order on the Treas
urer for one Dollar. (This is the first mention in the
Records that dogs were taxed).

Voted to meet the committee from Chelmsford
for building a2 bridge over Concord river near the
mouth of gaid river.

MAY 2, 1799, Voted to chuse a committee to
meet the Courts eommittes that is coming to lay out
a road from Mr. Pattins Mill to Loging bridge so
called, committee to act in that matter for the town
henefit.

MAY 15, 1800. Voted that the committee have
full power to build a bridge over the canal near the
house of Joseph Woodward near the mouth of Con-
cord river at such place on the said canal as they
think proper. (accepted the report of the commitiee
and voted $450.00

Voted not to chuse any person or persons to pur-
sue theaf or theaves.

MARCH 7, 1803. Voted that a commitiee be in-
structed to treat with the Rev. Titus T. Barton upon
a seperation as well as upon the sinkag of his salrey.

APRIL 4, 1803. Voted that in case the Rev. Titus
T. Barton should be dismissed from being our minis-
ter that said Barton and estate be free from taxes
for the space of three ywears should he remain in
towWn.

MAY 30, 1803. Voted that the sum of three hun-
dred and forty dollars that was voted to the Rev, Mr.
Titus T. Barton at the annual meeting in March last
past az his zalrey for the present year, be appro-
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priated to the use of hiring Preching, deducting the
sum that ig due him as his salrey.

FEBRUARY 23, 1805, Voted to raise four hun-
dred dollars for a highway rate. Voled not to have
the swine run at large under the regulation of the
law the present wear. (At meetings previous it had
been voted to allow the swine to run at large). Voted
to raise the sum of nine hundred dollars for a town
rate thizs present year. Voted to raise the sum of
four hundred dollars to hire preaching this present
year.

NOVEMBER 4, 1306, Voted that the town do con-
enr with the church in giving Mr. Jacob Coggin a
call to settle with them in the work of the gospel
ministry. (It was voted to give Rev. Mr. Coggin
$520.000 and 16 cords of wood vearly as long as he re-
mained minister, also to give him 260000 to setile
in the town). At the meeting July Lith relative to
gecuring Mr., Coggin the vote was 76 in favor and
6 against. Voted that the pole be open for a Rep-
resentative for Congress untill after sun set.

NOVEMBER 2, 1807, Voted to raise the sum of
five hundred dollars towards payving for the bridge
now building near the mouth of Concord river,

JUNE 27, 1808, Voted fo chose a commillee fo
consist of five to attend the Cowrts Committee that
is coming on the road from Jeremiah Allens in Bil-
lerica to the store of Jonathan DBrown Jr in Tewks-
bury August 22 in order to oppose the laying out
the zame.

JULY 6, 1812, Voled that if the soldiers are
called on to march that enlisted for the government
service in this town that the town will make up their
pay to them with what government gives them, they
shall receive thirteen dollars pr month,

APRIL 5, 1813, Voted to pay a bounty on crows
that are killed in the Town of Tewksbury between
the first day of May & first day of July 1813 (viz)
twenty cents per head for old crows and ten cents
per head for voung crows,

SEPFTEMBER 13, 1814. Voted to raise the sum of
five hundred dollars for the payment of soldiers and
purchaging equipment for town stock, Voted to make
up the soldiers that have been or may be called oul
for the defense of the Country, fifteen dollars pr
month the present season.

APRIL 6, 1815, Voted to build a new DMeeting
House,

MAY 7, 1818, A committee of seven was appoint-
ed,  Zephaninh  Clark, John Chandler, Jonathan
Clark, William Rogers, Josiah Brown, Hermon
Marshall and Jese Trull.

OCTOBER 15, 1818, The article adjourned from
the May meeting respecting building a Meeting
House and providing a spot of ground to sit it on
being taken up the report of the committee at the
May meeting was read and excepted which is on file.

MAY 13, 1819 Vofed that the Selectmen see
that all Tiplers and Drunkards be posted in the li-
cenced houses,

SEPTEMBER 3, 1821, Voted to chose a commit-
tee to get the town measured and centered for the
purpose of fixing on a spot to lett a Meeting House
on.

MAY 16, 1822, The committee report that Wil-
liam Brown will not let a price on his land to set a
Meeting House on and that they inguired of Dr. John
Spaulding and that he will sell one acre for one hun-
dred and seventy five dollars for one acre. Voted to
chose a committee to draft a plan for a Meeting
House. Voted and chose Josiah Brown, John Chan-
dler, Jozeph Brown, Jesse Flemmengs and Samuel

L

?)
SEPTEMBER 16, 1822, Voted to accept the plan
for to build a Meeting House by with such altera-
tions shall be thounght best in finishing said House.

Voted to build a Meeting House in one vear. Voted
to choose a commititee of five to build a Mesting
House. Voted to chose such committee by hallot.
Voted and chose Josiah Brown HEsqg.,, Dr, Joseph
Brown, Jesse Trull, William Rogers Bsq., and Capt.
Dudley Martin for said committee. Voted that said
committee advertize that they are ready to receive
proposals for building a Meeting House, fifty five feet
sguare with a projection of nine feet.

Voled that the committee that were chosen to
build a Meeting House borrow any sum of money not
to exceed twenty five hundred dollars at such time as
it may be wanted on interest not to exceed six per
cent,  Voted the committee furnish stone steps to
the Meeting House, Voted to let the halling of the
underpining and steps for sd House to them that
will do it chepest. The halling of said underpining
and steps struck off to Life Farmer jun for $27.50

NOVEMBER 4, 1822. Voted that the committes
that were chosen to purchase land to lett a Meeting
House on purchase one acre on the North side of
the Road back of the old Meeting House. Voted to
reconsider the vole that was passed to lett the Meet-
ing House on land mow belonging to Willlam Brown
Heq.

ATIGUST 25, 1823, Voled and chose Josiah
Brown Esq as agent for the town to earry on a law
guit commenced against said fown by the Town of
Reading for the support of — — and family,

MAY 13, 1824, Article 7 to see il the town will
vote to purchasze a bell for the Meeting House that
they are now building or if there iz a hell purchased
by subscription that in case that the pews of said
Meeting House zell for more than the cost of build-
ing said house that the surplus arising from the sale
of pews shall be divided belween those that advance
the money to purchase the hell in the same propor-
tion that they advance or for the town to act for
the same in any way they think proper at said meet-
ing. Voted that the surplus money if any be taken
to purchase a bell. Voted that their be a guardian
put over all such as are spending their time & prop-
erly for ardent sperit in town., Voted that their be
a tipler list posted up.

JUNE 21, 1824, Voted to dedicate the Meeting
House that they are now building on the Sixth Day
of July next at two oclock PM. (A commities of ar-
rangements was chosen congisting of fifteen). Voted
to sell the pews in the new Meeting House on Wed-
nesday the zeventh day ol July next sale to com-
mence at nine oclock AM.

JANTARY 2, 1825, Voled to chose a committee
to petition the Court of Sessions for a commiites to
straighten the Boston road leading from Tewksbury
Meeting House through Wilmington and Woburn.

MARCIH 7, 1825, Voted to choge a committee of
geven Lo view that part of the Northwesterly School
Distriet known by the Belvideer Vilage and report
to the town their opinion of the propriety of setting
off said vilage into a school district. Voted to accept
the report of the committee that built the meeting
House, (On page 303 is an itemized report of ex-
penditures,

Town Meeting House cost $4500.31
Pews zold Tor 539900
Balance 208.69

APRIL: 4, 1825. Voted that that part of the
North School District known as the Belvideer Vilage
be sett of into a School District as reported by the
committee choze to view and report be called the
Seventh District. Voted to sell the old Meeting
House bell for one that weighs thirteen hundred and
fifty pounds. Voted that the Rev. Mr. Coggin be au-
thorized to exchange the bell as above stated. Voted
to chose a committee of two in addition.

S
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MAY 12, 1825, Voted that the committee sell the
old Meeting House the first Monday in June. Voted
that any ten or more persons may build sheds to put
their horzes nunder on the town land said shed to be
eighteen feet by ten, eleven or twelve as may he
agreed upon by the builders,

JUNE 13, 1825. Voted to build a house to do
town business. Voted to chose a committes of five to
find a suitable spot, said house on. (Chose Dec. Jos-
eph Brown, Timothy Hunt, David Rogers, Capt.
Samuel Hardy, Benj Sanders. They reported to Let
the town house at the Northwest corner of the now
Meeling House. Vofed to chose another committes.
Vote and chose John Chandler, S8amuel Hardy, Aaron
Manser, John Jagues, David Rogers, said committes
reported in favor of Leting the town house io have
the front of said house parcel with the body of the
new Meeting House with the Southwest corner at
the line by William Brown Esq. land. Voted to huild
the Town House thirty feel by forty with posts
fourteen feet in height. Voted to choose a commit-
tee of three to git said house bhuilt by the last of Oc-
tober. Voted and chose Josziah Brown, William Rog-
ers and Capt. Stephen Brown., Voted to leave it to
the descretion of the committee whether the Town
House be finished at ihe time appointed.

MAY 10, 1826, Voted to hire the Meeting House
bell rung on the same terms as last vear. Voted to
pay sixteen cents apiece for a dinner for all soldiers
that attend the Regimental Muster the present vear.

NOVEMBER 6, 1826. Voted to appropriate ffly
dollars for the use of singing. Voted to purchase a
farm to support the poor. Voted that the Seleetmen
paint the Town House,

MARCH 5, 1827, A committee appointed in
Novemher to purchase a farm for the poor made the
following report: (This report is pasted on the first
page of the Town Records 17%141841)

The committee appointed by the Town of Tewks-
bury in November last, for the purpose of purchasing
a farm for the support of their poor, having attended
the duties assigned them, ask leave respectfully to
report; That they have received proposals from sev-
eral persons and have looked at several farms, and
have therefore come {o a decision that the farm be-
longing to the heirs of Doet Benjamin Kittredge is
the most suitable one. Your committee have for the
sum of 33500 purchased said farm of Doct Harry Kit-
tredge, agent for the heirs, and received a deed in
behalf of the Town from Miss Rebekah Kitiredge.
Possession to be given the second day of April next
and interest to he paid from and after that date,

Jonathan Brown
Bravity Gray
Jege Trull
Timothy Hunt
William Rogers
Herman Marshall
Aaron Mansur
March 5, 1827

MAY 145, 1828, Article 5. To see if the town will
sel up a grammar school near the Meeting House in
said Town. Voled not to act on this artiele .

MAY 14, 1829, Voted to accept of the petition of
John Lowell Jr and others praving to have a part of
said Tewksbury annexed to the Town of Lowell 109
votes for accepting, 107 against.

December 12, 1829, Voted and chose the Select-
men as a committee to alter the desk in the Town
House by sealing up one end, and having a door in
the other end and a wide board on the top of said
desk,

APRIL 3, 1830. (Appears the first report of the
Overseers of the Poor).

MAY 13, 1830. Voted that the town meetings in
future be warned in the following manner (viz) by

Puage Forty

a Constable: posting up an Attested Coppy of the
Warrant in the following places (viz) one at the
Meeting House and one in some public place in Bel-
videre Village so called, to be up at least eight days
and over two Sundays. Voted that Doct Henry Kit-
tredge and others have liberty to keep a private
school in the Town House they making good the
damages and paving rent if requested.

NOVEMBER 1, 1830. Voted and choose William
Rogers, Jonathan Clark 2nd and Aaron Mansur a
committes to repair the hearse and hearse house,
Voted and choose Rev, Jacob Coggin, Doct Henry
Kittredge and John Jagues as a committee to oppose
the annexing of Belvidere Village (so called) from
the Town of Tewksbury to the Town of Lowell at
the next winter session of the Legislator.

FEBRUARY 26, 1831. Voted that a man shall
have one dollar per day and a pair of oxen one dollar
per day for working on the highways the present
Year.

MAY 11, 1831, Voled on the petition of Alpheas
Smith and others to annex a part of Tewksbury to
the Town of Lowell. Yeas eighty-eight, nays sixty-six,
Voted that the Selectmen provide some person to
take care of the Town House, Meeting Hounse, bell,
stone, ete,

JANUARY 16, 1832, Voted that individuals may
set up a stove in the Town House,

APRIL 9, 1832, Votes for the annexation of a
part of Tewksbury to Lowell 132 votes against the
annexation of a part of Tewksbury to Lowell 100,

AUG. 20, 1832, Article 3 to see if the Town will
choose a Board of Health with full power to take
such measures as they may deem expedient and best
adapted to preserve our citizems from spasmodic
cholera and to see how much money the town will
vote 1o be used by said board at their discretion
(ten men were chosen and anthorized not to expend
over three hundred dollars).

NOVEMEBER 12 1832, Town meeting voted to
adjourn until tomorrow at nine oclock AM at H
Thompsons Hotel in said Tewksbury (at Belvidere
Village, so called).

MARCIL 4, 1833, Voted to appropriate one hun-
dred and fifty dollars for the Engine at Belvidere
Village.

APRIL 1, 1833, Voted that the Selectmen be a
committee to purchase the hoes and necessary ap-
paratus for the engine in Belvidere provided the rais-
ing the aforesaid sum of $150 at the lasi March
meeting was a legal vote for raising said sum by a
tax.

MAY 6, 1833, Voted that the Schollars shall he
counted between the age of four and eighteon.

Voled that the elerks in each school district take
the number of schellars in their respective districts
and make return to the Selectmen by the lirst day of
June next, under oath.

NOVEMEBER 11, 1833, Votes for and against the
annexation of a part of the Town of Tewksbury to
the Town of Lowell as praved for in the petition of
seorge Brown and others (viz) for the annexation
80, against the annexation 71,

APRIL: 21, 1834, Voted to choose a committes
to settle the affairs with Belviders and that the com-
mittee consist of three. Voted to attach one part of
the highway left vacant by Belvideres being annext
to Lowell, to Thomas Morey and the other part to
Joel Clarks district. Voted to annex Mr. Livingston
to Thomas Morev's distriet.

NOVEMBER 10, 1834, Committee reports “We
have taken Council and find the recovery of the $150
laid out for hose for the Engine at Belvidere will
depend on circumstances and evidence: also that
said Brown says he will obligate himsell to return
this town two thirds the amount said hose shall be
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appraised at, if taken by the Town of Lowell next
March or said Town may take the same and sell them
for the most they will bring and return him one
third of the same and the remainder of the money
in his hands he is ready to pay three hundred dol-
lars down and give his note for a short time, with an
endorser if they wish™.

Regarding Rev, Jacob Coggin's salary as paid by
the Town—in March 10, 1834 Town meeting, the sum
of $575 was voled as his salarvy—no mention of any
wood. This is the last record of money being ap-
propriated by the Town of Tewksbury for the salary
of & minister.

NOVEMBER 14, 1836, Voted fifty dollars for a
singing school

MARCH 5, 1838. Voled two hundred coppies of
Towns Expenses bhe printed,

APRIL %0, 1838. Voted the town pay for the pews
hought to make room for the stoves in the Meeting
House.

1840, Annual return of the names of all persons
enrolled in the Militia in the Town of Tewkshury 109,
Returns made yearly to 1858 show from 59 to 167
enrolled for service,

1849, Appeared the most serious cases filed for
damages against the Town., Quote: The falling of
a horse harnessed o a carriage driven by said Bart-
lett, by a defect in the highway. This was carried
to the Supreme Judicial Court and DBartlett was
awarded damages of $4000, cost of Court $203.87;
Damages awarded to Bohonon 3125, cost of Court
$46.55. Paid for Town counsel $117.25, for witnesses,
ete., $189.94; total costs to the Town F4682.61.

MARCH 4, 1850, Voted that a safe be procured
for the keeping of the town records.. Voted that the
Selectmen be anthorized to put up guide boards.

NOVEMBER 11, 18%. Voted to procure hlinds
for the Town Hall,

MARCH 3, 1831. At the opening of the town
meeting voted to send for Rev. Mr. Coggin to offer
prayers., Voted and chose Oliver Clark and Abel
Marshall a committee to wait on Rev. Mr. Coggin.
Said committee reported that Rev., Mr. Coggin was
not a4t home.

APRIL 4, 1853, Voted to offer a reward of fifty
dollars in addition to the fifty dollars offered by IH.
E. Preston for the detection of the robbers and re-
covery of the property taken out of said Preston’s
heuse in the night of the 21st of March last past.

NOVEMBER 15, 1%53. Voted on the molion of
Mr. Merriam to strike off the names of Charles Clark,
Alvin Moor, Thomas Croshy Jr and William Trow
from the list of names presented hy the Selectmen
for Jurymen and that the names of four Whigs be
substituted in their stead. After some discussion
and several votes it was voted that the Selectmen
bring in a new list for the Jury Box at the present
meeting. Voted to accept the list of names as pre-
sented the second time. (The names of those voted
struck off were all accepted. Thomas Crosby Jr.
name was not presented).

1854, Town debt, $2038.14.

MARCH &, 1855. Voted that Nathaniel L. Trull,
Elijah M. Reade and Ebenezer French be a commit-
tee to consider the expediency of establishing a Sun-
day Police. Report accepted at the meeting and
police regulations adopted.

MARCH 3, 1856, 'Town Warrant Article 11. 'Will
the Town make anv change in their school system.
Voted to proceed to the election of a Superintending
School Committee of three. Voted and chose Joshuna
Clark, B, F. Spaulding and R. Toleman. Voted that
the Superintending School Committes hire school
teachers the coming year.

Two Hundredth Anniversary
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JUNE 13, 1855, Aaron Frost Jr was appointed
and authorized by the Selectmen as agent for the
sale and manufacture of intoxicating liguors.

APRIL 4, 1859, Extracts from a report of the
Committee appointed regarding repairs to the Center
burying ground. *“Center burying ground contains
about hall an acre of land—never cost the Town
anything—recommend $150 be appropriated to en-
cloge same with a stone wall and gate at entrance
—very few burials here for the past 25 vears owing
to difficulty in finding land of sufficient size—persons
who have been accustomed Lo bury im this part of
the town have had to resort to private property—
the law reguires that necessary provision be made
for this object—recommend that $150 be appropriat-
ed to purchase and put in proper condition a lot of
land for a public burying ground near the center of
the town—recommend that authority to receive any
gratuitites that friends of the geveral measures may
see fit to entrust to them.

(During the years where only a brief mention is
made of outstanding votes, town meetings were not
held as frequently and fewer articles appeared in
the Warrants—business seemed to be more of
straightening roads, adjusting bonnds, the petition-
ing of and building new roads, developing school dis-
tricts election of stale, county and town officials and
conducting town affaire on a more business-like
basis).

MARCH 5, 1860, Article—To see if the town will
appropriate money for repairing and improving ihe
burial grounds in the South and in the Northwest
School Districts and act thereon. Commiltes re-
ported—0OIld Burial Ground in the Center—Commit-
tee placed an iron gate with two hammered stone
posts at the entrance. WVoted that the sum of 3125
be appropriated for the improvement and repairing
of the Buryving Ground in the Northwest District.

MAY 6, 1861. Voted that the Town appropriate
the sum of $2000 and that a committee consisting of
the Selactmen and four other ecitizens he appointad
to disburse this appropriation on among the volun-
teer citizens of Tewksbury in such manner as in
their judgement, the circumstances of the men re-
quire. It being understood that out of said appro-
priation an outfic and a reasonable amount of pocket
money be provided for all velunteers from Tewks-
bury and that the families of all voelunteers shall be
well cared for: and also that this committes shall
algo look after their future wants and necessities
during their enlistment—and also that the compen-
sation of the said wvolunteers be inecreased to $25.
promonth for the time of their actnal service,

NOVEMBER &, 1861, Voted that the Lowell Gas
Company be permitted to lay their pipes in Andover
Street from the Lowell line to the dwelling house
of D 8 Wood on Andover Street, provided the said
street is not rendered dangerous thereby.

MARCH 3, 1862. Choose a committee to lay out
inte lots ithe unoccupied land enclosed in the South
Burving Ground and affix prices.

Committes on South Burying Ground reports mak-
ing the repairs needed,

JULY 28, 1852, Call for 15,000 volunteers from
Massachusetts by Proclamation of the Governor.
Eleven men are assigned as the gquota of Tewksbury.
Voted a bounty of $125. to each of said eleven men
who shall enter said service from this town, to be
paid to them when musterad in.

ATUGUST 25, 1862, (Call for 19,080 volunteers for
Massachusetts. (Quota not stated). Voted to pay the
new levy of recruits for nine months service $100.
when mustered in,

NOVEMBER 4, 1382, Voted that the town pay to
each perzon the fee charged by the Examining Phy-
sician who is appointed by the Governor to examine
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all persons claiming exemption from draft for physi-
cal disability who shall appear before them.

MARCH 2, 1863, Voted to increase the School
Committee from three to six members (several votes
required). Voted that the School Committee appoint
a superintendent. Voted the Superintendent’'s sala-
ry be fixed at $50. Tax collector paid 2% for col-
lecting taxes. Voted not to abolish the school dis-
trict.

NOVEMBER, 1862. Voted to drain the surlace
water that eollects in front of the Town Hall.

APRIL 6, 1863. Proclamation by the President of
the United States—set apart Thursday the thirtieth
day of April 1863 as a day of National Humiliation,
Fasting and Prayer.

NOVEMBER 3, 1883, Voted that the Town pay
a bounty of 2200 to each volunteer soldier on heing
mustered into the U, 8, Service, also that the Town
choose a cominittee to make an assessment on each
individual of his proportion necessary to be raised
for this purpose.

MAY 30, 1864, Voled that the Town do pay $125.
to each enlisted man that shall be mustered into the
Military Service of the U, 5. from the Town the en-
suing wvear.

NOVEMBER 3, 1868, Page 228-230 inclusive, pro-
testing against accepting a petition from certain in-
dividuals for a separation of part of Tewksbury to
be annexed to Lowell

MARCH 8, 1869 Voted to abolish the present
School District System.

APRIL, 1, 1869 Voted to raise $3000 to repair
the several school houses and build a new one. Voted
the Selectmen a committee to locate the new schoal.
Voted to enlarze by adding the School Commitiee.

APRIL 13, 1874, Article—To see if the Town will
appropriate a sum of money to be expended under
the direction of R. G. Crowell, treasurer. of the G A R.
organization of this Town in celebrating Decoration
Day in an appropriate manner. Voted §75.00.

JUNE, 1874, Page 373—Connty Commissioners
decision as to grade crossings of the Lowell and An-
dover Railroad Company in Tewksbury.

MARCI 1, 1875. Voted the tax collector's come-
mission be 7/8 of one per cent. Voled a committee
he appointed to report “if advisable for the Town to
repair the present Town Hall remove the same or
build a new one”,

MARCH 29, 1875, Voted to move the school
house in District No. 7 to some suitable spol near
the center of said district. Voted $200 to defray ex-
pense of moving.

Voted that a new Town Hall be constructed of
one story, 33 x 60 posts 16 feet with proper stone
foundation. Voted that a fireproof wvault be con-
structed at a cost not to excesd $700, Voted that
the new Town Hall be located on the aite of the
present Town Hall, as near as practicable. Voted to
sell the old Town Hall.

NOVEMBER 2, 1875. Page 410—Report of the
Jommittee as to deed of properiy of the New Town
Hall, noted that (given by John Spaulding to the
Town of Tewksbury bearing date November 27, 1822)
New Town Hall cost $4139.70. 0ld Town Hall sold
for $100.

NOVEMBER 7, 1876. Voted the sum of 500 be
appropriated for the purpese of improving the com-
mon, highwayvs and setting out trees around the
center of the Town.

NOVEMBER 7, 1877, Voted to establish a Public
Library. ;

MARCH 4, 1878, Voted to grant the use of the
Town Hall free for religlous meetings.

Page Fovly-twa

MARCH 3, 1879, Voled and appropriated $100 fo
the Town Library. Voted the money arising from
the licensing of dogs, to the Public Library.

Valuation of the Town 3$1,034,054.00
Rate of taxation, 650 on $1000.

JULY 17, 1882. Voted to ersct a new school
house in Distriet No. 7 not to exceed §3000,

MARCH 3, 1384. Voted thal $250 be appropriated
for drainage at the center of the town.

MARCH 1, 1386. Book 1885-1886, Voted that
the South Cemetery be fully enclosed with a wall
and steps to pass in and out.

MARCH 7, 1887, Appropriated 150 to complete
the drainage at the Common.

MARCH 5, 1888, Appropriated $300 to build &
sidewalk from the Town Farm to the Baptist Church
and thence to meet the sidewalk from Lowell. Voted
to build a school in Gilmanville.

MARCH 3, 1890, Appropriated §4000 to build a
dwelling house at the Town Farm. Appropriated
$1000 to macadamize the road leading from Lowell
to North Tewkshury.

MARCH 2, 18%1. Voled that the sum of $200 he
appropriated for lighting and care of lights at the
center of the town, now cared for by the Village Im-
provement Association. Voled $150 to build a Band
Stand. Voted $400 towards the salary ol a Super-
intendent of Schools. Voted the town would unite
with Dracut, No. Reading, Tyngshoro, Bedford, Bil-
lerica, Burlington, Carlisle, Lincoln, Wilmington or
with anyone or some ol them to employ a Super-
intendent of Schools.

MARCH 6, 1893, Appropriated 38000 to build a
new school house at the center of the tawn, Ap-
propriated $75 for Decoration Day to be expended
hy the School Commitiee. Appropriated 2000 more
to assist in building the new school. Page 468 the
copy of the franchise of the Lowell & Reading Sireet
Railway Co., commencing al the dividing line be-
tween Billerica and Tewksbury to Lowell

MARCH 5, 18894, Voted to build an iron bridge
across the Shawsheen River on the Boston Road near
the South School House, Voted §535.

JUNE 18, 1894, Voted that the name of the new
school at the center he ealled the Foster School and
the hall in the same building be called Pickering
Hall.

MARCH 4, 1895, are 557, Betsey R. Lang will
left 23000 in trust, the income to apply toward the
support of the High School. Voted and approved
four projects for lighting in various paris of the
Town., Voted 315300 for a stome crusher and engine.
Recommended that four years be devoted to High
School studies instead of three at present.

APRIL 22, 18%5. WVoted that the town petition
the State Road Commissioners to build a state road
in Tewksbury from the Lowell line to the Wilming-
ton line.

OCTOBER 24, 1895, Petition from the New Hng
land Telephone and Telegraph Company to erect
poles and maintain wires in the town,

Petition of the Lowell & Suburban Street Rail-
way Company to grant locations, Andover Street
through North Tewlksbury to the Town of Andover,
from Rogers Street to Tewksbury Center. Franchise
granted Dec, 19, 1895,

JANUARY 18, 1902, Voted to investigate the cost
to the Town of some modern and efficient means for
protecting property in the Town against fire and
furnish a water supply to any sections when it may
be available.

JUNE 27, 1902, Town accepts new method of
electing Town Officers.

MARCH 3, 1902, Report presented relative to fire
protection and water supply in the Town. Voted $700
for surveys, water tests and estimates of cost of such




1734 Two Hundredth Anniversary 1934

. Compliments of

Miss Howe
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At Popular Prices
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CONGRATULATIONS, TEWKSBURY ‘
On Your 200th Anniversary

Dine and Dance Tel. 1322

Chin Lee Co. Restaurant

Unian Orchestra at Your Service

—No Cover Charge—

American an:d Chinese Food

65 Merrimack St Lowell, Mass.

Tel. G624]K

E. L. Belley

WATCHES - JEWELRY - DIAMONDS

Watch and Clock Repairing
Hall and Chime Clock Specialist

B 23 Palmer St Lowell, Mass.
VICTOR F. JEWETT ' Opposite Pollard's
Present County Commissioner

Served 23 Years in Massachusetts Legis-
lature—14 Years Floor Leader

BEST WISHES GREETINGS
TO TO
TOWN of TEWKSBURY TOWN OF TEWKSBURY
Bartlett & Dow Co.
HARDWARE !
216 Cenral St. Towell, Mass. Daniel T. Sullivan

Tel, 1600
ull - — COAL - OILS - COKE

Lime - Cement - Brick

Wadsworth Howland & Co.

—INCORPCORATED—
e Em e A rell. Mass.
BAY STATE PAINT and VARNISH 11 Post Office "‘_‘e' Lowell as
PRODUCTS Tel: Inld
177 Central Street Towell, Mass. [
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water supply and fire protection. Voted to pay the
City of Lowell for services at any fires to which they
may he called.

MAY 12, 1802, Voted $200 for the purpose of cele-
brating “0ld Home Week”. On pages 227 to 2357
inclusive, data relative Lo the proposed reservoir on
Frospect Hill showing tables and maps. Several votes
were taken and doubted, on the last vote the citizens
decided against petitioning the Legislature for a
permit for a water supply.

MARCH 2, 19043. Voted to give up the High
School in town and provide High School training at
the Lowell High School, (Note—the Betsey Lang
Fund for the Tewksbury High School then reverted
to the Congregational Church).

JULY 29, 1803, About nine o'clock a.m., the Town
of Tewksbury received the most seriouns internal di-
saster in its history. Two brick magazines contain-
ing powder and other high explosives, the properiy
of the U. S, Cartridge Co., blew up, causing a loss of
twenty-two lives, injury to seventy others and dam-
aging property to the value of hall a million dollars,
pfllﬂ. within our Town and partly in the City of Low-
ell.

Seventy members of the Lowell Police force vo-
lunteered for duty, assisted by the local police, later
augmented to twenty-two, The Lowell Fire Depart-
ment immediately responded and saved many homes
nearby. The serious situation became apparent to
the authorities and three Companies of the Massa-
chusetts Militia, located in Lowell, were ordered to
the scene of the disaster and established a military
cordon around the scene of the explosion.

The Board of Selectmen were continuously on
duty, the local Tire Wards and eighteen men from
the Siale District Police.

The Agent of the Board of Health, in his later
report states, on duty five days and part of several
others, no epidemic or a single case of contagions
dizease,

A fund was raised by the Lowell Courier-Citizen
fo care for Lthe sullercrs. Food was distributed over
a period of ten days. The homeless were provided
with shelter with kindly neighbors and clething pro-
vided Tor the needy.

A complete report of the Riverside Park Explo-
sion was printed and issued by the Town of Tewks-
bury.

OCTOBER 18, 19038, Voted that a committee he
appointed to investigate some system to light the
streetz in the Town,

MARCH 7, 1304, Voted a new School House in
Wigginville, appropriating money for first payments
on site and for construction.

APRIL 25, 1904, Appropriated 31300 for gas
lamps and posts,

MARCH 14, 1906, Voted that the School Commit-
tee be instructed Lo place the bell now on the Library
Building in the cupola of the Foster School.

Committee appointed to represent the Town of
Tewksbury favoring the annexation of certain sec-
tions of the Town to the City of Lowell

Report of committee appointed to ascertain area,
valuation, ete., of area annexed., Report 1200 acres
of land, 14%1 pepulation, valuation $865,400, and legal
voters numbering 252,

MAY 16, 15908, Voted to purchase a small hand
fire engine to be located in North Tewksbury and a
larger engine to be located at the Center.

OCTOBER 26, 1949, Appropriated 3700 for suit-
able drainage of surface water from the Center,
Pleasant, Main and BEast Streets.

MARCH 7, 1910, Appropriated $250. for forest
fire-fighting equipment.

MARCH 3, 1913. Appropriated §8000 for the
erection of a suitable school building in the South
part of the Town near Foster's Corner.

MARCH 2, 1914. Voted to hold annual Town
meetings the first Monday in February instead of the
first Monday in March.

Volted $1300 for organizing, equipping and main-
taining a Fire Department.

JULY 23, 1916, Appropriated $2500 to purchase
of Motor Fire Apparatus, $1000 to be for care and
maintainance.

OCTOBER 1, 1817, Voted to accept gift accord-
ing to the will of Deacon Enoch Foster.

OCTORER 1%, 1%17. Voted that the Town Treas-
urer be directed to make an offer of 8000 for lots
A and D Foster Plan, with buildings thereon, same
to be accepted on or before December 1, 1817,

FEBERUARY 4, 1918, Voted to appoint a perma-
nent man to drive and care for the fire truck and
$12000 appropriated.

JUNE 24, 1918, Voted to gell the Town Farm,

OCTOBER 13, 1918, Tewksbury Congregational
Church burned to the ground.

Town Hall gutted. All valuable law Teports
saved. Safe opened and contenis found in good con-
dition. Vault opened and contents Tound in fine con-
dition. Credit should be given to the Billerica Fire
Department in saving adjoining buildings,

Temporary offices for the town officers opened in
the residence of the late Enoch Foster.

FEBRUARY 3, 1%91% Town meeting held in
Pickering Hall of the Foster School

Voted a committee of seven Lo secure site for a
new Town Hall. Voted a committes to investigate
records and Memorial to those persons who have
heen in service during the World War.

Voted to zell the Town Farm, all land, buildings
and personal property.

MARCH 17, 1919, Voted to construct a new Town
Hall.

MARCH 25, 1919, Voted %8000 to purchase the
Foster Estate lor a new Town Hall

JULY 15, 191%, Voted $3%00 to install an elee-
trie light plant in the Town Hall,

Voted to appropriate $1000 for a World War
Mamorial.

MAY 10, 1920, Dedication of the new Town Hall.
Total eost of buildings and site 280,663.72,

MAY 31, 1920, Welcome Home Exercises {o the
men who served in the World War.

Presentation of tablet dedicated to the men who
gerved in the World War.

FERRUARY 7, 1921, Voted 521,100 for additional
installation of electric lights. (For some years cer-
tain sections had previously secured electrie lights,
but this was the first general effort of installing
lighting over a large area of the town).

FERRUARY 4, 1924, Appropriated $4500 for a
new fire engine.  Appropriated $1200 for the purchase
of hose, Appropriated 3600 for a fire alarm siren.

FEBRUARY 6, 1%26. Appropriated $5000 to pur-
chase a five-ton tractor and snow plow.

MARCH 15, 1926. Voted to discontinue certain
streets if the Boston & Maine Railroad should locate
the propozsed new freight yvards. (The proposed site
for the freight yards was abandoned).

FEBRUARY 7, 1927. Voted %1500 for the pur-
chase of land of Mary Lynch for an enlargement of
the Foster School Tot.

FEBERUARY 1. 1828, Apvropriated $1600 for two
Ford Dump Trucks for the Highway Department,
(The first motor equipped trucks for the Town).

Voted to sell all horses and horse-drawn equip-
ment.
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JUNE 4, 1928, Appropriated 32000 for two trucks
cor the Highway Department.

FEBRUARY 2, 1929, Committee appointed to
consider the advisability of a water system for the
town. (Later report accepted and committee dis-
charged).

JULY 24, 1833. Appropriated 35000 for the De-
partment of Public Welfare.

DECEMBER 27, 1923, Appropriated 35000 to se-
cure a site for a High School Building.

Elected a committee of five to enter into con-
tracts to erect a High School. Appropriated §$80,000

for the construction of, equipping and furnishing a
High School.

FEBRUARY 7, 1934, Appropriated $1000 for the
observance of the 200th Anniversary of the Incor-
poration of the Town of Tewksbury. Committes,
Harold J, Patten, Mark Roper and John J. Sullivan.

MAY 2, 1934, Voted that the committee appoint-
ed to construct the High School make application
for a Grant from the Federal Government under the
National Recovery Act.

July 16, 1934,  Appropriated $500 as an additional
amount for the proper observance of the Incorpora-
tion of the Town.

.mﬁm.

Page Forly-four
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Ships

“Some Ships go Kast and some go West,
Whilst the self-same wind doth blow ;
For it’s rudder and sail, and not the gale,.

Decidz where the ship shall go.
Nor wind nor gale controls onr fate,
As we journey along through life;

[t's the set of the soul decides the goal,
And not the calm and the strife.”

BALFE SERVICE COMPANY
Printers of? yg Cowne Book

190 MIDDLE STREET LOWELL, MASSACHUSETTS
migge11

Lowell Metal Ceiling Co.
EXPERT REPAIRING OF

United Cloak & Suit Co. e ol

HARRY BASS, Prop.

Compliments of

673 Broadway Lowell, Mass.

117-129 Central St. Lowell, Mass. Telephone 2471

John Brady
Hobson & Lawler Co. TEAMING AND TRUCKING

Wholesale and Retail Dealers in ;
Dealer in

PIPE, VALVES, FITTINGS AND Coal, Wood, Sand, Gravel, Cement
PLUMEING SUPPLIES and Cinders
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Daniel Gage, Inc.

menan JOE

More than a business—An Institution

Natural

for over 50 vears
McKEE REFRIGERATORS
Guaranteed One leing in Five Davs

BEST WISHES
TO
TOWN of TEWEKSBURY

on Their 200th Anniversary

Scannell Boiler Works

Lowell Massachuzsetts

Telephone 280

Cover & Palm Co.

FEED and GRAIN

Poultry Supplies

150-151 Middle Street Lowell, Mass.

Dr. Harold N. Eames Dr.
Res, Tel. 68%9-R

W. E. Merrill
Res. Tel. 5316

Eames & Merrill

Veterinarians
Veterinary Hospital
Tel. B890-W
215 Mansur Street Lowell, Mass.

OFFICE HOURS:

59 a. m.—6.30-7.30 p, m. By Appointment Also

Where They Grow™
FLOWERS

—For All Occasions—

Pleasant-View Gardens

Andover Road No, Tewkshury

CLEANERS AND DYERS INC.

Lowell’s Largest and Most Modern

Cleaning T'lant

ALL GARMENTS THOROUGHLY
CLEANED — EXPERTLY
REFINISHED

2 Garments for 75(:

— THREE STORES —
279 Bridge St 109 Central St.
Tel. ©26 Tel. 8341
345 Westford St.—Tel. 8340

LOWELL, - - MASSACHUSETTS
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——— e District Schosl —

R. PRIDE tells us that on Decamber 10, 1740, Mr. Stephen Osgood was appointed by the
town to serve as school master for the remainder of the vear. Three yzars later it was
voted to have a writing and reading school in town. Mr. Franklin Kittridge and Capt.

Peter Hunt were chosen as our first school committee. For some twenty years the usual three
months’ school seems to have bezn kept.

In 1771 the town was divided into squadrons, The next vear Lucy Needham, the first female
teacher, was employed. In 1774, money was appropriated to build school houses in the several
squadrons.

School No. 1 at the South District. The old school stood at the corner of South and il
Streets.  Probably Mr. Calvin Shedd
and Deacon Parker Foster were among
those attending this school. Later
there was a school at the corner of
Main and Hill Streets, near the old
blacksmith shop. Here over one hun-
dred years ago Nancy Bridges gave the
reward of merit which 1s on exhibition,
to a little girl from School No. 2. Her
parents boarded her in the South Dis-
trict because of the longer term there,
We are told by a grown-up boy that
girls as well as boys came to this
school barefooted. A teacher tells of
the work and worry caused by those
same little feet venturing on the thin
ice of the Shawsheen River.

The new school still stands across
the river on the opposite side of the
road. Here children continued labor- YE DISTRICT SCHOOL
ing over the A B C’s and algebra,

Among the early teachers none are more lovingly remembercd than Miss Letitia Clark.

School No. 2 at the Centre—The corner stone of the old building that stood near the gate-
way of the cemetery was recently discovered when a grave was being dug. Tradition gives us a
story from this school. “The President, Andrew Jackson, is on his way to Lowell to look over
the mills. The children of the school are promised a treat if they are orderly. They assemble
under a big tree on the corner of Main and Lee Streets and await the procession which comes
at last and goes on for a gala day in Lowell.”

Of those living who enjoy telling stories of the school at the corner of Main and James
Streets, one says that “Mary Ann was very smart in her studies. She sometimes amused herself
in those leisure moments by removing the screws from the rear seats.,” All remember the pain-
staking work of their teachers, Miss Wilder among others. (The third school house was after-
wards a part of the Spaulding School).

School No. 3 at the North District. Not far from the old school on the present site stood the
older building at the corner of Andover and North Streets. In both these schools mental arith-
metic was stressed. Misses Sarah Richardson and Kate Iuntress were among those who helped
develop the minds of the bovs and girls.

School No. 4 at the Northwest District. The old red schoolhouse near Stafford Road was
burned. A new school house was built on Andover Road but when the land was sold to Mr.
Pickering, the school was moved to Ridge Hill. In the old school Lawyer Davis taught during
the winter. He was very strict in discipline but so thorough was his teaching that several pupils
came over from a neighboring district [or instruction. Other teachers were Mr. Whitcomb, who
became a missionary to the Sandwich Islands; Dr. Gage, afterwards pastor of a Hartford church,
and Jacob Clark,

Page Forty-five
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Minister Tolman, a member of the school com-
mittee, solemnly impressed the children that each
boy should prepare himself to become president of
the United States and each girl ghould fit herself to
take up the duties of the wife of the president.

“Men of ye several disiricts, there is a little lady
who attended your schools who remembers studying
vour beloved Colburn’s Mental Arithmetic but her
book was stained with tears.”

In the new school Miss Alice Marshall gave her
faithful service fitting many a pupil for Lowell High
School.

School No. 5§ at the West District. The old
school was on the site where the Charles French
house now stands, not [ar from the senior David
Rogers' home where the children got their drinking

" REWARD OF MERIT.

Gmnmf. toyﬂ—w g;zfé"@f" i water, Mre. Rhoda Parkhurst Davis, who attended
? 2 this school over ninety years ago, tells us that the
Iﬂ'r M"‘g'*”mmimw'm‘?,ﬂfgm : benches at the rear of the room each seated three

pupils, those at the ifront two. There was a clearly
defined boys' and girls' side but alas mischievous
“Rhody” with the curls enjoyed occasionally bridge-
; ing the distance with a sly whisper, making the very
e quiet Joel laugh.

Miss Fidelia Rogers was one of the early teach-
In the winter, Joshua French taught. The chil-
dren enjoyed the visits of his brother Ebenezer, who
often recited for them their favorite poem, which

never failed to make them langh.  Well liked also was the kindly Deacon Pillsbury who .4.;,!{0{1
them guestions on examination day.

7 ﬁe}mwmwhwﬂ W@%ﬁ o

Awarded to Miss M. Esther Marshall's mother ers
104 years ago,

The day began with the reading by each pupil of a passage from the Bible. The children
gathered about their teacher and sang as she played their favorite songs. The three R's were
well taught. Mr. French called Rhoda his best writer.

School No. 6 at the East District. The old red school house on East Street was on the op-
posite side of the track from the new school house now owned by the state. Many children walked
long distances to this school, some coming from near the Ballardvale line. The same story might
be told of the faithful work of teachers here. Often mentioned 1s the name of Miss Fannie
Spaunding who also taught in other districts of the town.

School No. 7 at Wamesit. The old school was in the Belvidere section which was annexed
to Lowell. The school house was then moved to a site opposite the Blaisdel house, but as Ather-

ton Mills brought in a larger population, this was replaced by a two-room building which served
until the schools were consul dated.

The Private Schools. In 1830 the town voted that Dr. Henry Kitteridge and others have
liberty to keep a private school in the Town Hall, In the house now occupied by Mr. Walter
Pillsbury a private school was held in the kitchen where there was an open well on which the
teacher was accustomed to rap for order. To the great amusement of the children that thimble
at the time of a very ecnergetic rap fell into the well. There were several other private schools.
College Road, now Trull Street, was the road over which vouths walked to the home of Minister
Coggin to be fitted for College.

The Tewksbury High School. The High School used the upper part of the building that has
since been remodeled into the Spaulding School.  The pioneer class of six graduated in 1891, Miss
Kirkland of New York was its first teacher. Mr. Galger is associated in our minds with chemis-
try, mineralogy and geology, and his cousin, Mr. Jackson with astronomy, Caesar, and Virgil.
Miss Goucher, the assistant, led us in literary paths —With her we Lost and Regained Paradise.

The class propht_t as he stood before us in the old church gave no hint that one of our littlz
class would be instructing hundreds of girls of the Teachers” College in penmanship, The prophet
himself was our leading 1"}’1'-“--\ singer. He has since then joined that choir invisible.

Poge Forty-siv
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Tel. 8183 “Say it with Flowers"”

Elizabeth M. Lee

—FLORIST—

Cut Flowers and Potted Plants
also Floral Designs

\-\-"}]]‘I;])]c R, West ’l’cwkshur}'

Penn Gas and Oil

“The Red House”

TEA ROOM
HELEN MacKAY, Prop.

Farm Produce

(reetings...

WILMINGTON WATER WORKS

Jesse E. Kemp

Butcher

Trull Street Tewksbury

Tel. Lowell 2541-W

Gas 0il

Hinton Farm
Fresh Picked Vegetables

Ed. Hinton, Prop. Shawsheen River

Main Street—Tewksbury

Fairgrieve & Co.

GENERAL MERCHANDISE

Austin F. and Jesse J.
FRENCH

MARKET GARDENERS

Fruit, Vegetables and Hard Wood

4244-]—TELS.—4244-M

Huntley’s Lunch

“A Good Place to Eat”
N. HARRY HUNTLEY, Prop.

CATERING and CLUB SUPPERS

Wilmington—Tel. 438
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River Ridge Orchards | Tewksbury Meat Market
H. E. Thompson & Son, Props. A. TREMBLY, Prop.
FARM PRODUCE and APPLES FANCY GROCERIES
Ice Cream, Confectionery, Tonic,
McIntosh and Baldwins a Specialty Cigars and Tobacco
River Road North Tewksbury [Last Street Tewksbury, Mass.

2] el Telephone Connection
Tel, Lowell 83506

Kalsomining Paper Hanging

Bolton & Nottis North Tewksbury Garage

W. 1. BAILEY, Prop.
Interior and Exterior Painting
AUTOMOBILE REPAIRING

[Lstimates Cheerfully Given

Tewksbury Center Massachusetts Tel. Lowell 936-12

Tel. Lowell 434-12

Congratulations to the Town of Tewksbury on its
200th Anniversary

PATTEN & CO.

TEWKSBURY, MASS.
HAROLD J. PATTEN — CARNATION SPECIALIST

Established at Lowell, Mass. in 1870

The first commercial grzenhouse The first retail florist shop
in Lowell in Lowell.

Moved to the present location in Tewksbury in 1888,
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——— QOld Homesteads =——

JONATHAN GRAY Homestead,

Center Village, built about 1769,

Residence of Harriz M. Briggs,

Jagues Homestead, corner Main
and Chandler Streets, built about 1795,
Present owner Daniel Sheehan.

Squire Rogers Homestead, Main
Street near Wamesit, built early in
1800 ; original owner unknown. Res-
idence of Mrs. Alice Pike.

Clark House, on Shawsheen Street,
built about 1780, Present owner Rob-
ert Barron.

Burtt House, South Street; built
about 1800. Present owner James H.
Lord.

Gray House, at the Center; built
about 1800, owned by the Wamesit REV. SAMPSON SPAULDING HOMESTEAD
Association of Masons. Built in 1715

Strachan House, on Livingston Located in Tewksbury Center. Residence of Franklin F.
Street; built prior to 1773, Now owned Spaulding, the [ifth of his line to ocenpy il.
by the State Infirmary. Original build-
er unknown. Here was discovered the first Scotch Heather to be found in this section of New
England, according to Alexander Dawson, of the Arnold Aboretum.

French Homestead, corner of Billerica and French Streets; built about 1800, Present owner
Aaron Osterman,

Jonathan Clark Homestead, North Village: built about 1746. Owned and occupied by the
descendants,

Rev. Jacob Coggin Homestead, in the Center Village; built in 1800. Residence of Mrs. Henry
M. Billings,

Thomas Marshall Homestead, located on Pleasant Street, built in 1728. Iart of this home
is the original structure. Residence of James Marshall and continuously occupied by six gen-
erations of the Marshall Family,

John Chandler Homestead, located
on Chandler St., built in 1802. Owned
and occupied by the Oblate Novitiate.

Pringle House, on Pringle 5St., off
South ; built about 1750. Original own-
er unknown. Now owned by Mr. Allen.

Widow Bailey House, situated near
Trull's Brook; built about 1800, Res-
idence of Cyril Barker, Chief of Police.

Deacon Pillsbury House, on Living-
ston Strezt; built about 1825, Original
owner unknown. Now owned hy the
State Infirmary.

Bravity Gray Homestead, Center
Village; built about 1790, Present
owner, Arthur Tremblay.

Burtt House, on Livingston Street,
former residence of Elbridge Livings-
ton; built about 1790. Original owner
unknown. Now owned by the State
Corner South and Main Street, Residence of Enoch W, Foster Infirmary.

JONATHAN BROWN HOMESTEAD
Built in 1721

Page Forty-seven
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Sanders Homestead, located on
Main Street near the Shawsheen River,
Built about 1800. Later occupied by
A, Hill who conducted a blacksmith
shop. Owned by Tenney.

Samuel Clark House, on Chandler
Street. Original owner unknown, Built
about 1800. Owned by the State In-
firmary.

Kittredge House, on Vale Street,
known as the Manley DPlace. Built
about 1780,

Chapman Homestead, Center Vil
lage; built in 1790. Kesidence of Al
bert S5, Briges,

Kenney House, located on I’leasant

e Street near the Center Village. Orig-
Built about 1742—Near th[; Naorth T"’illl],’-"[‘ﬂ Jﬂ]‘]gilml owner unknown. ,“:'lal LJ\:\’E.T{.‘-I' L1n|<110\\;'1"1; bu,'llt a].J{'JUt 1795,
Besidence of Miss Josepline Baltles. I'he residence of Frederick Carter.

Chandler House, corner of Main
and Chandler Streets.  DBuilt  about
1777,

Alvin Marshall Home, built in 1805,
Situated on Main Street near Chandler,
Now owned by Albert Kathrina,

Abram Mace Homestead, located on
Main Street at Wamesit; built about
1780, Original ewner unknown, Owned
and occupied by the Soteriades Fam-
ily.

Zachariah Hardy Homestead, on
River Road, North Tewksbury; built
in 1736, Residence of Joseph Seamans,

George Lee House, huilt about 1505,
Situated on Lee Street. Original owner
unknown. Alterwards known as the
“Old Tannery House™

TIMOTHY ROGERS HOMESTEAD -
Built in 174, Corner Rogers Street and Whipple Hoad., - Jona-s. Clar}f Hom'estead, at the
Present owner Melvin G, Rogers North Village. The residence for many

vears of Deacon John L. Moore; built
about 1520, Present owner . Ran-
dolph Fitzgerald.

Sibel Gray House, at the North Vil-
lage ; built in the early 1800°s. Present
owner is Robert Rutledge.

‘The Hilton Homestead, at the
North Village; built in 1802 by Life
Farmer who occupied it at that time.
Another house on this property was
built by James Hardy Jr., and moved
to its present site. We believe this
house to be nearly two hundred years'
old.

Mention should be made of some
of the original homes in the zection
THOW & '[)H,l't. DF ].0“"311.

The Deacon Thomas Clark Home-
stead on Clark Road, built in 1790, The

SAUNDERS HOMESTEAD : s - -1 =
Built about 1745, Vale Street residence of Miss Jennie Clark, The

FPage Forly-cight
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Tonics Pastry

J. R. Rainey
GROCERIES and DELIVERY

“A Good Place to Eat”

at the RUBY

MRS. IDA FULLER, Prop.
Main Street South Tewksbury
TOURISTS ACCOMMODATIED

Tourists Accommeodated

Fred’s Place

MRS, K. LALIBERTE, Prop.

Lunch

FRIED CLAMS A SPECIALTY
—GROCERIES—

Main Street Tewkshury

Fstablished 19149

N. M. Anderson’s Sons

DAIRY PRODUCTS
B0% of our milk supply raised
in Tewkshury., Daily delivery
covering Lowell,
“Grade A" Milk, Cream, Butter and
Buttermilk

Ralph & Anthony Anderson
$029—TELS.—3333-M

Compliments of
Thompson Grove

Main Street Wilmington

W. K. Foss
SIGNS and SHOW CARDS

Phone 264%-1

Tewlksbury Center

GREETINGS!

Tewksbury Diner

In the Centre

[ HOME-MADE PASTRY

Compliments of

Omer N. Blanchard

Andover Street North Tewksbury

Lanners Motor Store
Grocery Service at Your Door
MEATS and PROVISIONS

Fruits and Vegetables
River Road North Tewksbury

' Tel. 5593-M

Tewksbury
Cemetery Corporation

FFor the care of vour lot 1s a

permanent remembrance.

[ i}
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e 1
: Compliments of
Irving F. French
MARKET GARDENER ' McLaughlin & Dennison
West Tewksbury The Rexall Drug Store
Flower and Vegetable Plants in Season th el a e
Tel. 3333-W
Wilmington — Maszachusetts
St Bl Silver Lake Bakery
tarr 5 a erY Herman Bischoff, Prop.
LARGEST HOUSE-TO-HOUSE Finest Quality Bakery Products
BAKERY IN LOWELL
Orders taken on short notice
G1-67 So. Wilder St. for Church and Lodge Parties
| So. Tewksbury Tel. Wilmington 345
To the People of Tewksbury:

You have chosen me moderator in each of twenty-six consecutive

years.

[ deeply appreciate these repeated expressions of confidence and

good will. Accept my thanks for the honor you have shown me.

Melvin G. Rogers

MODERATOR OF TEWKSBURY — 1909-1934
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original house which stood in the rear,
was built by Deacon Clark on his mov-
ing into Tewksbury from Chelmsiord
in 1740,

Deacon Oliver Clark Homestead,
now occupied by Warren Mansur, on
Clark Road, was built in 1809,

The Timothy Hunt House was
built in 1809 by Andrew Clark, on
Clark Road. Now occupied by the
O’Heir Family,

Ebenezer Hunt Homestead, on
Butman Road. Built early in 1800,

The Bootman House, long since
destroved. Butman Road was name:l
after this family,

There are possibly other old home-
steads in the Belvidere section, but PRESTON HOMESTEAD
those mentioned above are in closer Buill prior to 1760, Tewksbury Center. Ttes. of Herbert W. Pillsbury.
proximity to the Tewksbury line.

HOMES and TAVERNS

Enoch Foster Tavern, corner Shaw-
sheen and Main Streets, built about
1525,

Jonathan Brown Tavern, corner
South and Main Streets; built early in
1700, Now owned by Leo Bonuglh.

Browns Tavern, at the Center Vil-
lage, prominently mentioned in the
carly history of the town. Residence of
Dr. Herbert M. Larrabee.

The Records Committee, in com-
piling the list of “Old Homesteads™ in
the town, have tried to include all
within the town limits; it may be pos- KENDALL HOMESTEAD
sible that some have been unadvertent- Buill prior to 17600 Kendall Road, Present owner Mrs, Jessie Marshall
lv omitted; those listed, were con-
structed in the seventeeth and early
eighteenth century, and are now stand-
mng.

The earliest construction was the
small three-room log cabin. The later
construction was of the cottage typ:>
and the more elaborate two and a hall
story, both of which are shown in the
accompanying cuts. Many  owners
have made changes in the extzrior ap-
pearance of the original structure,

It iz impossible to show pictures
ol all of the homes listed ; those shown
are representative ones in the several
sections of the town.

The date of construction in many
cases iz impossible to ascertain, those
given are believed to be as nearly cor-
rect as possible, from the information DAVID CARTER HOMESTEAD

SRt Muain Stroet., — Built about 1780 on the side of his previous home.
recerved, Owned by the Duffy IFamily.

Page Forty-nine

——— T s T



L

Ye Towne Book

1934

——=—The Old ‘Burying Grounds =—=

RIOR to the incorporation of the

towi, it is reasonable to assume
that most of the burials were made in
the “Churchyards” of cur mother town,
Billerica, near the DMeeting House.
These older Churchyards were either
a part of or nearby the Meeting House.

Many of our alder stones have dis-
appeared through the action of the ele-
ments or the passing of time. Some
have been replaced, usually retaining
the character of these old memorials;
figures of urns, weeping willows and
winged heads, emblematic of the de-
parted spirits.

In these plots of Tand, sacred 1o the
memory of our forefathers who blazed
the wilderness with their loved ones
and fought for their preservation, one

cannot pass without a fecling of reverence and awe.

different than at the present,

OLD CENTER CEMETERY

The alloted span of life appears somewhat

graves of children of early childhood, some in the twenties, but the

majority ranging from the qmenhe‘w throughout the nineties,

Here the graves may be seen ol some of our earliest settlers or their immediate descendents,
many bca.unrr inseriptions to show they served their country in the early wars of that period.

THE OLD CENTER BURYING
GROUND

TONES marking the resting place of the
children of our earliest ministers. John
Spaulding, son of Rev. Sampson and Mehitable
Spaulding who died in 1755 at the age of {our
vears, five months and three days. Also the
son and daughter and wife of Rev. Titus Thea-
dore Barton, bearing the dates of 1799 and
1803,

Among the names appearing are those of
the Kitiredge, Kendall, Marshall, Rogers,
Shed, French, McCoy, Bayley, Hardy families.

Some quaint inscriptions appear:

LIEUT. WILLIAM KITTREDGE,
died April ve 26, 1789 in the 92d year of his Age.

He's gone at length, how many grieve
Whom he did generously relieve

But O how shocking he expire

Amidst the flames of raging fire!

Yet all who sleep in Christ are blessed
What ever way they are undress'd.

Somewhere in this ground lies the body of
Captain John Trull of Revolutionary fame, no
stone marking his grave.

Page IFifty

The oldest stone in this cemetery is that
of the body of John Hardy Ju son of Mr. John
and Abigal Hardy, died Feb'ry 16—1704.

Dea. Ezra Kendall who died in 1817 at the
age of 97 years, on the stone of his wife ap-
pears—

My children and my friends
Prepare to follow me,

This is the home assigned for all
Of high and low degree.

THE SOUTH BURYING GROUND

MONG the familar names appearing in

this cemetery are those of the Baldwin,
Beard, Clark, Brown, Kittredge, Foster,
Thompson, Saunders, Kidder and Burtt fam-
lies.

The oldest stones standing read—

Here Lyes the body of
DOCTOR JOHN KITERIG
who depared this Life April the 28th 1714
in ye 49th year of his Age.

Ms MARY BALDWIN,
Wife to Mr Jonathan Baldwin who died
Dec’'d Oct. 11th 1727
Aged 52 years.
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PASTEURIZED MILK and CREAM
Mass. “Grade A” Milk

: N. A. Johnson
Cameron’s Dairy J
i DAIRY and FARM PRODUCTS

The Oldest Iistablished Dairy

in Tewksbury 5 - T ey
: North Street North Tewkshury

D. J. Cameron, Prop. No. Tewksbury

[E0S 1934 |
Daniel Sterling
RANGE and FUEL OIL

Patrick J. O’Neill
GENERAL CONTRACTOR

Tel. 1876-13
TEAMING and TRUCKING Main Street Tewksbury Center
Socony Products Storage

Tewksbury Garage

e

Mobil-Oils.....Repairing

Telephone 575-3 Harry Ramsbotham, Prop.
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SO. TEWKSBURY BETTERMENT
A. B. Loomer ASSOCIATION

Organized primarily to ereate civic pride,
promote community spirit, improve the gen-
PROVISIONS eral welfare, sponsor, recommend and =sup-
port betterments beneficial to the Distriet
and Town.

18— 1934 Meetings monthly first Wednesday, 8.00
P. M., al Shawsheen School: Property own-
ers and residents eligible to membership.

Martin Farm

Compliments of MARKET GARDENING

in Tewksbury since 1910

Ralph R. Currier :
|

Andover Street In the North

‘ Harry C. Dawson
Insurance...

NORTH STREET TELEPHONIE 1018 TEWEKSBURY, MASS.

Merrimack Hotel

445 MIDDLESEX STREET

CHARLES C. SCHLOSS LOWELL, MASS.
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A devoted and long-lived couple, John
Clark and his wife Sarah, who died Feb. 13,
1846 and March 1, 1846, both at the age of 85.

A father a mother dear
To much loved friends
Lie buride here.

The Kendall Cemetery, a private family ce-
metery of recent years.

THE CLARK CEMETERY

NOWN in its earliest history as the Hunt
Cemetery, later as the Clark Cemetery.
This old burying ground was set aside for the
early families in that neighborhood and their
decendants. Among the old names are those
of the Hunt, Clark, Chapman, Russell, Worces-
ter, Kimball and Candee families.

The following inscription appears on the
stone of Dr. Waorcester:

Death to the grave hig dugt conveys
There sleeps the hidden prey
Nor wakes till with a mighty noise
The heav'ns shall pass away

The oldest stone is that of Samuel Hunt's
wife,
Here lves ye body
of Sarah Hunt
Wife of Samuel
Hunt, Departed
this life ¥e 10th
of September 1708
in ye 28th year
of her are.

NEW CENTER CEMETERY
0Old Szction

ST()N'I'{S are placed here in memory of such
families as Marshall, Farmer, Jaques,
Brown, Chapman and Blanchard. The graves
of three of the first four ministers who served
the Town and Church, appear in this section.

REVELIL Qhrist be
The Grace of our wm‘;ﬁ;gﬁ all
Lord Jesus :
SACRED
Lo

the memory of
REV. SAMPSON SPAULDING
who died
Dec, 16, 1796
AET 86

Two Hundredth Anniversary

1934

Lord T commit my soul to thee
Accept this sacred trust
Receive the nobler parl of me
And watch my sleeping dust.

REV. JACODR COGGIN
Born Woburn, Sept. 7—1781. Graduated Harvard Un
1802, Ordained over the church in Tewksbury Oct.
22—1806. Died Dec. 12—1854 in the T4th year of
his age and 49th of hig ministry.

REV. RICHARD TOLMAN
1817—1894.

In memory of
MR, JEREMIAH P. CHAFMAN
who died I"eb 15—1821
Aet 41

An hushand kind, a parent dear

A neighbor just, a friend sincere
Confessed by all with him acquainted
He lived beloved & died lamented

New Section

TT\?\-’KSB'L.'RY Cemetery Corporation. Con-
secrated in 1860. Iere lie buried those
loved ones of recent years, the names being
familiar to most of our people.

Many inscriptions in memory of loved ones
appear, one of recent date bearing the follow-
ing,

Warm sumimer sun,
Shine kindly here,
Warm southern wind,
Blow softly here.
Green sod above,

Lie light, Lie light
Good night, dear heart,
Good night, good night.

In other parts of this book will be found
the names of those persons signing the Church
Covenant and those appearing in the list of
persons set apart from Billerica in 1734, of
which no grave stones have been found. It
is reasonable to assume that some are among
the unmarked graves in the older cemeteries.

Page Fifty-one
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Tewksbury Soldiers in the Wars

I'TAL records have never been compiled in detail, showing how long the Tewksbury soldiers
served, names of their various organizations, ranks held by them, and honors bestowed
by a grateful government; but what we do know, is that Tewksbury men and women
have always responded promptly to any call of their government for the defense of their Country,

Prior to the forming of the Tewks- —
bury Minute Men, there were two '
companies of Militia and all three or-
ganizations responded promptly to the
alarm given by one of Paul Revere's
messengers, marching to the Battle of
Lexington and Concord and engaging
with the British troops.

The alarm was given to Capt.
John Trull, and he in turn fired three
shots across the Merrimack River at
a pre-arranged signal with Captain
Varnum of the Dracut Minute Men. to
notify them of the march of the Brit-
ish soldiers.

The Training Field, off Trull Road
in North Tewksbury, was used for the
training of the Revolutionary soldiers.

The first soldier from Tewksbu- HOME OF JOHN TRULL
ry wounded in the Civil War was Captain of the Tewksbury Minute Men.
George 'W. Loverin, a member of
Company D, 6th Infantry Regiment, Massachusetts Volunteers, Private Loverin was wounded
in the riots when the “Old Sixth” passed throngh Baltimore, Maryland, April 19, 1861.

We hope in the near future, that Vital Records in detail, may be compiled and published,
sa that the proper credit due these men and women may be embodied in book form. and bear a
silent record to the coming generations, of Lhe part Tewkshury played in the formation and de-
velopment of our beloved Country.

The list of men credited with service in the Wars and Campaigns in which the United
States has been engaged, has been compiled from the records of the Massachusetts Historical So-
ctety, Archives of the Secretary of the Commonwealth and the Adjutant General’s Office of the
Commonwealth.

FRENCH AND INDIAN WAR, 1753 - 1763

Beard, Aaron Frost, Edmund Jr. Leveston, John, Lt
Brown, Joseph Corp. Froat, Joseph Mace, Daniel
Brown, William Frost, Joshua Mace, Isaar
£ 4 FFrost, Samuel Mears, Samuel
(:ha.rrlp‘_:LIl. Rl e Griffin, Daniel Merrill, Stephen
Clark, Benjamin : g
Clark, Peter, Lt. Hall, Oliver Ober, William
Cogin, Thomas Hazeltine, Samuel Oseood, Stephen
gin, i

Hoegg, Benjamin Peacoclk, Thomas
Danforth, Samuel Hunt, Nathan Putman, Samuel
Dutton, Timothy Hunt, Peter SU‘.B'I'IIS, Oliver
Farmer, Peter Hunt, William, T.t, Shed, Jonathan
sk, Ebenezer Jacquith, Ebenezor Shedd, Jacob, Corp.
Fish, Ephriam Jewelt, Seth Stickney, Abraham, Ensign
Flint, Thomas Kidder, Joseph, Qapt. Stickney, Daniel
Foster, Amos Kittredge, Daniel Thorndike, James
French, Benjamin Kittredge, Joshua Trull, David
French, Jonathan Kittredge, Nathan Jr, Whiting, Oliver
Frizel, Samuel Kittredge, Timothy Winch, Samuel

Page Fifty-two
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M. Louis Farmer, St.
H. Louis Farmer, Jr. FREE USE
FUNERAL OoF
DIRECTORS FUNERAL
Lee 5t. HOME

Tewksbury, Mass.
Tel. 2266-W

| Compliments of

Compliments of Peter BOItOH

CANDIDATE FOR

REPRESENTATIVE
17th District

Mr. and Mrs. Harry F. Betts

JOHN T. GALE

Tlorist

TEWEKSBURY MASSACHUSETTS

COMPLIMENTS OF
EDWARD J. WALSH

Superintendent of Streets

T
-
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See a Real Imported English Interior

Frank H. BY&I’S You are hereby invited to visit
Ye Olde
GENERAL INSURANCE Kopper Kettle Tavern

Best of Food and Refreshments
Appleton Bank Bldg.

174 Central 5t. Lowell, Mass. |

Pawtucket Boulevard Lowell, Mass.
Tel. 2253-12

i
Congratulations SMA ! I S 12 Kearney Sq.
To Fairburn Bldg.

Lowell Mass.
Tel, 583

Town of Tewksbury Prescription Druggists
We Do Our Best to Serve You Best

Yvonnie’s Beauty Shop
Permanent Waving — All Branches of Beauty Culture

131 East Merrimack St Telephone 1184 Lowell, Mass.

Compliments of
Gofkauf’s e
AUTOMOTIVE STORES

A New Lngland Institution . Spaulding & TEWkaUIY o

for New Englanders

AUTO ACCESSORIES
Replacement Parts
BRUNSWICK TIRES — RADIO AND SPECIALTIES

PAPER BOARDS

Main office and store

93 Bridee St Lowell, Mass.
= bRl o Boston - - - Massachusetts
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| WAR OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION, 1775 to 1782

: Annis, Isaac

| Annis, James

| Annis, Phineas

: Babhb, Jozeph

: Bailey, Daniel

| Bailey, Dawvid

: Bailey, James

| Bailey, John

l Bayley, Abraham
| Bayley, Samuel

I Bavley, Timothy
| Baldwin, Joshua

| Ball, John

| Batchelor, John P,
I Batchelor, Prescott
| Beard, Jason

I Beard, Jonathan

| Bell, Jonathan

I Bootman, Edward
: Brown, Jonathan
| Brown, Joseph

I Brown, Timothy

| Brown, William

I Burt, Jonathan
Burt, Benjamin
Burt, Benjamin
Burt, Jacob
Chambers, James
Chambers, James
Chambers, John
Chambers, Thomas
Chapman, Davis
Chandler, Thomas
Clark, Benjamin
Clark, Jacoh
Clark, Joshua
Clark, Peter
Clark, Thomas

Corey, Jacob
E Corey, Jacob Jr.
‘ Corey, Samuel
Crosby, Timothy

Dandely, John
Danforth, Benjamin
Danforth, John
Danforth, Samuel
Iravidson, Alexander
Daviz, Daniel
Dreaser, Jonathan
Dutton, Jonathan
Dutton, Timothy
Dyke, Archelaus
Dyke, Hercules
Farmer, Aaron
Farmer, David
Farmer, Life
Farmer, Samuel
Farmer, William
Fish, Ebenezer, Jr.
Fisk, Benjamin
Fisk, Jonathan
Flint, John

Fostes, Amos
Foster, Amos
Foster, Ezra
Fogter, Jonathan
Foster, Joseph

Fowler, Philip
Frost, Benjamin
Frost, Edmund Jr.
Frost, Ephriam
Frost, Jacob
Frost, Jonathan
I'rost, Jonathan
Frost, Joseph
Frost, Joseph Jr.
Frost, Samuel
French, Aaron
French, Isaac
French, Joel
French, Nehemiah
French, Reuben
French, Samuel
Frie, Prince
Glode, Daniel
Gould, John
Gould, Jonathan
Gray, Jonathan
Gray, Moses
Green, William
Hagget, Jonathan
Hall, John

Hall, Oliver
Hamblet, Jonathan
Hardy, Nehemiah
Hardy, William
Harris, William
Hayvwood, John
Hazeltine, James
Hazelton, Elijah
Hazelton, James
Hazelton, John
Hill, John

Hill, William
Hoadly, Thomas
Hogg, Andrew
Holt, Jesae
Howard, John
Huhbard, Cato
Humphrey, Jonas
Hunt, Ebenezer
Hunt, Tsrael
Hunt, Jonathan
Hunt, Nathaniel
Hunt, Nehemiah
unt, Paul

Hunt, Peter
Hunt, Samuel
Hunt, Timothy
Jewetit, John
Kendall, Ephraim
Kendall, Ezra
Kidder, Jeremiah
Kidder, Jeremiah
Kidder, Josiah
Killum, Daniel
Kitiredge, Asa
Kittredge, Asa
Kittredge, Daniel
Kittredge, Isaac, Jr.
Kittredge, Nathaniel
Kittredze, William
Kittredge, William Jr.
Livingston, Asa

Livingston, Daniel
Livingston, William
Longgun, Sam
Mace, Benjamin
Meanning, Eliphalet
Manning, Isaac
Manning, Samnel
Manning, Thomas
Marshall, Joel
Marshall, John
Marshall, Samuel
Marshall, William
Mears, Roger
Mears, Rusasell
Mears, Thomas
Merrill, David
Merritt, Daniel
Marrill, David
Needham, John
Meedham, Stearns
Nicholas, Robert
Ober, Sam

Osgood, Stephen
Parsons, William
Patch, Timothy
FPhelps, Joseph
Richardson, Andrew
Richardson, Jude
Richardson, Thomas
Rogers, Philip
Rogers, Timothy
Rogers, Timothy Jr.
Sanders, Jacob
Scarlett, Newman
Bhed, Jacob

Shed, Josl

Shed, Jonathan
Shed, Marcus

Shed, Nathan
Spaldwin, Samson
Spanlding, Jonathan
Spaulding, Sampson
Sterns, Thomas
Stickney, Abraham
Stickney, Abraham, Jr.
Stickney, Hleazer
Sweat, Luke
Talbot, Henry
Tavlor, Thomas
Thompson, Joshua
Thompson, Samuel (Woburn
Thorndike, Hezekiah
Thorndike, Paul
Tinsley, Richard
Towle, John

Truce, David

Trull, John

Trull, John
Walker, Eliakin
Walker, Supply
Whiting, Moses
Whiling, Olmer
Whittemore, Eben
Wood, Asa
Worcester, Eldad
Worster,- Samuel
Worster, William
Wright, Joel
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WAR OF 1812

Baldwin, Davic Clark, Jesse Morey, Thomas
Brown, George Clark, Peter Shead, Isaac.
Hardy, William

WAR OF THE REBELLION, 1861 - 1865

Ahbott, Ahbiond C. Dyer, John Noonan, Dennis
Atking, Samuel S. Fiefield, Stephen C. Osgood, Jesse C.
Babcock, Frederick K. Fletcher, James H. Oreutt, Charles A,
Bailey, George Frane, Francis C. Fage, Dudley L.
Balcom, Frank M. George, Jason R. Phelps, Enoch B.
Ball, Francis Gillion, John Pickering, Daniel
Ballard, Edward Glass, Abraham Pierson, Hiram J.
Benson, Samuel W. Gleason, Dennis Poor, Washington L.
Benton, Theodore M. Golding, Joseph Preston, George L,
Boomhover, Horatis Goodman, Peter Riley, Patrick
Brady, Patrick Gray, George H. Saunders, Ziba C,
Brady, William G. Hapgood, Willlam I, Seaver, George A,
Brait, Francis H. Henry, Irving Senter, Almon 3.
Brown, Jonathan Iill, John Shed, Abner A,
Brown, Samuel . Hucking, Charles M. Shed, Charles O.
Bryant, John M. Hucking, Edwin J. D. Smith, Charles H.
Burns, Richard Hucking, Henry L. Smith, James H.
Calves, James M. Huckins, Watson F. Smith, John T.
Camphbell, Alexander Jacques, Frederick P. Smith, John W.
Cartney, William Jaques, William L. Smith, William
Casey, John Jenking, William Sotling, Henry
Church, Thomas Johnson, Elijah Spaulding I, Martin
Clark, Anson B, Jones, Robert Spaulding, George B.
Clark, John Kendall, Daniel A, Stackpole, Albert B.
Clark, Samuel H. Kerwin, William Stone, Josephus
Clifford, Thomas Kittredge, Henry Sullivan, John
(olman, James M, Lane, Lyman Symns, Jesse
Condon, David Loverin, George W. Tavlor, John P.
Conely, Michael Lnring_fston, Samuel J. M. Tingley, William B.
Cormick, John Manning, Thomas T Tamesd
Cornish, John Marshall, Alonzo D. el “’ willi .-H
Cowell, John Marshall, Herman lru. i {3'“ :
Crowd, Edwin 8. Matthew, Martin Twiss, Alvin 8.
Cushing, Aungustus C. Maynard, William W, Tye, James
Cushing, George MeCormick, John Tyler, Alonzo C.
Cushing, Waldo 5. MeDonald, Alexander B. Welsh, Hdwin
Daley, James B. MeDonald, Anthony Whittemore, Daniel A.
Davis, George Jr. MeDonald, Hugh Whitlemore, William F,
Davis, Lowell McGovern, Patrick Williams, Ansel W.
Davis, Thomas McGovern, Thomas Williams, James J.
Davis, Riley MeQuarrie, Alexander Willlams, James 3.
Dexter, Jairus A. Merriam, John W. Winters, William
Dexter, Samuel W. Mitchell, Richard Wood, Albert

Duily, William Maoore, Spencer Young, John J.

SPANISH AMERICAN WAR, 1898-1899

Davis, Herbert A. Moore, Adolph B. Murphy, Daniel
Meer, Robert J. Ruckledge, William D.

MEXICAN BORDER SERVICE, 1914-1919

Patten, Harold J.
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Petersen’s Poultry Farm

Shawsheen Street

Tewkshury Massachusetts

Wilmington
Builders Supply Co.
LUMBER—MASONS’' SUPPLIES

Paint, Varnish and Builders’

Hardware

Tel:phone 167 Main St

John L. Fleming

Came from New Hampshire, Aug. 20th, 1877
and engaged in the blacksmith and carriage
business on Andover St., Tewkshury, and fol-
lowed the same for more than fifty years.
He took his first fire insurance agency in 1884
and in 1934 still continues in the fire and au-
tomobile casually busginess.

Tewksbury Ice Co.

JOHN G. MeLELLAN, Prop.

“A Meother Nature Product”
Tel. 1105-11

Gas 0il
SAM'S VARIETY STORE
Delivery Foster's Corner

So. Tewksbury

Gas Qil

Fairview Garage
ROGER BUCK, Prop.

EXPERT REPAIRING & WELDING

—TELEPHONE—

Days: Wilmington 188 Nights: Lowell 434-3

Main Street So. Tewksbury

“Here Comes Your Heat”

Louie’s Range Qil
1009, PURE KEROSENE
Oil Burner Parts

For quick service just call Wilmington 20

The Oy FHouse

GOOD GUERNSEY MILK

From An

Accredited Herd

FRANKLIN F. SPAULDING
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Mark McCann
... MANUFACTURERS...

Film Dryers, G. G. Belton
Frint Rollers,
Lighting Units, ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR
FPhotofloor
Reflectors,

Leica Handy Ring,
Northeast Agitator,
Tripods. Tel. Conn.
... WHOLESALE ONLY ...

Tewkshury S B Massachusetts

Lindley A. Roberts Smith Bros.
Florist Tlorists
i
Marshall Street Tewksbury Marshall Strect Tewkshury
Cut Flowers Funeral Designs
—Plants—
Compliments of F’ Io Carter &_ Sons
lorists
Fro-Joy Ice Cream Tlorists
Main Street Tewksbury
Tel, 4249
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WAR WITH GERMANY AND AUSTRIA, 1917-1918

Ames, Adelbert, Jr.
Anastasopoulas, Mike
Anderson, William
Bailey, Dexter
Bebbington, Thomas A.
Bennett, William .
Benson, Richard M.
Bram, Linwood H.
Caldwell, IMlorence E.
Caldwell, George W.
Cameron, Fred M.
Chisholm, Florence B.
Colburn, Dr. Harry H.
Colleran, John P.
Coomhs, Walter D.
Conroy, Peter J.
Cristofero, Antonio
David, James

Daw, Elwyn H.
Dawson, Harry C.
Dickson, Arthur W,
Drolet, Louis P.

Finn, Pierce L.,
Fitzgerald, Charles B.
Faoley, Frank T.
Forlier, Damas
French, Harold .
French, Jesse J.
Fuller, Walter P,
Fulton, Everett 1.
Gale, Ernest C.

Gale, George A,
Gibbons, Walter D.
Gill, Thomas
Graham, William G.
Holden, Sarah E.
Jackson, Hector
Johnson, Edwin I,
Kane, George K.
Kelley, Frank A.
Laecy, James L.,
Lacy, Peter W.
Langlois, Joseph F.
Leary, Edward
Leary, Frederick A.
Lee, Joseph A.
Lynech, James E.
Manley, Eugene W,
Manley, Thomas J.
Martin, Rdward M.
Martin, Emanuel
MeCausland, Thomas C.
MeGann, Rev. Francis X.
MeCracken, David J.
Millett, Willilam R.
Mondrone, Guiseppi
Moody, Wilbur H.
Norton, Thomas .
Ogston, James H.
Osterman, HEdwin W.
Patten, Harold J.
Patterson, Harry W.

um‘%ma

Peirce, Dr. George A.
Petersen, Oscar W.
Piccardi, Hugo
Pillasbury, George B.
Powers, John J.
Prince, Rufus

Putman, Barry
Quennell, Dr. Willard L.
Rockwell, Walter R.
Rouff, Edward M.
Rovelle, Emilio

Rvan, John T.

Savage, Frederick
Sawyer, Walter H
Scott, Samuel J.
Shalvey, John J.
Shuriz, Dennis

Smith, John R. Jr.
Spaulding, John A,
Stankwich, Michael W.

Stevens, Ames

Stevenson, William G.
Sunbury, Harry A.
Sunhury, Herhert E.
Tenney, Arthur
Toothaker, Roger A,
Trull, Agnes J,
Trickey, Dr. Charles L.
Tufts, Lutie

Vivier, Joseph A,
Whitcher, Ernest I,
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——=——= 0Old Industries =—=—

THE OLD TANNERY

The Tannery on Lee Street was
built by George Lee, who came from
Attleboro in 1839,

In the early days belt lacings were
the chief products, but later the manu-
facture of moccasin leather became an
important item of manufacture, This
leather was sent to Maine, chiefly,
where it was made into shoes for the
use of backwoodsmen,

Mrs. Jane Allen and others, made
gloves from hides dressed at the Tan-
nery and a pattern of these gloves will
be found in the Historical exhibit.

Scrapings from the hides were
taken to Jacquith's Tactory in Bille- LEES TANNERY
rica, where they were made into glue.

William H. Lee succeeded his father in carrying on the Tannery until the early nineties,
when the demand for moccasin leather ceased. Nearly all the employees were residents in the
town. Many of the hides were bought from local sources but at times hides were secured as far
south as Washington, D. C.

MOCCASIN SHOPS—AL one time there were two Moceasin Shops located in the town.
One carried on by Henry Tingley and Philip Jacques, located on Main Street, about where the
residence of Wilham R, Millett now stands. Later the partnership was dissolved and Mr. Ting-
ley opened a shop in the house now occupied by James Manley, at the corner of North and Fast
Streets,

CABINET SHOPS—It may be interest to know that the first knock-down furniture made
in the United States, was manufactured in our town. In 1851 a firm of local citizens opened this
shop under the name of J. & E. Foster
& Co. The members were Joel Foster,
Enoch Foster and Nathaniel Cole. It
was located in the lot adjoining and
south east of the George Brown home.

At first horse-power was used —
later a steam mill was built and other
shops added. At one time as many as
fifty men were emploved.

Much of the furniture was sent to
California. Freight being high, the
firm originated the idea of making
knock-down furniture, thereby being
able to ship four pieces in the space of
one. Trade connections were made J. & E. FOSTER & CO.
with Cuba, Africa, and the Southern
Stat%s. At the beginning of the Civil War, the blockade prevented the shipping of goods to
the South.

In 1862, Mr, Cole went to San Francisco and opened a wholesale furniture store, followed by
Joel Foster in 1865. In 1868 the business here was sold and in 1870 Enoch Foster joined the
others in California. Here they retained the identity of the firm and continued the manufacture
of furniture in the State Prison at St. Quentin.

Puage Mifty-siz
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George F. Garland & Son

DAIRY
And Market Gardener

Compliments of

A. B. Moore
Clarke Road Tewkshury

WAMESIT 5ECTION

Fuel Oil Grain
Osterman’s Dairy

In business since 1372

Wilmington Coal & Ice Co.
A, L. OSTERMAN, Prop. MILEK and CREAM

From our own tuberculin-tested herd.

Tel. Wilmington 154
£ Tels—Lowell 7002 and 7735

Est. 1849 Tel. Andover 386-M

Compliments of

J. W. Stark

Four Generations

Mark Roper

) : CARNATION SPECIALIST
85 Years in the Meat Business

BALLARDVALE
Pleasant Street Tewksbury Center
Delivery to Tewksbury
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Folsom Farm
FRESH FRUIT and VEGETABLES

Raised on the Premises

OPEN TO YOUR INSPECTION
Ashby A, Nash, Prop.

Main Street Tewksbury

One mile below the Centre

Douglas & Company

SLATE, GRAVEL, TILE and METAL
ROOFING

Cornice and Skylight Work
Chimney Repair Work
Dealers in Coal Tar Pitch and All Kinds
of Roofing Material.

147 Rock Street Lowell, Mass.

Tel. 2316-W

F. ]J. Flemings Estate

WRAPPING PAPER

Bags and Twine

115 Perry St. L.owell, Mass,

Compliments of

Pratt & Forrest Company

CONGRATULATIONS
to the
TOWN of TEWKSBURY

Grossman Lumber Co.
INC.

Boston Road Billerica

EVERYTHING TO BUILD WITH

Tel. Billerica 413 Tel. Lowell 189

REPRESENTATIVE
Harry Dunlap Brown

of Billerica

e

Candidate for Sheriff
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Patten’s Cabinet Shop—Here lumber was cut, trimmed and made into furniture. The
veneer was purchased elsewhere. Furniture was shipped “Round the Horn” to California.

In Pattenville, at Patten’s Cabinet Shop, furniture was made and teamed over the road to
Boston. Here Dudley L. Page was employed.

Alvin Marshall was engaged in the furniture business for about fifteen vears, in the Fred
Scarlett House. At the close of the Civil War he transferred his business to Lowell where, in
partnership with Charles Crosby, he continued to manufacture furniture.

Gregory & Barrell manufactured pine tables and similar articles.

Aaron Frost manufactured coffins and had a wheelright shop adjoining his house on Main St

CHEMICAL WORKS. At Wamesit was located the Taylor & Barker Chemical Works, man-
ufacturing large quantities of charcoal, ammonia, ndigo, sulphuric acid, vitroil and wood acid.

MACHINE SHOP. At Atherton Village, nearer Lowell, the Atherton Machine Shop was
located. Here cotton machinery was manufactured and sold to the mills of Lowell and vicinity.

PEAT MILL. The Huntington Peat Mill, at Wamesit, located back of the Chemical Works,
in operation sixty-eight years ago,

CORN CAKE FACTORY. The Littlefield Corn Cake Factory, owned and operated by
Charles Littlefield, located at Wamesit. Here pop-corn balls were made, corn ground into corn-
cake and molasses candy was sold.

COBBLER SHOP. At North Tewksbury, Deacon John Moore had a Cobbler Shop in the
building pictured in this book, showing the Post Office and General Store,

JEFFERSON'S SOAP FACTORY. About 1889 Perry M. Jefferson built a soap factory on
Robinzon Avenue at Tewksbury Center. Both hard and soit soap were made here and retailed in
Lowell and suburban towns until 1904 when the business was sold to the Lowell Rendering Co.

GRIFFIN PUMP WORKS. Located on Astle Street in Wamesit. In existence sixty-eight
vears ago. We are unable to learn many details except that wooden pumps were constructed
here. Wood pipe made from white pine logs up to sixteen feet long were bored out by a special
auger and reamed to fit other logs, making a very satisfactory system before iron pipe came
in general use,

CROSBY CANNING FACTORY. About fifty years ago, Mr. George Crosby operated a

canning factory on his property on Whipple Road. He was the first to successiully can dried

beel and squash in this country, also canning corn, tomatoes and other vegetables,  These
products had a ready sale in various parts of the country. Local people found 1t convenient to
have their own vegetables canned here for their personal use. This canning factory was on the
property now owned by M. P. Mahoney. i

THE OAKUM SHOP. One hundred vears ago, a firm known as Livingstone, Marshall &
Allen conducted an Oakum Shop in the building at the corner of what is now the mew part of
North Street, (crossing East Street to Main) where Mr. James Manley lives. Here all sizes of
rope were made and a profitable business carried on for quite a few years.

GRIST MILL AND SAW MILLS. These mills were of the greatest importance to the
early settlers. The various grains had to be ground and lumber cut for the construction of the
homes of that period. These mills were located in different sections of the town, near brooks and
rivers to secure water power and float the logs.

The map of 1796 shows the following: |

TRULLS MILL, a grist and saw mill on Trulls Broak.

KENDALLS MILL, a saw mill on Strongwater Brook,

BORDENS MILL, a grist and saw mill, on the Shawshin River,
BROWNS MILL, a grist and saw mill, near mouth of the Concord River.
PATTENS MILL, a grist and saw mill, on Content Brook in Pattenville,

In 1736 on Johnstons Brook (later called Trulls Brook) at the Merrimack River, Zachariah
Hardy had a saw mill, logs were floated down the Merrimack River to be cut at his mill.

SHRINKING MILL. Ouopposite the Trull saw mill was the Trull Shrinking Mill where
cloth was shrunk and dried in the late 1700's.

BLACKSMITH SHOPS. These were of the greatest importance, especially those located
at or near the Taverns, where those travelling through to Salem or Boston, put up for the night.

Hand forged hinges, pins and nails were in great demand and some things commanded high
prices.  Bayonets used in the Revolution, square-tined forks, axes, picks, bars and wlmlm':t__
showed the skill of the early artisans.

Page Fifty-seven
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MASSACHUSETTS STATE INFIRMARY

Y AN ACT of the Legislature dated May 29, 1852, Chapter 275, authorization for the build-

B ing of three state almshouses was given, to accommodate not less than 500 persons, cach,
$100,000.00 were appropriated for the threz, and sites were selected in Tewksbury, Bridge-

water, and Monson. The three almshouses were erected and were all opened on May 1, 1854, by
proclamation of Governor Emory Washburn. ;

The almshouse at Tewksbury, erected and furnished for 500 persons only, by the 20th of May
1854, had a population of 800. On May 23rd, 200 were transferred to Bridgewater, and on June
24th, 210 were transferred to Monson. The number of admissions from May 1. to December 1,
1854, was 2193 ; the expenditures for the seven months were $20,374.68; the daily average number
of inmates was 705, and the weekly per
capita cost was $ .94%. There were
14 employees.

The government of the almshouse
was placed in the hands of Isaac H.
Meserve, Superintendent; Dr. Jona-
than Brown, Physician, and Rev. Jacob
Coggin, Chaplain. The inspectors were
FElisha Huntington, Stophen Mansur
and Daniel Henchman.

The almshonse consisted of one
wooden structure, the main or central
portion being four stories in height.
The tap floor was used for a chapel or
assembly room; the wings or _exten-
sions were three story and nearly sur-
rounded a small quadrangle. The build-
ing was heated by eight furnaces sup-
plemented by stoves in the coldest
weather. MASSACHUSETTS STATE INFIRMARY

In 1858, Isaac Meserve was suc-
ceeded by Thomas J. Marsh as superintendent who served until 1883, when Col. Wm. D. Tripp was
appointed acting superintendent and served until August 1, 1883, at which time Dr. C. Irving
Fisher was appointed superintendent. Dr. Fisher resgined in 1891, and Dr. Herbert B. Howard,
then Assistant Superintendent, was promoted to the superintendency serving until 189%, when he
resigned and was succeeded by Dr. John H. Nichols, the present superintendent.

Tn 1866, a department for mental cases was established and a large brick building for 250 fe-
male patients, constructed. A training school for nurses was established in 1894, with Miss
Clara V. Stevens as the first Superintendent of Nurses and Principal of the Training School.

By an Act of the Legislature of 1900, the name of the State Almshouse was changed to
State Hospital, and by Act of the Legislature of 1909, the name of State Hospital was changed to
State Infirmary.

Seventy-eight employees, men, and women, went directly into the World War from the In-
firmary, including 10 out of 16 of the medical staff. As far as is known, only one did not return
from overseas—Dennis F. OFConnell, an orderly, of Buchardville, Pa., who died of pneumonia,
Feb. 25, 1919, in an Army Hospital at St. Aignan, France, where he was serving as an orderly.

The State Infirmary at the present time is a hospital with over 50 brick buildings and 30
wooden structures including cottages for employees; a water tower of 1,000,000 gallons’ storage;
a steam heating and electric lighting and power plant; a laundry with a capacity of over 120,000 1bs.
per week ; a farm of 894 acres ; a dairy herd of over 200 head of thoroughbred Holstein stock, in-
cluding 109 milking cows with average milk production for the year 1933, of 12,602 Ibs. per cow.

The cost of maintenance of the State Infirmary for the fiscal yvear ending Nov. 30, 1933, was
$012,342.68; the daily average number of patients, 3,069, and the weekly per capita cost, $5.71.

The present personnel is comprised of the Superintendent and Resident Physician, 13 as-
sistant physicians, a steward, dentist, 2 graduate male nurses and 65 male attendants, 32 graduate
female nurses and 157 female nurses and attendants, and 239 other employees, or a total of 511.

The State Infirmary is governed by a Board of seven Trustees as follows: Dr. G. Forrest
Martin of Lowell, Chairman ; Robert G. Stone of Brookline, Vice-Chairman; Mrs. Nellie E.
Talbot of Brookline, Secretary ; Hon. Dennis D. Sullivan, Middleborough; Mrs. Mary E. Cogan,
Stoneham ; Dr. Patrick J. Meehan, Lowell; and Charles A. Cronin, Lawrence.
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No Charge for
the
Beautiful
Funeral Home

Sanes FODonelle Sons.

FUNERAL HOME = /66 PAWTUCKET ST

RNER FLETCIHER =

Lowell Mass, — Tel. 166

John Y. Myers, Inc. Felker’s Farm

West Tewksbury
ALL-WOOL SUITS, TOPCOATS,

OVERCCATS, PANTS

have owned and carried on this

farm since 1830,
Made to Measure and Ready-Made

VEGETABLES and MILK
Their Speciaities

FFactory, 54 Church St. Lowell, Mass.

FIRE WORKS SUPPLIED

—BY THE—

American Fire Works Company

120 Boylston Street Boston, Massachusetts

Three generations of the Felker Family
fal -

&=
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BEST WISHES

T'rom

Hon. Edith Nourse Rogers
Member of Congress

Compliments of

Plaza Lunch

19 Merrimack St. Lowell,

Telephone 44963

Compliments of

Rex Amusement Centre

Lowell, Mass.

CHARLES DANCAUSE, Prop.

Mass.

Albert H. Smith Co.
STARTERS—GENERATORS
HEADLIGHTS
Lovejoy Shock Absorbers

Ignition, Batteries

41 Shattuck St. Lowell, Mass.
Telephone G397

WHY PAY MORE

When you can buy your Dresses and Coats

For Less

Irwin’s, Inc.

83 Merrimack St Lowell, Mass.

Telephone 2187

W. Herbert Blake

...Funeral Director...

(1

THE BLAKE FUNERAL HOME

Westford at Stevens St.
Lowell Massachusetls

H-W—TELS —54-R
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BOY SCOUTS, TROOP 1,
TEWKSBURY

RGANIZED in 1915 with Hector Jackson

as Scoutmaster, — DPurpose: to properly
guide young bovs to 111:111}100(1 In 1934 there
are thirty-three registered scouts. Scoutmas-
ter, Harry P. Wiley; Assistant scoutmasters,
Alden Ducette and Austin McCormack.

GIRL SCOUTS, TROOP 1,
TEWEKSBURY

THT", first Girl Scout Troop in Tewksbury
was organized May 20, 1920 with Miss Net-
tie I.. Hagles as Captain. Tor fourteen years
this troop has maintained an active interest in
Scouting, At present there are forty girls in
the Troop with Miss Ann F. Cheney, Captain.

Mectings are held weekly except during the
summer. The Scouts are formed in patrols
for their opening exercises and also in classes
for their h'ulge worlk,  Part of the time each
week 1s given to recreational games,

The purpose of Girl Scouting is ta help
girls to realize the ideals of womanhood, as a
preparation for their responsibilitizs in  the
home and service to the community.

WAMESIT LODGE—A. F. and A. M.

AMESIT LODGE A. F. and A. M. was
instituted April 11, 1921 by the Most
Worshipful Grand Lodge of Massachusetts,
M. W, Arthur D. Prince of Lowell being the
Grand Master at that time. There were fifty-
two charter members and at the present time
there are one hundred twenty-three active
members,
The meetings are held the first Monday of
cach month in Masonic Hall, on the property
owned by the Wamesit Association.

Wamesit Lodge was organized to enable
the Masons of Tewksbury to meet without the
necessity of travelling to Lowell or the sur-
rounding towns.

HECTOR JACKSON POST, No. 259
AMERICAN LEGION

EWKSBURY POST 259, A. L., was grant-

ed its charter August 20, 1921 with fiftecn
charter members. In May, 1926 the name was
changed to the Hector Jackson Post in honor
of its commander who died in office in March,
1926,

At the present time the I'ost has fiftv-three
members and the meetings are held the first
and third Tuesdays in Legion Hall.

The preamble to the Constitution:

“For God and Country, we associate our-
selves together for the m]lfmnw purposes: To
uphold and defend the L.nnc.muuon of the
United States of America; to maintain law and
order; to foster and perpetuate a one hundred
per cent Americanism; to preserve the mem-
ories and incidents of our association in the
great war; to inculeate a sense of individual
obligation to the community, state and na-
tion; to combat the autocracy of both the
classes and the masses; to make right the mas-
ter of might; to promote peace and good will
on earth; to safeguard and (ransmit to posteri-
ty the principles of justice, ireedom and demo-
cracy ; to consecrate and sanctily our comrade-
ship by our devotion to mutual helpfulnzss.”

THE TEWKSBURY PARENT-TEACHERS
ASSOCIATION

N NOVEMBER 7, 1922, about 150 people

met and organized the Tewksbury Parent-
Teachers” Association. The object of this or-
ganization is to bring the school and the home
closer tog ther, and work for the best good of
the children,

The first officers were: Philip Battles, Pres-
ident; Ralph Sawitzsky and Miss Ethelyn
Howard, Vice-Presidents; Mrs. II. Louis
Farmer, Secretary; Miss \eule ltagles, Treas-
urer.

The Association has ever since successfully
carried on, holding meetings on the second
Tuesday of each month,

The organization has bhezen especially for-
tunate in securing speakers of prominence, in
the field of activities pertinent to the education
and welfare of the childrin
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LADIES' AUXILIARY
Hector Jackson Post 259, A. L.

HFCT()R JACKSON POST 259, Auxiliary
of the American Legion was founded in
August, 1928. The Unit received its charter
May 24, 1929. There were tw.lve charter mem-
bers,

The activities of the Auxiliary are to aid
the Legion in caring for disabled veterans,
child welfare work for children of th: World
War Veterans, assisting in relief work in case
of any local disaster and supporting a program
for adequate national defense,

Meetings are held monthly in Legion
quarters and the membership is now twenty-
four.

SOUTH TEWKSBURY BETTERMENT
ASSOCIATION

RGANIZEED in 1931 with twenty mem-
bers.  In 1934 the membership iz two
hundred and thirty. Purpose: to promote civic
pride and better living conditions in South
Tewkshury.
The meetings are held monthly in the
Shawsheen School.

TEWKSBURY GARDEN CLUB

HE TEWKSBURY GARDEN CLUB was

organized in April, 1932 with twenty-five
members.  The officers were Mrs. George
Garland, president and Mrs, Austin French as
secretary and treasurer.

The object of the club is the advancement
of gardening, development of home grounds
and furthering of town beautification.

The present membership is fifty, with Mrs.
A. Henry Colbath, president: Mrs. Manter
Garland, vice-president; Mrs, William Smith,
secretary and Mrs. Austin French, treasurer,

TEWKSBURY ATHLETIC CLUEB

RGANIZED as the Rangers Athletic Club
( i 1232 with eighteen charter membzrs.
Purpose: to foster and encourage all forms of
athletics, to keep them clean and sportsman-
like.

In September, 1932 the name was changed
to the Tewksbury Athletic Club,

The Club House and athletie field of twen-
ty-five acres are located on Chandler Street,

Thez present membership is one hundred
and hiteen,

INDIAN HILL RCD AND GUN CLUB

HT. Indian

Hill Rod
and Gun Clab
wis organized
e April, 189535
with twelve
members, The
object of this
organization is to create a better feeling of

sportsmanship and sociability among its mem-
hers, to encourage the propagation of Osh and
game and to cooperate with any similar or-
ganization in any effort toward the better-
ment of fishing and hunting.

A modern club house about a mile off
Chandler Street overlooks one of thz finest
trout streams in New FEngland. The Club has
about twentyv-seven acres of land and it is
planned to flood the greater part this fall into
a pond for the breeding place of water fowl.

The carryving out of present plans will make
this one of the finest sportsman clubs in New
ngland,
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Old Organlzatmns

THE VILLAGE IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION

N SEPTEMBER 18, 1883, a small group of people met together at the home of Jacob Coggin
(now the home of Mrs. Henry M. Billings} and formed a society to be known as the Village
Improvement Association. These officers were chosen: William H. Lee, Chairman, and

Miss Minnie Coggin, secretary. The Executive Committes for 1883 and 1884 were Miss Mary
Eastman, Mr. William . Lee, Miss Minnie Cogzin, Mr. A. F. Saunders, Mr. Benjamin Spauld-
ing, Miss Lucy A. Hill, Miss M, Esther Marshali and Mr. Arthur Tingley.

 During the first year, according to an item written in a paper published in Tewksbury
(printed in Lowell) at that time, over one hundred trees were sct out and lights installed (oil
lamps). The following year more lights were added, sidewalks made, old ones repaired and a
new drain added at the Center. Thr:\ provided chLqu,Ltc means for l]]e lighting of the lamps and
installed more during the second vear.

On February 6, 1884 the ulhfrc paper of that date contained an advertisement for a Fair to
be held in the Town Iall with a most elaborate program.

It may be of interest to the people of the present era to know that all improvements in the
center part of the town were not only carried out by the Village Improvement Association but
all expenses were raised and paid for by this organization. March 2, 1891 the town, realizing
the importance of the work carried on by the V. [ A, appm]}ridtecl the sum of $200 for lighting
and care of lights at the center of the town. On this date the Town also voted $150 for a Band
Stand. Lights were then installed by the town in different sections and gradually the town
took over and added to the program advanced and worked for by thua very efficient association.

In 1934 there are still twenty members remaining of the old V. 1. A,

TEWKSBURY GRANGE NO. 20, P. of H.

N THE YEAR 1893, a club was organized known as the Farmers' Club.  This club O'ti. woand
after a short time its members wanted to organize a grange which they did on March 8, 1895,
This was known as Tewksbury Grange No. 20, Patrons of Husbandry. Members from An-

dover Grange installed the officers. Mr. George Lmnhv was elected its first Master and served
for several years. Mr. George D, Foristall was the first Lecturer. Other officers were Joel
Phelps, Treasurer; Susie C. Whittimore, Secretary; Mr. Howard W. Foster, Overseer : William
Trow, Chaplain; Mrs. Marcellus Patten, Flora; Mrs. George Trull, Ceres: Mrs, Frank Fitz-
gerald, Pomona; and Mrs, George D. Foristall, Lady Assistant Steward,

Among other masters were George Trull, Howard W. Faster, Albert Blaisdell, Walter Tills-
bury and Harold J. Patten. The last master was Maud G. Griffin. Their work among the agri-
cutural people of the town for better farming conditions, co-operative buying, educational and
social advantages were widely spoken of for many years. and much good wmk done,

This grange disbanded after 23 vears and gave up its charter June 21, 1921,

TWENTIETH CENTURY CLUB

CLUB known as the Twentieth Century Club was organized on March 20, 1901 by Rev. .
A Herbert Yeoman, then pastor of the Congregational Church. Mr. Henry M. Billings was

chosen as its first president and held that office for ten years. Its members were from all
parts of the town and the organization was knowa as a cultured and social club. Their slogan was
“(Get Together”.

Programs consisting of organ recitals and outstanding speakers from many localities were
heard here. Among which were Edward Everett Hale, Dr. Asher Anderson, R. Perry Bush,
Judge Henry Shute, Miss Mary K. Wooley of Mt. Holyoke College, Arthur D. Prince, Rev. 15
Harold Dale, Hon. George Marden and many other splendid speakers. Their banquets were con-
sidered one of the most social events of the seas>n. Members of the first council were Rey. Mr.
Yeoman, George W. Trull, Henrv M. Billings and John Fliming. Meetings were held monthly
in the Congregational Church vestry and later alternated between North Tewksbury and the
Center.

The orgamzation ceased its activities in 1926,
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—=——— Facts of Interest =

SEFARATION FROM BILLERICA

N 1733, May 13, our early settlers asked the town to erect a meeting house in the center of
the town, or so accommodate the northerly part of the town, upon the Town’s cost, or set
them off, so that they may maintain preaching among themselves”, This the town was not
ready to grant, but they had discovered that it was useless to oppose the separation, and on De-
cember 19, when the request was again renewed, or, as an alternative, that the town would
“please to set them off, with two-thirds of the land lying between Andover and Billerica meet-
ing house, from Wilmington line to Concord River, for a Township”. Others desired that the
arganization should be a “Precinet, for their better accommodation in public worship”™. At this
meeting, a committee, consisting of Mr. Samuel Danforth, Lieutenant Daniel Kittredge, Lieut
Joseph Hill, Mr. Samuel ITunt, Jr., and Lieut. Joseph Kidder, was appointed to “view the land”
and report, which they did, January 9, 1733, The report was accepted and granted, provided (if
the inhabitants on the southeasterly side of Shawshin River bz willing to join with them).

This final condition called out a petition from Samuel Hunt and others to the General
Court, “praying an absolute grant of this Court for their being made a Towne with these
hounds™, of the appointment of a committee to examine and report. The latter was done, with
the result that Tewksbury was incorporated December 23, 1751,

Tewksbury was taken wholly from Billerica and received in round numbers nine thousand
acres of land.

The following hst of families included in Tewksbury is imperfect, but will have interest:

Brown, Joseph Hunt, Peter Levestone, Seth
Hrown, William Hunt, Samuel Manning, Eliphalet
IParmer, Richard Kidder, Ephraim Manning, Thomas
FParmer, Thomas Kittredge, Daniel Marshall, Thomas
I'rench, John Kittredge, Daniel Jr. MNeedham, John

Osgood, Stephen
Patten, John

I'rench, Thomas

Killredge, F i
Irrost, Daniel illredge, Francis

I'rost, Edmund l\l‘ttredge. Tames Patten, Kendall
Frost, Joseph Kitlredge, James Jr. Patten, Mathaniel
Hall, Richard Kittredge, James, ters Peacock, Samuel
Hall, Samuel Kitiredge, Dr. John Richardson, Andrew
Haseltine, Samuel Kittredge, John Jr. Rogers, Nathaniel
Haseltine, Stephen Kittredge, Joseph Shed, Nathan
Hunt, Jeremiah Kittredge, Thomas Stickney, Abraham
Hunt, John Kittredge, William Trull, Samuel
Hunt, Joseph Levestone, John Whiting, John.

To these forty-seven names enough should probably be added to make the number sixty.

WAMESIT OR TEWKSBURY

ANY PERSONS have often remarked that our town should have been named Wamesit

after the Wamesit Indians, This 1 to be regretted, for the Wameszit Indians were peace-
ful, and were friendly with the white settlers. They roved all over what is now Tewksbury and
their arrow-heads and stone hammers have been found on many farms vears ago, on what is
known as Sandy Plain, were unearthed pieces of flint, arrow-heads, hammers, spears and traces
of their council hres.

It may be of interest to our citizens to know that the town might have been named Wamesit,
but owing to the failure of our early settlers to construct a Meeting House in the time desig-
nated, our separation from Billerica was postponed for several years.

In the History of Billerica written by Henry A, Hazen and 1311b1ished in 1882 the following
appears —

December 4, 1725 in “a petition of Jonathan Bowers, Samuel Hunt, and divers others,
Dwellers on the Land called Wamesick Purchase and Winthrop’s farm, weh lands ly afjacent to
Billerica, between Pautucket and Chelmsford Line, praying for reasons therin assigned, to be
erected into a separate and distinet Town™,
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This petition was referred to the next session of the General Court, but there is no record
of any action upon it. It was probably abandoned as Chelmsford had also petitioned for annex-
ation of that part of the Wamesit Purchase that lies on the west side of the Concord River. This
petition was granted to Chelmsford June 13, 1726,

The friends of the earlier project did not, however, abandon their efforts, and were so far
successiul that the General Court, April 9, 1729 considered favorably a bill to establish Wamese
Parish, with these bounds: “the line to begin at Concord River, between the lands of John Rogers
jr., and Enoch Kidder, and so on that line to the Way leading to Winthrop farm, so called”
thence on a “strait line to the S. E. end of Prospect Hill, six score rods north of the House of
James Kittredge, continuing the same line to Andover Line”, then following that line and Mer-
rimack River to “Chelmsford Old Line, keeping said line to Concord River to a stake called Pa-
tucket or Wamasset ; thence crossing Concord River to the bound first mentioned, which includes
Wamasset or the whole Indian Purchase”.

In December, Wamesit Precinct was favorably considered and acted upon by both Houses,
“the former order of this Court referring to Wamasset Purchase Lands notwithstanding”. The
Precinct was required, within thres years, to erect and finish a good and suitable house for public
worship “where the committee that have already viewed the said lands shall appoint”, and settle
a learned orthodox minister of good conversation, and make Irovision [or his comiortable and
honorable suppont™.

This was not done, and Wamesit failed to secure a place among the municipalities of the
State.

THE OLD HAND PUMP

A\'Uluntccr fire department was or-
ganized in 1798 in Belvidere Vil-
lage. The apparatus and equipment
was bought by private subscription.

In the Town Records of March 1,
1833 the town took over the maintain-
ance and appropriated the sum of $150
to purchase hose and other equipment.

When Belvidere was annexed to
Lowell this fire engine was taken over
and for many years was stored in the
Central Fire Station in Lowell,

The General Committee appointed
to conduct the 200th Anniversary of
the Incorporation of the Town, believ-
ing that it was proper to request the
return of this original piece of Tewks-
bury fire apparatus, communicated
with Hon. James J. Bruin, Mayor of
Lowell and with his recommendation a letter was forwarded to the City Council and it was un-
aminously voted to return the Wamesit Hand Pump to the Town of Tewksbury.

WAMESIT FIRE ENGINE

THE OLD OAKEN BUCKET

OCATED on the Bridges Homestead near the Shawshezn River, this Old Well for many

yvears provided ice-cold water for weary traveller, bicycle rider and thirsty ammals. The
bicycle riders of the nineties for miles around, made this spot a gathering place to meet and
rest. At one time a fund was raised to build a bicycle path from Lowell to this famous spot.

THE POW-WOW TREE
A’J,‘ a meeting of Old Bay State Chapter, D.A.R., a number of years ago, Miss Jennie Clark of
Clark Road, read a most delightiul paper about the Pow-wow Tree. The story was in the
form of a word pageant, telling the Trez's own story of the wonderful happenings and people
who passed before it, beginning with the Pow-wows, or councils of the Indians held under its
broad branches and from which it took its name.
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At the present time a marker erected by Molly Varnum Chapter D.A.R., marks this historic
spot. The inscription follows:

“Under this oak, the Wamesit Indians met for their Pow-wows, their peace conferences, and
their councils of war. At the time of the Revolution of the colonies, the men of this vicinity
passed by this tree to Tewksbury Center to join a Company which fought in defense of Concord
and Lexington. Tradition claims that this Pow-wow Oak was standing asg early as 1700.”

OLD GARRISON HOUSE

WO of the first houses built in the early days were used as a Fort House or Garrison House,

where the settlers gathered for protection against the hostile Indians. The present home of
the Collins Family on Shawsheen Street was the site of one of these Old Garrison Houses. The
ell of this home is the only remaining evidence now standing. The charred timbers tell us that
the old house was destroyed by firc.

HUNT GARRISON HOUSE

NE of these Ancient Block Houses was erected off Clark Road. The map of 1831 places the
site between what is now Andover Street and the Deacon Thomas Clark Homestead, but it
is believed to have been nearer Butman Road, overlooking the farms.

NORTH TEWKSBURY
POST OFFICE

EW people of this gen-

eration will remember
when there was a "ost Of-
fice in North Tewkshury.
The building at the leit of
the house was a General
Store and Post Office. The
first Postmaster was War-
ren Wood, The store was
owned by Jonas Clark who
later sold the property to
Henry Kittredge, It is un-
derstood  that  Mr., Kit-
tredge was theilast-Bast JONAS CLARK HOMESTEAD

master in the North Vil- The residence for many ¥ears of the late Deacon John Moore who died
lage. at the age of ninety-nine yvears and one month.

THE WHIGS AND FEDERALS

BOUT 1818, the two parties, known as the Whigs and Federals passed through a crisis de-
scribed as being of most bitter character. Dr, Israel Hildreth of Dracut, an ardent Federalist,
made several effective speeches. “Soon after repeated in T ewksbury before a much larger au-
dience, where, if possible, the enthusiasm it created exceeded that on its first delivery in Dracut”.
A paper read before the Old Residents’ Historical Association of Lowell, by Dr. N. D. Pat-
terson says: "With no disrespect to any who have in the past, or may in the future, practice the
healing art in the ancient Town of Tewksbury, we venture to affirm that it is doubtful if there ever
was, or ever will be, within its borders a greater than Dr. Henry Kittredge, son of Dr. Benjamin
Kittredge of Tewksbury”. The early Kittredges of this branch came from F England at an early
period, settling in Billerica, “were eminent in thz same line”. Dr. Jonathan Brown at the death
of Dr, K]ttrcd;,e came to Tewksbury from Wilmington. He was the first resident physician at
the State Almshouse,
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WANNALANCET

W:—\NN:‘\L;\N(JIE'I‘ was born probably in 1619, Wannalancet and his tribe were peaceful
Indians. In 1669, fearing an attack from the Mohawks, Wannalancet and his people
came down the Merrimack and erected fortifications on Fort Hill. In 1676 Wannalancet was
captured with about four hundred other Indians and taken to Boston, where many were executed
or sold into foreign slavery but he with his tribe were set at liberty. In the same year Wannalan-
cet and sixty of his people were removed to Tyng's Island.

In 167%, he with his people, except two, upen being visited by a party of Indians from Canada,
was persuaded partly by persuasion, partly by force, to accompany them to their country”. He
was not heard of after. Before going he went to the Rev, Mr. Fiske, of Chelmsford, and inquired
of him concerning the welfare of his former acquaintances, and whether the place had suffered
much during the war. Mr. Fiske answ:red they had been highly favored in that respect and for
which he thanked God. “Me next,” said the chief, thereby intimating that he was conscious of
having prevented mischief from falling upon them.

As late as 1683 there were numerous Indians in this section. Wamesits and other strange In-
dians. No trouble apparently developed from their presence for it is known that as late as the
carly 1800°s that they wisited the families, slept on the hearths and were curious to learn the
wiays of their white brethren.

ISLANDS IN THE CONCORD RIVER

TH ERE were several islands in the Concord River, part of the land purchased by Samuel
Hunt from the Winthraop grant. Here was located the saw and grist mill as early as 1750.
These islands were one of the dwelling places of the Wamesit Indians. May 4, 1821, Moses
Tyler Jr., of Dunstable, N. H., and George Tyler of Tewksbury sold the entire island territory
for $2500, “together with the mill and fish privileges 1 said river”.

ACADIAN EXILES IN TEWKSBURY

HE most tragic and brutal outrage that mars the annals of the New World was perpetrated
upon the Acadians in 1755, which is called unto this day “The Great French Derangement”
by the natives of Nova Scotia. A peaceful and friendly people through whose persistent efforts
great areas had been developed into a highly developed farming area, they become the envy of
the English who, through trickery in 1735, by proclamation assemblzd every man, woman and
child and with such houschold effects as were allowed them, loaded them on the ships that hore
them away to distant and unfriendly territory. On the fifth day before sailing, gathered in groups
on the shore of their Island, they raised their voices and sang with tremulous lips :—
Sacred Heart of the Savior
(), inexhaustible fountain
Fill our hearts this day with strength
And submission and patiznce.

Quite a number escaped, the rest, seven thousand in number, were scattered from New
Hampshire to Georgia. Of those Acadians that were landed in Boston, 156 were apportioned
in Middlesex County. Of this number eleven were cared for in Tewksbury. June 10, 175%, the
Selectmen submitted a bill for the care of Francis Meers, wife and nine children for board at
three dollars per week. Later this appears: We have removed all the French Neutrals that were
in our town to the town of Redding on the 31st of July 17607,

The tragedy of the Acadian exiles is almost forgotten and only the faded pages of early
records show that once among us, a few of the ill-fated Acadians found not a home, but a stop-
ping place.

THE FIRST MEETING HOUSE

HIE first Mezeting House was located, as near as can be ascertained, near the location of the
present Band Stand and extending toward the flag pole, almost directly in the Main road. It
faced North as the old road passed on that side.
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TAVERNS

HESE were of the greatest im-

portance in the old days, here all
travelling people stopped, particularly
the countrymen from New Hampshire
enroute to Boston, to exchange their
crops for all things they were unable
to raise or make themselves. 1i the
walls could only talk, interesting in-
deed would be the stories of historic
significance. Browns Tavern, now the
residence of Dr. Larrabee’s Family, in
the Center; Enoch Foster Tavern, at
the corner of Shawsheen and Main
Streets; and the Jonathan Brown
Tavern, corner of Main 5Street and
Salem Road. At Belvidere, the Thomp-
son Tavern was very popular. At one
time there was a Half-way House, now
the residence of Mrs. Alice Pike near Wamesit. There may have been several others, but those
mentioned were the most familiar ones.

BROWNS TAVERN

STORES

RAVITY GRAY'S Store and Preston’s Store were the largest and most important.  Like all
old stores they carried all articles which might be in demand at that period.  DPreston’s Store
had the U. S. Post Office and today, owned by the Fairgrieve Family, still remains a store and
Post Office. Bravity Gray's was later moved across the street 2.d is used as a store by Adolph
B. Moore.
BRIEFS

Directly opposite Browns Tavern at the Center, in the open field of that period, were a long
row of stables. This was equally true of the other Taverns, as many as one hundred horses at
a time have becn housed and their owners entertained on this, the most direct road to Boston and
Salem from the north,

It was the ecustom in the older days when one built a new home, to have all the neighbors
come and assist in the raising. Mediord rum was served in liberal quantities to the workers be-
fore the raising began; raising the home of had to be postponed to a later period as it
was impossible to raise the large beams; evidently man power was lacking.

The oldest string orchestra was composed of Joshua TFrench, Fedmund French and Aaron
Frost, Violinists; Nathan Jaques played the Bass Viol. They provided music in the church, and
at the fairs and old-time dances.

Of the Civil War Soldiers enlisting from Tewksbury, it is believed but two still survive,—
Dudley .. Page of Lowell and Albert B. Stackpole of West Lebanon, Maine. Both are expected
to be in the Reviewing Stand during the Parade and Pageant.

General Andrew Jackson (Old Hickory), President of the United States, visited Lowell June
27, 1833. He remained in Andover about an hour then proceeded through Tewksbury into Low-
ell. The order of the Parade stated that he would be received at the South end of Nesmith Street.

“The Committee of Arrangements and the Cavalcade will form on Merrimack Street, Lowell,
precisely at half-past seven o'clock, to proceed to Tewksbury Meeting House, or Andover line, to
escort the President to the place designated for his reception”. The parade passed over the
Tewksbury Bridge, over the Concord River.

“The artillery was stationed on Chapel Hill—near to and overlooking the Concord River,
their position commanding a view of the road beyond the Rogers farm, on which the distin-
guished stranger was to come’.

In the Reminiscences and Recollections of Lowell, since 1831, by George Hedrick appear
these extracts: “I resided in Belvidere (then a part of Tewksbury). I with others went town-
meeting days five miles, to old Tewksbury Village. We used to charter all the teams, haycarts
and all kind of vehicles, and go down and disturb the good people of the town, as we neared the
village a “ITurrah” gave them warning of our approach.

Page Sivty-seven



_1734 _ 'lfe ifowne B_ook 1934

“We took extra pains to have a full turnout, make all the trouble we could, and have ior one
day in the year a good time. Josiah Brown Esq., was chairman of the meeting. We usually kept
up such an uproar that the moderator pounded lustily upon his desk and commanded peace. At
twelve o’clock we adjourned to Brown's Tavern to dinner, and the hot flip and other favorite
heverages were freely partaken ol. Logger-heads were in use for warm drinks.

“The last time we met, before we were annzxed we kept doubting the votes and at eight
o'clock carried an adjournment to Thompson’s Tavern. There was great opposition to adjourning
to Belvidere. Old Mr. David Rogers hoped the motion would not prevail, as such a thing would
he disgraceful ; he had never heard anything like it since the town was incorporated”.

In a paper written by Charles Hovey, read February 12, 1879, the following is noted: “In
the Town of Tewksbury, just beyond the easterly boundary line of Lowell, there is now in suc-
cessful operation an iron foundry which probably has no superior in Massachusetts. A mile
further on (Wamesit) there have heen erected and are now in practical use permanent brick
buildings for the production of chemicals.

“About 1816, the Gedney Estate or the Old Yellow House, near the confluence of the Merri-
mack and Concord Rivers (about 200 acres) was bought by Judge Livermore. The beams and
interior woodwork of this estate were prepared in England and brought to this country for a Mr.
Brown about 1750

“In 1802 the land of Ebenezer TTunt located on Butman Road was known as the “Lynde Hill
Estate™ (About fifty acres).

About 1870 a local paper called the Tewksbury Gazette, written and edited in town {printed
in Lowell) contained many local advertisements and items ol local interest.

Phyllis, the loved and respected slave of Rev. Sampson Saplding, lies buried at his feet in
the O1d Section of the New Cemetery.

When Tewksbury was set off from Billerica there were 9000 acres. After losing Belvidere,
Wigginsville and a large residential section of Andover Street throngh annexation, the town has
13,000 acres within its bounds.

MASONIC HALL BUILDING

HIS building was formerly attached to the rear and east side of the homestead of Bravity

Gray (now occupied by Arthur Tremblay). The hall was used for places of enjoyment, the
Singing School met here and here the church held its fairs. Possibly dances of the old days, the
minuet, may have been trod by our forefathers.

OLD TOWN HALL

In 1875 the town voted to erect a new Town Hall and to sell the old building. This later
was purchased for $100 and moved and became what was known as the Taylor Paint Shop, a part
of and adjoining the Blacksmith Shop.

MILLS

HE map of 1796 shows there were

three saw mills and grist mills and
one saw mill. Trulls Mill on the Trull
Brook; Browns Mill at the mouth of
the Concord River: Kendalls Mill, Pat-
tens Mill on Content Brook (not shown
on the map but mentioned in the carly
history of Billerica), and one on the
Shawshin River, Bodens Mill.

PONDS

The map of 1796 shows thr.e
Ponds in Tewksbury, Round and Long
Pond (incorrectly called Mud Pond by
many) and Mud Pond, south of the

R Shawshin River, not far from the Bille-
TRULLS MILL rica and Wilmington line,
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FISHING INTERESTS

N the early settlement of the Town, fishing was a valuable asset, the rights enjoyed by certain

individuals and the abundant fish in the rivers, ponds and brooks, provided both food and
fertilizer for the inhabitants. Trout were in great abundance and as late as the middle of the
last century, fishermen were in the habit of walking to Boston with strings of fish weighing from
fifty pounds upwards.

The Merrimack or “Sturgeon River” was especially favored with fish of various kinds, also
the Concord and Shawsheen Rivers.

In the early days the northwestern part of the town was known as “Shadtown” and ap-
prentices stipulated that they be fed only so often upon the royal salmon or upon shad. The
southern portion of the town was called “Pigeon-town” from the numerous wild pigeons frequent-
ing those parts. From 1743 until 1830 fish reeves or wardens were appointed, and their duties
were important. After the founding of Lowell, the manufacturing interests, by polluting the
waters and the building of the Lawrence Dam sounded the death knell of the fishing industry in
the Merrimack and Concord Rivers.

JOHN GALE

Born in Mathews County, Virginia, March 9, 1848, Came to
Tewksbury in 1873, Married Miss Virginia Gwyn of Mathews
County in 1874, Father of eight children, five daughters and three
sons. Died January 21, 1934 at the age of 85 years, 10 months and
12 days. A well known and respected citizen of the community.

OLD LETTERS

Many old letters are in the possession of Tewksbury residents
and show that as late as 1842 envelopes were not used, the letter
was folded and sealed with red wax., There were no postage
stamps; the cancellation showing only where the letter was sent
from. One from Fitchburg, Mass., bore on the cancellation “Fitch-
burg™.

The photograph of the old Town Hall showing the decorations
will remind the older residents of Old Home Week which was cele-
brated in 1902,

JOHN GALE POST 185 G.A.R.

Custodian  of the National Post 185 G AR, was organized in Lowell in June, 1366, There
colors for thirty years. were 230 members. Today only ten veterans of the Civil War,

membezrs of this Post, are living,

For many years, Post 185, G.AR. made an annual pilgrimage to Tewksbury on Memorial
Day, to assist in the observance of the day as guests of the townspeople. They have become en-
deared to us through the passing vears and today we welcome them again as they come to assist
us in the observance of the Incorpora-
tion of the Town of Tewksbury.
Health  permitting, the {ollowing
named veterans will appear in the pa-
rade: Albert I. Gilman, Commander;
Leonard J. Van Steenburgh, Charles
M. Bixby, Samuel Partlow.

JONATHAN CLARK HOMESTEAD

ERI is evidence of the days before

the Civil War. Note the dresses
of the period. In the window one can
observe the grandmother with her
little lace cap. What would be the
thoughts and topics of conversation of
our early inhabitants if they could ap-
pear before us today and witness the
changes brought through the passing
years. CLARK HOMESTEAD

s T el i i
—-
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One should realize in scanning the pictures of the early homes and other photographs in this
historical book, that many of the cuts were taken from tin-types, faded photographs, and old maps.

Many of this generation remember Mrs. James Long, a dear old lady who died some years
ago on Decoration Day. Before her marriage her maiden name was Amelia Saunders. Whan
visiting her brother Ziba M. Saunders, a soldier going from East Tewksbury stationed near Har-
per's Ferry, Va., she mingled with and gave great assistance to the Union Soldiers.

From Albert S. Stackpole, aged 92 years and 5 months, of West Lebanon, Maine, one of our
living veterans of the Civil War, comes this information.

ITe made furniture in Pattenville before the war, remembers Deacon William Patten who
sang in the Congregational Church seventy years ago and his son who, when seven, also sang in
the choir. Rev. Mr. Tolman was the minister. John Spaulding was superintendent of the Sun-
day School and Mrs. Chandler was his teacher. Mr. Stackpole is the only Tewkshury soldier liv-
ing who was in Co. G of the “OIld Sixth”,

Dudley L. Page, who enlisted
under the age of eighteen years, is a
familiar and beloved resident of Low-
ell. Known to all as “Uncle Dudley”
his reputation as a candy manufactu-
rer is known from coast to coast. His
first store was opened in Lowell in a
small basement, jointly occupied by
Marcellus A. Patten, who opened the
first retail flower shop in that city.

Those who attended the Union
Services held in the Memorial Audito-
rium in Lowell last May in memory of
the soldiers and sailors of the Civil
War, remembear the dignified and im-
pressive manner in which Mr. Page
delivered Lincoln’s “Gettysburg Ad-
dress.”

ZACHARIAH HARDY HOMESTEAD

Lack of space prohibits the print-
ing of many other interesting facts,
which could tell us of the stirring

Home of Mrs. Mehitable Twiss, a pieneer in the movement to
establish the First Baptist Church at North Tewksbury., The
oldest part of this house was moved to the present location
and was the frst house ereeted in that part of the town. events of the olden days.

<&
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The Oldest Living Native of Tewksbury

MOST PLEASANT experience was the interview of the gen-
eral committee with Mrs. Rhoda Parkhurst Davis, now of
Andover, Mass. On August 4th we motored to her home on

Salem Street. Little did we realize the thrill that awaited us, for
here lives a lady, born in Tewksbury on Feb. 23, 1836, almost one
hundred vears ago, that has a vivid recollection of the very things
we had hunted weeks to verify.

Mrs. Davis was born in the homestead of Colonel Russell
Mears, situated on Main Street, corner of Old Boston Road, now
owned and occupied by the Buct Family. Colonel Mears owned
80 acres on both sides of the main road and joined the extensive
Rogers farm that reached to Lowell.

The original house of the Colonel was a short distance nearer
the Center and in 1780 on a vis't home from his regiment hz started
the present house.

But let this charming lady herseli tell of the old days. “Mrs,
Davis,” asked our spokesman, “how [far back can you tell us
P “Well, gentlemen, my grandmother, on my mother’s side,

about?
spoke often of the gallantry of my grandfather, Captain Joseph
Parkhurst of Lexington. He recruited quite a company, you know.
Ves, eleven men, which was one of the first to go. The war to us
always referted to the Revolutionary War, when [ was a girl, and folks talked about it as vou o
today of the World War.

“What a happy girlhood I had in Tewksbury. Mother sent me to singing school in the hall
now used by the Masonic Club. Tt was across the street then. Here the dancing parties were
held and our bonnets were placed under the long seats with hinged covers along the sides of the
hall. 1 sang in the choir when Mr. Coggins was the minister. We had quite a choir, with three
violing and a bass viol.

“When 1 married Mr. Augustus M. Davis in 1859, we moved to Lowell, residing there until
the Civil War broke out. Mr. Davis enlisted in the 1st Mass. Cavalry, Co. G, serving three
years in the Union Army. It was while he was away T returned to Tewksbury and upon his
return we bought the house now owned by the Gale family at the corner of James Street. We
lived there until 1880. Cr

“Mr. Davis was employed by Foster & Cole for a number of years. My, what changes there
are today. I remember when Mr. Pres-
ton came to town. He worked at
Gray’s store and later started one him-
self and became Postmaster. The
Bovs in town are mostly all gone now,
The Farmers, Scarletts, Jaques, Pres-
tons and many others. I can see them
all. There was Enoch Foster, “Young
Enoch’ we always called him, I hope
to see him again. Then there were the
Kittredge boys, all studied medicine,
and the Marshalls and Callahans our
neighbors.

“A gala day in town was the open-
ing of the State Almshouse. When the
buildings were completed the public
was invited to inspect them and we all
trrnedsoutie i

And so the committee listened to

Mrs. Rhoda Parkhurst Davis
Apge 08 yvears, 6 months

HOMESTEAD OF COLONEL RUSSELL MEARS th's dear sweet lady recall many, many
Revolutionary Soldier. — Built in 1780. events that held us spellbound. She
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talked of the past like it was only yesterday, yet here was the oldest living person, born in
Tewksbury, here sat a lady, the belle of 1850 who trod our village streets with bonnet and hoop
skirts. She must have been beautiful, she is beautiful today. Her hearing, sight and health is
perfect. To meet and talk with her was a privilege we will never forget.

After taking a few pictures in her garden, we started on our way. No one spoke. We were
still thinking. Thinking of the things she said and the way she said them.

Mrs, Rhoda Parkhurst Davis will be our honored guest at the 200th Anniversary celebration.
It will be our great pleasure to welcome her to the town where she was born and spent so many
happy years of her life.

RURAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT

how it remains umhanged from the earliest settlement of the town. Here in New England

alone this form is used and is considered quite remarkable in efliciency by students of govern-
ment. The following quotation from the Encyclopaedia Britannica, edited in England, shows
how unique they consider New England town government:

THLLL are not many who realize what a distinctive form of local government we enjoy and

“Three main types of rural local government may be distinguished, prevailing in different
regions, One 1g characterized by its unit, the town or township, and exists in the six New Eng-
land States. The town of New England is generally a rural community occupying a compara-
tively small area, and with a population averaging about 3000, but 141‘15_{1110‘ from 200 in newly-
sttled districts or thinly-peopled hilly districts up to 17,000 in the vicinity of large cities and in
manufacturing neighbourhoods. Tach town is governed by the town meeting, an assembly of
all the qualified voters within the limits, which meets at least once a year in the spring, and also
at other times when specially summoned. This assembly elects the town officials at the annual
meetings, but it is much more than an electoral body. [t iz a deliberative assembly and the
legislative authority for local matters. It enacts by-laws and ordinances, receives the reports of
the local officials, passes their accounts, manages the town property, votes appropriations for
each item of expenditure, and authorizes the necessary taxation, Every resident citizen has the
right to bring forward and speak in favour of any proposal. The meeting is presided over by a
chairman called the Moderator. In rural communities the attendance is usually good, the debates
are sensible and practical, and a satisfactory administration is generally secured.

“The town officials consist of the ‘selectmen’, the town clerk, treasurer, assessors, tax col-
lector, school committeemen, and the holders of divers minor offices according to local needs.
These are elected annually, except in some cases. The 'selectmen’ and School committeemen have
a term of several years, one member of each board being elected annually. The ‘sel=ctmen’ form
a sort of directory or executive committee, which manages the ordinary administrative and finan-
cial business under such instructions as may have been given by the town meeting.”

How accurately the above describes our present government, unchanged through the vears,
It is the purest democracy, the forerunner of representative government made necessary by the
growth of the largest cities

How well it has served our people is every yvear demonstrated at our town meeting, where
anyone may freely discuss and make proposals for the public good.
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Major General Adelbert Ames

AJ]. GEN. ADELBERT AMES, formerly a resident of Tewks-

bury and Ormond Beach, Florida, was a man of splendid per-

sonality and sterling character, He was the last surviving general
of the Union forces, and died in Florida April 13, 1933,

General Ames was born in Thomaston, Me., receiving his edu-
cation in the public and private schools in that state. Appointed to
the West Point Military Academy, graduating in May 6, 1861, he
was immediately commissioned a lieatenant in the Union Army and
served with distinction from 1861 to 1865. Promoted through the
various grades, he became a major general of Volunteers in 1865,
Gen. Ames was awarded the Congressional Medal of Honor for gal-
lant and meritorious service at the battle of Bull Run, where he was
severely wounded. He participated in the battles of Malvern Hill,
Gettysburg, Gaines’ Mills, Fredericksburg, Chancellorsville and
Antietam.

Appointed Provisional Governor of Mississippi in 1868, he
served as senator from that state four years. Elected Governor, he
served two years. Resigning he moved to New York, later living
in Minnesota.

During the Spanish American War, he served as brigadier general, heing honorably dis-
charged in 1899, At the outbreak of the World War, General Ames volunteered for service. In
spite of his advanced years, his indomitable spirit called him to offer his services in any capacity
that the United States Government might require.

In 1870 he married Blanche Butler, daughter of General Benjamin . Butler of Towell, Mrs,
Ames is still living as are two sons and four daughters.

In 1906 the Castle on the Hill was built and here the general lived, except in the winters,
when he sojourned in Florida.

A splendid oil painting of Major-General Ames, loaned through the courtesy of Mrs, Blanche
Butler Ames, may be viewed in the Historical I<xhibition.

Major-General Adelbert Ames

WAMESIT ASTRONOMICAL OBSERVATORY

HE WAMESIT ASTRONOMICAL OBSERVATORY was started twenty-five years ago by

D. H. Scarlett on his father’s farm on Livingston Street. Beginning with a two and a half

inch telescope which was later exchanged for a five inch Clark telescope. In 1926 the obser-
vatory was moved to its present location on Ma'n Street at Wamesit. At the opposition of Mars
in 1910-11 some fifty observations were made which attracted attention all over the world.

Mr. Scarlett was presented a Medal of the Astronomical Society of France and made an Tm-
mortal of that Association,

Desiring to construct an observatory for public use, and facing untold expense, only by con-
stant savings {rom daily employment, has the observatory reached its present construction. At
least four years more will be required to complete the equipment desired. The twelve inch re-
flecting telescope is one of the most accurate instrum:nts ever built, the greatest variation from
absolute perfection in the surfaces of its optical varts is less than one one-millionth of an inch,

Only three other towns in the world have observatories of any size located within their bor-
ders that are maintained wholly for the use of the public.

At this observatory are many articles of historical and geological interest.

The Wamesit Astronomical Observatory will be open to all invited guests and former resi-
dents Saturday afternoon and evening, Aug. 25, Sunday and Monday evenings, Aug. 26-27, from
six p.m. until midnight. It is hoped that many will avail themselves of this privilege to gain ad-
ditional knowledge of the solar system.
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HI suceessiul celebration of the Tewksbury Bi-Centennial has been
T;Lchieve(i through the loval and generous co-operation of the townspeople
and their friends. The Committee on Arrangements thanks them one and
all. A special word of appreciation is due . . .

To the chairmen and members of the various committees, who worked

so energetically and so efficiently ;

To Hon. James J. Bruin and the members of the City Council for the
return of the old Wamesit hand-pump;

To Dr. John H. Nichols, of the State Infirmary, and to the New England
Power Association for their invaluable co-operation;

To those who searched old family records to find material for the Towne
Book ;

To those who helped to make the Historical Exhibition a success;

To all those who, by the decoration of their homes, helped dress the Town
in gala attire for the observance;

To the school children, their instructors, and those who took part in
making our beautiful Pageant possible.

To Mr. John W. Daly, E.R.A, Administrator, for the music by the E.R.A.
Band:

To the Lowell Courier-Citizen, the Lowell Sun, The Lowell Leader and
the Lowell Sunday Telegram for the genzrous publicity given:

To our friends the Advertisers, who made the publication of the Towne
Book possible;

To our townsman, Frederick I'. Meloy for his gift of the speakers’ and
the reviewing stands;

To those who generously contributed the loan of equipment, trucks and
automobiles ;

To Mr. and Mrs. C. Brocks Stevens and Mr. and Mrs. Hilton Tor their
generous contribution to enhance the success of our 200th anniversary ;

To all those who have contributed, one way or another, in making the
200th Anniversary of the Incorporation of the Town of Tewkshury a most
brilliant and successful celebration,
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Town Officers

who have contributed to the publication of

Ye TOWNE BOOK

WILLIAM I, BAILEY
WARNER BANCROPFT
CYRIL L. BARKER
WESLEY LK. BARRON
C. ABBOT BATTLES
PHILLIP M. BATTLES
WM. H. BENNETT
HARRIS M. BRIGGS
CHESTER E. BURGESS
DUNCAN J. CAMERON
FRED M., CARTER
GRACE W. DAWEON
HARRY C. DAWSON
DANIEL DHLLWORTII
ALBION L. FELKER
AUSTIN F., FRENCH
[RVING F. FRENCH
JOHN T. GALRE
ROBERT E. GAY
GUY B. GRAY
BERNARD H. GREENE

ALDEN 8. HAINES

GEQ. K. JAMES

ASAHEL H, JEWELL
JESSE KEMP

HERBERT M. LARRABEE
MAY L. LARRABER
THOS. €. McAUSLAND
MARIK MceCANN
LAUCHIE McePHAIL
HAROLD J. PATTEN
ALICE A, PIKE

JAMES W. ROBERTS
MARK ROPER

ROBS SARGENT

THOS. P. SAWYER
RUTH SMITH
FRANKLIN F. SPAULDING
MARIAM SPAULDING
HERBERT L. TRULL
EDW. J. WALSH
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Tewksbury Town Officers, 1934

MELVIN G. ROGERS, Moderator

Board of Selectmen
IRVING F. FRENCH, -
Chairman

HERBERT L. TRULL
EVERETT H. KING

Board of Public Welfare
EVERETT H. KING, Chairman
IRVING F. FRENCH
HERBERT L. TRULL

Board of Health
HERBERT L. TRULL, Chairman
EVERETT H. KING
IRVING F. FRENCH

Assessors
BUZYELL KING, Chairman
ALBION L. FELKER
MARK J. McCANN
Town Clerk
HARRY C. DAWSON

Town Treasurer

ALICE A, PIKE

Collector of Taxes
ROBERT W, BARRON

Town Auditor
ROBERT E. GAY

School Committee
MAY L. LARRABEE, Chairman
AUSTIN F. FRENCH
GUY B. GRAY

Superintendent of Schools
STEPHEN G. BEAN
Trustess of Public Library
MIRIAM SPAULDING, Chairman
GRACE W. DAWSON

RUTH SMITH

EDGAR SMITH

KATIS P‘OLSOM

ELMER E. LOUX
Librarian

ABBIE M. BLAISDELL

Road Commissioners
JOHN T. GALE, Chairman
WILLIAM 1. BAILEY
ASAHEL H. JEWELL

Superintendent of Streets
EDWARD J. WALSH

Tree Warden
HARRIS M. BRIGGS

Registrars of Voters
HERBERT A. FAIRBROTHER,
Chairman
HARRY C. DAWSON, Clerk
WILLIAM H. BENNETT
GEORGE MeCOY
Constables
WARNER BANCROFT

CYRIL L. BARKER
BERNARD H. GREENE

inspector of Animals
ASAHEL H. JEWELL
Weighers
GECRE K. JAMES
GEORGE B. TANNER
Surveyor of Lumber
GEGRGE K. JAMES
Meazurer of Wood
GEORGE K. JAMES

Sealer of Weights and Mcasures
DUNCAN J. CAMERON
Field Driver and Pound Keeper
JESSE KEMP
Fence Viewers

BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Fish and Game Warden
CYRIL L. BARKER

Police Officers
CYRIL L. BARKER, Chief

WARNER BANCROFT
CHESTER E. BURGESS
C. ABBOT BATTLES
ASAHEL H. JEWELL
LAUCHIE McPHATL
JAMES ROBERTS
ROSS E. SARGENT
BEERNARD GREENE

Agent Board of Health
HERBERT M. LARRABEE, M.D.

Undertaker and Agent for Burial
Indigent Soldiers
H. LOUIS FARMER,
(Registersd Embalmer)
Forezt Fire Warden
ALDEN 8. HAINES
Deputy Forest Warden
WILLIAM I, BAILEY
CHESTER E. BURGESS

Inspector Meats and Provisions
ASAHEL H. JEWELL

Local Agent for the Suppression of
Erown Tail and Gypsy Maoth

HARRIS M. BRIGGS

Park Commissioners
HARRIS M. BRIGGS
THOMAS €. McCAUSLAND
DANTEL DILWORTH

Chief of Fire Department
ALDEN 8. HAINES
Appraisers
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Janitor Town Hall
GEORGE K. JAMES

Finance Committee
Term expires 1934
GEORGE B. HAMILTON

KARL HEIDENRICH
WILLIAM H. BENNETT
FRANKLIN F. SPAULDING
Term expires 1935
WINTHROP 8. BEAN
ELMER OLSON
RALPH T. LEITH
THOMAS P. SAWYELR
Term expires 1936
HARRY P. NASH, Secretary
PHILIP M. BATTLES
HARAQLD J. PATTEN
HENRY SPARKES

Trust Fund Commissioners
FREDERICK M. CARTER
MARK ROPER
FEANKLIN F. SPAULDING
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Benjamin Movitz
EXHIBITS

EXTRACTS FROM OFFICIAL RECORDE .

Havold J. Patten
FACTS OF INTEREST
Contributed by Friends
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Miss Josephine 8. Battles
FIRST CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH..

Miss M. Esther Marshall - ‘II::: Lizzie f;.mmwe ’Im,ueg.r

FOREWORD

Mrs, La zie Ifmr(’dqm

MATJOR GENERAL ADELBERT AMES . it s sasaie

MASSACHUSETTS STATE INFIRMARY.

D, John H '\'lrFlfJ?\'
METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH et s oottt

Mrs. Lena Heald
OFFICTIAL PROGRAM

QLD HOMESTEADS
Records Committee

OLD INDUSTERIES . iiiiinriimreoeoiiisianisaiass e st s mtamta s e sae e st sk e danen e nae e

Miss Harriet 1. Lee
OLD ORGANIZATIONS

OLDEST LIVING NATIVE OF TEWKSBURY

PRESENT ORGANIZATIONS

RURAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT

Mark J. MeCoann
THE MOTHER TOWN—BILLERICA..
Dr. A. TI arren \rmnrs

THE OBLATE NOVITIATE .o ecisiisiininmmmmsms s e s sans s s s msan s sess s b4t tas e asimsssess

Rev. Charles F. Barry, O.M.1

THE OLD BURYING GROUNDS i i st i s s

Huarris M. Briggs
TEWKSBURY SOLDIERS IN THE WARS..
Winthrop H{ur#r” Iuns‘s

TEWKSBURY TOWN OFFICERS, 1334 .
TOWN HALL (Ol and NEWI oo e s a i s s st an st s

TOWN OFFICERS WHO CONTRIBUTED TO YE TOWNE BOOK...nn

WAMESIT ASTRONOMICAL OBSERVATORY . e

Daniel H. Scarlett

YE DISTRICT SCHOOL ..o ot e st e e e T )

Miss Berthe H. Long

imgiey
INCORPORATION OQF TEWESBURY .o

Miss Mary A. Rillings
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